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          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Good afternoon,

          3  everyone. It's a beautiful day outside, and before I

          4  begin, let me introduce the members of the City

          5  Council that are present this afternoon. Today is

          6  March 5th, and it's now 1:49 p.m. I apologize for

          7  starting a little late. We had a little logistics

          8  that we had to work out.

          9                 But to my left, Lew Fidler of

         10  Brooklyn; Simcha Felder of Brooklyn; John Liu of

         11  Queens; Bill DeBlasio of Brooklyn; Jimmy Vacca of

         12  the Bronx, right here to my right; Maria del Carmen

         13  Arroyo of the Bronx; Helen Diane Foster of the

         14  Bronx; and Melinda Katz, to my far right, of Queens.

         15  In back of me, the New York City Public Advocate,

         16  Betsy Gotbaum. We've also been joined, to my

         17  immediate left, Counsel to the Education Committee

         18  Ms. Salimi and Jan Atwell, Jennifer Culp, Regina

         19  Poreda-Ryan and Anthony Hogrebe, are our staff

         20  that's affiliated with the Education Committee.

         21                 Today's topic, oversight hearing,

         22  empowerment schools, what have we learned so far?

         23  And as we all know, in January of this year, our

         24  Mayor, Michael Bloomberg, announced yet another

         25  phase of the Children's First Reforms through four
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          2  initiatives:

          3                 1) Public School Empowerment.

          4                 2) Accountability.

          5                 3) Fair Student Funding; and

          6                 4) Teacher Excellence.

          7                 The Education Committee held a

          8  hearing on this new phase just a few weeks after the

          9  announcement. I think it's fair to say that the

         10  level of detail discussed at our January hearing was

         11  very little, especially considering that the

         12  Department of Education plans to implement such

         13  dramatic reforms to our public school system this

         14  September 2007.

         15                 Today, March 5th, 2007, the Committee

         16  plans to focus on one aspect of that reform,

         17  empowerment schools. The empowerment school model

         18  was first piloted through the Autonomy Zone in 2004,

         19  which was expanded to the Empowerment Schools

         20  Initiative just this past September 2006.

         21                 In other words, the empowerment

         22  schools are still in their first year of operation

         23  and implementation. To date, we have heard some

         24  statistics regarding the success of the original 48

         25  Autonomy Zone schools, although I do have a few
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          2  questions about that data, and antidote stories both

          3  good and bad, but regarding the 332 empowerment

          4  schools, I am still not satisfied with what I heard.

          5                 I am very concerned that the

          6  Empowerment School Initiative has not been

          7  adequately evaluated, and I am not entirely sure

          8  that these schools are representative of the entire

          9  school system.

         10                 For example, many of the 48 schools

         11  in the Autonomy Zone Initiative were small schools.

         12  In addition, the schools that became empowerment

         13  schools were invited and selected by the Chancellor

         14  Senior Leadership Team to participate in the

         15  Initiative.

         16                 So, based on what we know, which is

         17  very little, I think it's premature to use the

         18  results from these schools to justify scaling up the

         19  empowerment model so quickly.

         20                 I hope today the Department of

         21  Education will be able to provide us with some solid

         22  evidence of such success within the schools,

         23  academic success, as well as parent, teacher,

         24  principal satisfaction. And in addition, I am not

         25  confident that the principals are given the level of
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          2  support needed to be successful.

          3                 Currently half of the City's

          4  principals have less than three years' experience in

          5  their position, and when preparing for this hearing,

          6  Education Committee staff members and other staff,

          7  heard some mixed reviews from empowerment principals

          8  about the level of support and expertise provided by

          9  their network support team.

         10                 I was also disturbed to learn that

         11  when the Committee staff reached out to principals,

         12  teachers and parents from empowerment zone schools

         13  to ask them to testify about their experiences, many

         14  expressed fear of retaliation and refused to

         15  participate in today's hearing.

         16                 We have also heard stories from

         17  parents who told us that they were harassed, and

         18  worse, that their children were retaliated against

         19  because they spoke out about the conditions at their

         20  school, and that is totally unacceptable.

         21                 Now what I want to emphasize, that we

         22  know that empowerment school model has been working

         23  well in some schools, and not so well in others. And

         24  what we want to do here today is to take stock of

         25  what's working and what isn't working. And quite
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          2  frankly, I think that this is something that the

          3  Department of Education should have done in public

          4  forums before they made the decision to scale up to

          5  this model.

          6                 I have to be honest right now, to let

          7  you know that I am not confident in the Department

          8  of Education's ability to make such large scale

          9  reform. And that lack of confidence, all we have to

         10  do is look back a month ago with the busing fiasco,

         11  our children's education is not something that

         12  should be experimented with like a ping-pong ball,

         13  or a pendulum swing from one side to the other.

         14  That's okay, we'll lose one generation but we'll

         15  maybe save the next generation.

         16                 Every generation of our children is

         17  extremely important, and the utmost importance is to

         18  every parent. We need to take our time, learn what

         19  works, what needs improvement, you know, and then go

         20  from there.

         21                 I am hoping that today we get the

         22  opportunity to hear firsthand how the empowerment

         23  school model has been implemented. And there is

         24  always, always room for improvement. We can never be

         25  too careful with our children's education. And I
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          2  will give you an example. I remember when my

          3  daughter got an opportunity to audition for a dance

          4  program out in California, and it was going to cost

          5  me about $1,500 to fly out there to audition. Her

          6  and myself, stay in a hotel and all of the stuff.

          7  And I asked myself was it worth it, just to go for

          8  an audition? Because I'm not rich, as you know that,

          9  right? And I said to myself that when it comes to

         10  our children, we must give them every opportunity in

         11  order to fulfill their dreams and be successful.

         12  And, so, I decided that the answer was absolutely

         13  yes, that we had to go out there.

         14                 I also want to mention that today the

         15  Education Committee will consider proposed

         16  Resolution 267-A, which calls upon the Department of

         17  Education to assess the impact of its decision to

         18  decrease milk choices in New York City public

         19  schools in order to evaluate the effect of this

         20  policy change on children's milk consumption and

         21  nutrition.

         22                 And we will briefly hear from the

         23  prime sponsor, Council Member Bill DeBlasio, when he

         24  arrives, which he's already arrived, but first

         25  before I turn it over to Council Member DeBlasio, I
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          2  would like to turn the mike over to the New York

          3  City Public Advocate, Betsy Gotbaum, for a short

          4  opening statement.

          5                 Public Advocate Betsy Gotbaum.

          6                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: Actually,

          7  for once I don't have an opening statement. I have

          8  lots of questions.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you. And

         10  let me just introduce other of my colleagues that

         11  have arrived. Up in the front, to my left, is Peter

         12  Vallone, Jr., of Queens; Oliver Koppell of the

         13  Bronx; Dan Garodnick of Manhattan; the Honorable Al

         14  Vann from Brooklyn; and the Honorable -- what's your

         15  name again? Domenic Recchia of Brooklyn. And who

         16  else has joined us? And John Liu. Did I introduce

         17  you earlier, John?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I did. I know,

         20  everyone is honorable here today. But let me just

         21  turn to my colleague, Council Member Bill DeBlasio,

         22  to say a few words on the resolution that we will be

         23  voting on immediately thereafter.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Thank you

         25  very much, Mr. Chairman. And first of all, thank you
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          2  for the hearing you're about to have on the

          3  empowerment schools. I think there are a tremendous

          4  number of questions in our communities. I hear them

          5  from my constituents, I really appreciate that you

          6  are focusing on this kind of gray area for a lot of

          7  us of the empowerment schools.

          8                 I just want to say on Reso 267-A, it

          9  will help us get at what's really going on with the

         10  nutrition policies in the public schools, what's the

         11  real effect of the changes on milk choice, we did

         12  hear into the December hearing that the Chairman put

         13  together on a variety of issues, one of the facts

         14  that came out from the Department of Education was

         15  that school milk consumption has already gone down

         16  ten percent, and I think that has a huge nutritional

         17  impact. I'm very concerned that we keep the flow of

         18  information so we can assess what these changes mean

         19  for our kids. And I say that as a public school

         20  parent who understands just how important those

         21  school meals are to the nutrition of children.

         22                 So, I thank you, Mr. Chairman, very

         23  much for the opportunity to have this resolution

         24  loaded on today, and I look forward to the

         25  information it will bring us from the Department of
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          2  Education.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you, Bill

          4  DeBlasio. We've been also joined by, immediately in

          5  front of me, Gale Brewer of Manhattan.

          6                 Resolution No. 267-A. Billy would you

          7  read it, please.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member

          9  Jackson.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: On the vote of

         11  Resolution 267-A, I recommend a yes vote.

         12                 I vote aye.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: DeBlasio.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Aye.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: Felder.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Aye.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK: Fidler.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Aye.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Foster.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Aye.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Katz.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Aye.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Koppell.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Aye.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Liu.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: Recchia.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Aye.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: Vallone.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I'm going to

          7  abstain.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Vann.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Aye.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Arroyo.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Aye.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK: Garodnick.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Aye.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: Vacca.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Aye.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of 13 in the

         17  affirmative, zero in the negative, and one

         18  abstention, the item is adopted.

         19                 Members, please sign the Committee

         20  report. Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         22                 First we'll hear from the first

         23  panel. Eric Nadelstern, Chief Executive Officer of

         24  the Empowerment Schools of the Department of

         25  Education, and Veronic Conforme. What's your
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          2  position, please? Can you turn on the mic and tell

          3  us what your position is at DOE?

          4                 MS. CONFORME: Deputy CEO.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Deputy CEO of

          6  what?

          7                 MS. CONFORME: Of empowerment schools.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay, thank you.

          9                 Deputy CEO of Empowerment Schools,

         10  okay.

         11                 With that, you can begin with

         12  testimony.

         13                 MR. NADELSTERN: Okay. Good afternoon,

         14  Chair Jackson, and members of the Education

         15  Committee. As you've heard, my name is Eric

         16  Nadelstern. I'm the Chief Executive Officer of

         17  Empowerment Schools at the New York City Department

         18  of Education, and I'm pleased to be joined this

         19  afternoon by my Deputy, Veronica Conforme. We very

         20  much appreciate this opportunity to discuss

         21  empowerment schools with you today.

         22                 Over the course of my 35 years with

         23  the New York City public schools, I've served as a

         24  teacher, a Staff Developer, a Central Office Program

         25  Administrator, an Assistant Principal, Principal of
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          2  the International High School at LaGuardia Community

          3  College, a school I founded and was principal of for

          4  17 years. I've served as a Deputy High School

          5  Superintendent and Deputy Regional Superintendent, a

          6  Senior Instructional Superintendent, as well as

          7  Chief Academic Officer for New Schools, prior to

          8  accepting this responsibility as Chief Executive

          9  Officer of Empowerment Schools.

         10                 Let me provide you with the theory

         11  behind empowerment schools, as well as a historical

         12  perspective, and then describe what our empowerment

         13  schools are doing today, and finally outline our

         14  vision for school empowerment in the future.

         15                 Empowerment schools are based on the

         16  principal that those closest to the students in the

         17  classroom, principals in consultation with teachers

         18  and parents are in the best position to make

         19  important decisions about what students need to

         20  learn and how best to accomplish that. In my 17

         21  years as a principal, I desperately strove to find

         22  the kind of empowerment that we are now offering

         23  public school principals and school communities, and

         24  in fact, at one point converted the International

         25  High School to Charter status, in order to be able
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          2  to devote our time and energy and resource on the

          3  instructional issues in front of us, rather than the

          4  agendas set by those well beyond our school, who

          5  never bothered to learn the names of our children to

          6  meet their parents, to understand the communities

          7  they come from and go home to each evening.

          8                 Everyone outside of this school in

          9  the Empowerment Schools Initiative exist to support

         10  the work of principals, teachers and other school

         11  staff. From our perspective, the role of the central

         12  office is to find the best people available for

         13  those leadership positions to support them, to

         14  develop them, to incent them when they do good work,

         15  to protect them so that they can focus on the work

         16  at hand, but ultimately to hold them accountable for

         17  the highest levels of student achievement.

         18                 In 2004, the Department launched the

         19  Autonomy Zone pilot, starting with 29 schools,

         20  including three charters, and it eventually grew to

         21  48 schools during the 2005, 2006 school year.

         22                 The autonomy zone, as you've heard,

         23  was essentially the first incarnation of

         24  empowerment, schools that participated were largely

         25  free of regional structures and principals were
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          2  given greater flexibility in programming their

          3  schools in budgeting. What we learned during the

          4  pilot is that schools produce much better student

          5  results when principals in consultation with

          6  teachers and parents are given the opportunity to

          7  decide what teachers and students do in classrooms

          8  on a daily basis, and when the central office holds

          9  those principals accountable for doing the best

         10  possible work, and helping students achieve the

         11  highest standards of performance.

         12                 All schools involved in the Autonomy

         13  Zone pilot showed improvement with regard to an

         14  increase in graduation rates, college acceptance

         15  rates, and a decrease in drop out rates compared to

         16  Citywide averages.

         17                 More importantly, the schools that

         18  participated in the Autonomy Zone, outperformed

         19  themselves a year earlier, before they went into the

         20  Autonomy Zone, and at the end of Year '02, the

         21  schools that participated for two years outperformed

         22  the schools that were only in for one year.

         23                 The Autonomy Zone pilot built the

         24  case for more empowerment and greater

         25  accountability. Principals, when given greater

                                                            20

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  decision-making authority and discretion, working

          3  with teachers and parents, can make great strides at

          4  improving the quality of education for the students

          5  they serve.

          6                 As you're aware, last April, on the

          7  basis of the two-year pilot that we ran, Chancellor

          8  Klein invited principals to volunteer to turn their

          9  schools into empowerment schools.

         10                 Hundreds of schools applied and in

         11  June Mayor Bloomberg joined the Chancellor to invite

         12  332 schools, which includes ten Charter schools, to

         13  become empowerment schools. You may ask why Charter

         14  schools? Charter schools already have the autonomy

         15  that empowerment schools were enjoying for the first

         16  time, but miss the affiliation with other schools

         17  they could share things with and learn things from,

         18  and as a consequence, we thought it desirable to

         19  invite them to participate and ten accepted our

         20  invitation.

         21                 Principals at these schools received

         22  substantially greater discretion over their budgets,

         23  educational programming, teacher development, school

         24  scheduling and hiring.

         25                 In exchange for the greater
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          2  flexibility and control, the principals signed

          3  performance agreements that established expectations

          4  and potential consequences.

          5                 In addition, schools received an

          6  average of 100,000 in newly unrestricted funds, as

          7  well as $150,000 in new discretionary funding made

          8  possible by streamlining the central and regional

          9  Department of Education bureaucracy and redirecting

         10  financial resources back to the schools where they

         11  could be used to best affect.

         12                 Principals were then able to allocate

         13  those funds to programs and services that they are

         14  their teachers and school communities valued, rather

         15  than paying for services and programs mandated by

         16  others.

         17                 The Department of Education has

         18  created a lean new customer service focus support

         19  system to help empowerment school principals, and

         20  part of the support system is a market maker

         21  function, which helps principals who were the buyers

         22  and regional DOE staff who represented the sellers

         23  connect in a new empowerment school marketplace.

         24                 Schools completed an application to

         25  become empowerment schools, but I can tell you the
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          2  screen applied was a very light screen, we

          3  eliminated principals under investigation, and

          4  schools in state or federal receivership, and

          5  otherwise any school leader that wished to become an

          6  empowerment school leader had the opportunity to do

          7  so.

          8                 As far as the current empowerment

          9  school, $48 million in costs saved at the regional

         10  and central level were devolved to the 322

         11  non-Charter empowerment schools. Fifty-seven percent

         12  of those funds were used to hire an additional 558

         13  teachers, allowing for a decrease in class size.

         14                 Additionally, the devolved funds

         15  allowed empowerment schools to hire an additional 81

         16  guidance counselors, social workers, school

         17  psychologists and paraprofessionals to assist with

         18  providing improved services to the students enrolled

         19  at these schools.

         20                 Seventy-five percent of the resources

         21  devolved to schools had been used to staff up the

         22  schools, and to provide a greater level of service

         23  to youngsters.

         24                 We learned three major lessons thus

         25  far: The first lesson is that we can't expect
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          2  principals to reform schools unless we're prepared

          3  to align the organizational structure around the

          4  schools, at the regional level, at the Central

          5  Office level, in support of the work that we expect

          6  those principals to do.

          7                 As I know this Committee is aware,

          8  having recently focused on new small schools, the

          9  Department opened 197 new small schools in the last

         10  five years. Those schools are headed by many

         11  principals who graduated from the Leadership Academy

         12  and others, and through the years what they have

         13  told us, in no uncertain terms, is we sent them out

         14  into the school system where only one out of two

         15  students were graduating from high school. We

         16  charged them with reinventing school for themselves

         17  and their students, so that more students would be

         18  more successful. And all too often, when they tried

         19  to vary the practice and the strategies they used,

         20  in order to be more successful, away from those used

         21  by large low-performing schools that we were phasing

         22  out, often we were told why they could not change

         23  their practice, and why they had to do things the

         24  way they're always done. It only stands to reason

         25  that if you're only successful with half of your
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          2  students, and that's the current state of affairs,

          3  then doing what you've always done will not produce

          4  significantly better results, and listening

          5  carefully to principals and others in the schools,

          6  we forged first the autonomy zone and then later the

          7  empowerment school initiative as a way of being more

          8  responsive to the needs of our school communities.

          9                 The second thing we learned was that

         10  when those charged with implementation have the

         11  opportunity to identify the solutions to the

         12  problems they confront, there is a much greater

         13  likelihood they will do everything under their power

         14  to make sure that the initiative succeeds, but more

         15  importantly to do everything necessary to make sure

         16  that students succeed.

         17                 You know, according to the US

         18  Department of Labor in the Year 2010, only 22

         19  percent of the jobs in this country will require a

         20  four-year college degree. That may surprise members

         21  of this panel, most of us in and around public

         22  education think that's a much higher number, but

         23  this country is exporting jobs, even jobs for

         24  well-educated individuals, at a much higher clip,

         25  much faster rate than we're creating them, and if
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          2  the students in our schools are going to compete

          3  with their classmates with students across the City

          4  and around the country and throughout the world, our

          5  schools have to do a better job than they've ever

          6  done before, and the only way we know to encourage

          7  principals and teachers and others at the school

          8  level to work as hard and as smart and focused as

          9  they will need to, to ensure that all of our kids

         10  can be successful, is to give them ownership not

         11  just as a solution, but of the problem so that they

         12  find their own unique solutions, and then do

         13  everything necessary to make sure that kids succeed.

         14                 The third thing we learned is that

         15  networks, specifically voluntary networks where

         16  principals and school communities decide which other

         17  schools they want to network with and learn from,

         18  not on the basis of proximity to one another, but on

         19  the basis of common educational philosophy, that

         20  when you create those kinds of networks of schools,

         21  principals and teachers have an enormous amount to

         22  learn from each other and there are very significant

         23  ways to identify the best practices in place in

         24  those schools, and then to generalize those

         25  practices across all of our schools so that more
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          2  students can be more successful.

          3                 I'm pleased to give my Deputy

          4  Veronica Conforme a few moments of my testimony to

          5  describe the structure we have thrown up in support

          6  of 332 empowerment schools.

          7                 MS. CONFORME: Thanks, Eric.

          8                 The support that empowerment schools

          9  receive is we have a network structure, as Eric

         10  mentioned, we have 14 networks throughout the City

         11  providing support guidance and advocacies on behalf

         12  of our schools. Each team is comprised and led by a

         13  network leader. They have functional expertise in

         14  that team that includes instruction, assessment,

         15  business operation, special education, compliance,

         16  ELL youth development support. Those are the

         17  functional expertise of the network team.

         18                 Each network supports, each network

         19  team supports 20 to 25 schools. The network team is

         20  hired and evaluated by the network of schools, with

         21  which they are aligned. They spend most of their

         22  time working one-on-one and in small groups with

         23  principals resolving day-to-day issues, coaching and

         24  navigating the system.

         25                 We have also a back office operations
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          2  support called the integrated service center located

          3  at 131 Livingston and Brooklyn. That organization is

          4  there to support the network teams and the schools

          5  on more technical issues around human resources,

          6  payroll, health, suspensions and other compliance

          7  issues that our schools face.

          8                 That's the network structure.

          9                 MR. NADELSTERN: I'll say in closing

         10  that I'm sure it comes as no news to the Committee

         11  that the tragedy around public education in New York

         12  in 2007, is that it's possible to walk into a

         13  kindergarten class in any borough in the City on

         14  opening day and with an appalling degree of accuracy

         15  predict which students will graduate from high

         16  school 13 years later on the basis of such factors,

         17  as race, ethnicity, how well the students are

         18  dressed.

         19                 School empowerment, together with the

         20  Department's other initiatives around

         21  accountability, fair student funding and teacher

         22  quality are our best thinking around how to dispel

         23  the reality represented by that fact, and ensure

         24  that we move to the kind of school system where

         25  regardless of background, regardless of race,
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          2  regardless of socioeconomic status, every student is

          3  given the opportunity to reach their full potential,

          4  and where you hold us accountable for doing just

          5  that.

          6                 As I sit here in front of you this

          7  afternoon, I have worked for 13 Chancellors over 35

          8  years, what I can tell you is the school system that

          9  I worked in was one where not one of those

         10  Chancellors was accountable for high standards of

         11  student performance, they were replaced for every

         12  reason on the sun, under the sun, but not because of

         13  persistent education failure. The superintendents I

         14  worked for were not replaced because kids weren't

         15  learning, the principals I worked with during 17

         16  years as a principal retain their jobs whether the

         17  kids were learning or not. It's time to install real

         18  accountability in the New York City public schools,

         19  but to empower those who have to do the job on a

         20  day-to-day basis to do what they know best, and that

         21  is educate our young people to the highest possible

         22  standards.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You can applaud.

         24                 (Applause.)

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, Mr.
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          2  Nadelstern, let me thank you and the Deputy Chief

          3  CEO for coming in and giving testimony, and we're

          4  going to open up questions. My colleagues, you know,

          5  the format, I've changed the format because there

          6  are so many members of the Education Committee, I

          7  want to ensure that everyone asks a question, and

          8  not be the last one and not ask a question or to

          9  have a question that they may have already asked.

         10  So, we'll limit it to one full question, and we're

         11  going to continue to move around, and hopefully all

         12  of the questions that you may have will get

         13  answered.

         14                 But let me just ask, you said as far

         15  as, and giving your closing statement that no

         16  Chancellor was fired for not achieving high

         17  standards, what do you consider high standards?

         18                 MR. NADELSTERN: Well, Mr. Chairman,

         19  as the lifelong educator, as the parent of a

         20  youngster who attended and graduated from the New

         21  York City public schools, as a graduate myself, the

         22  highest standard is the one we ought to strive for

         23  and that is for all students to graduate from high

         24  school. But not just to graduate, to graduate with

         25  the skills necessary for a post-secondary
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          2  educational opportunity, because that's the nature

          3  of the new century that we live in, and the ticket

          4  to full participation of the political and economic

          5  life of this society.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: What if in a

          7  scenario, if the standards that we, as a society,

          8  measure a system by, i.e., standardized test and

          9  other measures had not significantly improved within

         10  a five or six-year period?

         11                 MR. NADELSTERN: First off, if you're

         12  looking over the last five years, I think there is a

         13  considerable body of data that shows movement in the

         14  right direction, not just improved reading and math

         15  scores, relative to the rest of New York State,

         16  relative to other major areas in the country, but

         17  also an increase in the high school graduation rate.

         18  Is it fast enough? Is it considerable enough? I

         19  think over the course of the next five years, six

         20  years, we need to do considerably better, and I

         21  think the strategies that we've outlined are the way

         22  to get there.

         23                 What we do know is that when you look

         24  at the graduation rates of the new small schools we

         25  opened, and I was very much a part of that, as
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          2  Deputy and Superintendent for New and Small Bronx

          3  High Schools, and Deputy and Regional Superintendent

          4  in Region 2 and Chief Academic Officer for New

          5  Schools, if we look at the graduation rates for the

          6  first new small schools that had graduation classes

          7  last June, we exceeded the Citywide graduation rate

          8  considerably. The graduation rates were approached

          9  80 percent for the first graduating classes of those

         10  schools, we're hopeful that it will be sustained,

         11  but that's not a high enough target. If you're the

         12  parent of one of the 20 percent of the children, one

         13  out of five who did not graduate, then that figure

         14  is nowhere near successful, and we've got to work as

         15  hard as we can possibly work to make sure that all

         16  of the kids succeed.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: That's only one

         18  small, tiny example though. I mean, you forgot about

         19  all of these huge large schools that students have

         20  been dumped in to make room for the small schools;

         21  isn't that correct?

         22                 MR. NADELSTERN: It's actually not the

         23  way I view it. What I understand is that for a

         24  generation, I was there as a teacher, as a principal

         25  and as a superintendent, for a generation we
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          2  warehoused the hardest to educate kids in

          3  neighborhood academic comprehensive high schools,

          4  and what's happened over the course of the last five

          5  years, is we've created more opportunities for more

          6  kids than ever before.

          7                 In fact, in my home Borough of the

          8  Bronx, there are now not simply 20 possibilities for

          9  a high school as there were in 2001 when I became

         10  Deputy High School superintendent. We've opened 78

         11  new small high schools, and in addition to large

         12  successful schools like Lehman High School,

         13  represented by Councilman Vacca and others in the

         14  Bronx, parents and children have more opportunities

         15  today than ever before.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: But what

         17  happened to those large schools? Have you written

         18  off those large schools in the Bronx?

         19                 MR. NADELSTERN: Not at all. We closed

         20  a number of them, those where three out of ten kids

         21  were graduated, and we continue to work with the

         22  existing schools, large and small, many of which

         23  joined the empowerment schools initiative to improve

         24  student performance.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, would you
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          2  agree that if the State of New York says right now

          3  that the graduation rate of New York City high

          4  school students is 43 percent, that that's a

          5  terrible graduation rate, totally unacceptable and

          6  non-satisfactory?

          7                 MR. NADELSTERN: I would say this: The

          8  rate the City publishes is 58 percent, but even at

          9  58 percent, it is much too low a graduation rate and

         10  totally unacceptable.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You know what

         12  the State says, right? The State says that the

         13  graduation rate is 43 percent based on the cohort of

         14  the graduation within four years. That's how they

         15  evaluate all of the schools in the entire State of

         16  New York, and not because New York City has over a

         17  million children we're going to evaluate New York

         18  City differently.

         19                 MR. NADELSTERN: Chairman, let me say

         20  this: In any situation where only one out of two

         21  kids is graduating --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Less than one

         23  out of two.

         24                 MR. NADELSTERN: It is unacceptable. I

         25  understand.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. And who do

          3  you hold accountable for that?

          4                 MR. NADELSTERN: Chairman, you need to

          5  hold us accountable for demonstrating that we're

          6  improving on those numbers.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: The Mayor said

          8  that he wants to be the education Mayor, do we hold

          9  him accountable when the State says that eighth

         10  grade math scores have not improved within the past

         11  five years; who do we hold accountable for that?

         12                 MR. NADELSTERN: Chairman, the eighth

         13  grade math scores in New York State have been

         14  stagnant for the last five years.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I'm talking

         16  about in New York City.

         17                 MR. NADELSTERN: And New York City has

         18  out-performed the other large cities --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: No, but when

         20  there is lack of improvement in New York City

         21  specifically, who do we blame for that?

         22                 MR. NADELSTERN: I stand here in front

         23  of you saying that the City school system needs to

         24  do a much better job and empowerment schools is one

         25  vehicle for moving in that direction.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay, thank you.

          3                 Public Advocate Betsy Gotbaum.

          4                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: Good

          5  afternoon, and thank you for your presentation.

          6  Eric, nice to see you again.

          7                 MR. NADELSTERN: Good to see you.

          8                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: I'm a little

          9  bit confused, and this may be just because we

         10  haven't seen enough of the systemic analysis that

         11  I'd like to see, but has there been a really good

         12  systemic analysis of what makes an empowerment

         13  school better or worse, and going back to the

         14  Autonomy schools, are these analyses available that

         15  we could see? Because it's a little confusing to us

         16  at this moment in time why you would redirect so

         17  much money and resources, unless that analysis is

         18  available.

         19                 MR. NADELSTERN: You know,

         20  unfortunately, given the way it is collected and

         21  reported around student performance, and the lag in

         22  the time it takes the State to grade results, there

         23  is a delay in releasing those results. Graduation

         24  results, for instance, from last June are still not

         25  available. So, what we did around the Autonomy Zone,
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          2  is we collected data, self-reported data from

          3  schools, that the Division of Assessment and

          4  Accountability is now in the process of verifying,

          5  and we'll be happy to share that data with you and

          6  the Committee.

          7                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: Yes, I would

          8  like that very much.

          9                 MR. NADELSTERN: What that data

         10  reveals are higher levels of student performance

         11  across the indicators that we looked at, and those

         12  were attendance, attention, course and exam pass

         13  rates, graduation and college acceptance.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Council Member

         15  John Liu, and then Council Member Jimmy Vacca.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you, Mr.

         17  Chairman.

         18                 Mr. Nadelstern, I want to thank you

         19  for your testimony. Your testimony sounds great.

         20  It's awesome. But not a single one of your

         21  statements about empowerment schools does not also

         22  apply to schools in general. So, why this push for

         23  this special class of schools?

         24                 Empowerment schools are based on a

         25  principal that those closest to the students in the
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          2  classroom are in the best position to make important

          3  decisions? That's true of every single school. Every

          4  single one of the statements that you said

          5  reportedly to tout the success and the potential of

          6  these empowerment schools applies to every school,

          7  so why don't we just make the entire system

          8  empowerment schools?

          9                 I'm not suggesting that should be

         10  done, but I'm saying, you know, what does this

         11  testimony mean?

         12                 MR. NADELSTERN: Okay. So, let me

         13  explain.

         14                 The structures we've thrown up around

         15  322 empowerment schools, self-form networks of 20 to

         16  25 principals, served by a network leader that

         17  they've chosen themselves and a team of four,

         18  supported by an integrated service center, was 40

         19  percent leaner in staff support than the regional

         20  structures that they were meant to replace, saving

         21  $48 million for these 322.

         22                 Now, what we did is we put the money

         23  where it could be best spent and that is in schools'

         24  budgets, and most of the money, three-quarters of

         25  it, was spent hiring more staff.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Mr. Nadelstern,

          3  13 Chancellors, I definitely commend you for lasting

          4  that long, and you sound remarkably like the current

          5  Chancellor, because he says a lot of great things.

          6  We're still looking for results in this Committee

          7  and I know that our Chairman is looking for these

          8  results.

          9                 I have one question for you; and that

         10  is, you state that the graduation rate was 79

         11  percent versus 58 percent Citywide; what was the

         12  graduation rate for those same autonomy schools the

         13  year before?

         14                 MR. NADELSTERN: Interesting. I don't

         15  have that number with me --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: That's

         17  ridiculous. That's ridiculous for you to say you

         18  don't have the numbers when --

         19                 MR. NADELSTERN: I don't have it with

         20  me. What I can tell you is --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: What was the

         22  college acceptance rate? It was 90 percent versus 74

         23  percent Citywide. What was the college acceptance

         24  rate at those same schools the year before?

         25                 MR. NADELSTERN: It was lower, and we
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          2  will get you those numbers. I will get you those

          3  numbers.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: And I would like

          5  to know about the drop-out rate, too? Because you

          6  know what? Your testimony talks about all schools

          7  involved in the Autonomy Zone pilot showed

          8  significant improvement. This is your own testimony.

          9                 MR. NADELSTERN: That's right.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: With regard to an

         11  increase in graduation rates, college acceptance

         12  rates, and a decrease in drop out rates compared to

         13  Citywide averages; I mean you should have those at

         14  the tip of your fingers, because you're using them

         15  in your testimony touting the so-called success of

         16  these empowerment schools when, in fact, this is why

         17  we're holding these oversight hearings because we

         18  never get straight answers, and you keep touting the

         19  success, and we don't see the success. Meanwhile we

         20  see the detriment that the other schools have to

         21  suffer through.

         22                 MR. NADELSTERN: Mr. Liu, I'm not sure

         23  what detriment you're referring to. What I can tell

         24  you is this --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Well --
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          2                 MR. NADELSTERN: What I can tell you

          3  is this: That the data we're citing, which

          4  admittedly, I mentioned a few moments ago, is data

          5  that we collected through the schools' self-reported

          6  data, evidence, gains in each of those areas where

          7  each school outperformed themselves prior to coming

          8  in, and we will provide the Committee with that

          9  data.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Mr. Nadelstern, I

         11  look forward to that information. It's three simple

         12  numbers. Three simple numbers that you must

         13  absolutely have accessible right now in order to

         14  have made the statement prior, that there was an

         15  increase, a significant increase. Otherwise it's

         16  just another example of another numbers game that

         17  the Chancellor plays to justify his own existence.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         19                 Council Member Jimmy Vacca of the

         20  Bronx.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Thank you, Mr.

         22  Nadelstern. My concern, and I wanted to zero in on

         23  where parents go under the empowerment model should

         24  parents disagree with policy decisions made at the

         25  school level.
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          2                 I speak in that regard because

          3  although we may say there are school leadership

          4  teams, there are Community Education Councils, they

          5  are advisory, parent coordinators give information,

          6  they don't deal with empowering parents relative to

          7  policy, budget and related items.

          8                 The District Superintendents, I don't

          9  know what their roll is and I don't know what their

         10  roll will be.

         11                 We have many schools that are in the

         12  empowerment model that are SURR schools, that have

         13  been identified under No Child Left Behind, as

         14  schools under improvement plans. If parents feel

         15  that they did not have a role or they disagree with

         16  a policy decision affecting their children. It could

         17  be allocation of staff regarding music and math and

         18  reading, budget, where do parents go under the

         19  current model and where will they go when they are

         20  reorganized in September?

         21                 MR. NADELSTERN: Thank you for that

         22  question, Council Member Vacca. As you pointed out,

         23  empowerment schools, like all others, have parent

         24  associations, they've got school leadership teams,

         25  they respond to Community Education Councils,
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          2  they're respective Community Education Council, the

          3  Community Superintendent for Elementary and Middle

          4  Schools still plays a role around the oversight of

          5  elementary and middle schools. High schools, of

          6  course, are under the supervision of the Chancellor.

          7  If a parent has a specific complaint, we encourage

          8  them to first bring the complaint to the principal.

          9  If it can't be resolved with the principal, the

         10  network leader is the next recourse. We understand

         11  the network leader is not a supervisor, but the

         12  network leader is able, very often, most often to

         13  facilitate issues that parents have and complaints

         14  that they have.

         15                 And, finally, if it still has not

         16  been resolved in speaking to the principal and

         17  speaking to the network later, I take calls every

         18  day, took one this morning from the parent of a

         19  student at Satellite Academy, the kid came to school

         20  late this morning, the parent wanted the lateness

         21  excused, and I'm happy to accept those schools, and

         22  we'll have a conversation with the principal to

         23  represent the parents' perspective as well.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Without a

         25  question, another question, I don't have another
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          2  one, my statement to you is that we're moving it

          3  further away, we're moving parental input further

          4  away because we know, and as I stated originally,

          5  the CECs and the SLTs are really there to consult

          6  and have forums and have meetings, but they're

          7  really not involved in policy making in a meaningful

          8  way. And when you tell parents to call the network

          9  leader, how many parents know who the network leader

         10  is?

         11                 And you do respond, Eric. I've called

         12  you and you do respond. But how many parents know to

         13  call Eric Nadelstern? This is a question of what are

         14  we putting out there to parents?

         15                 MR. NADELSTERN: Councilman, my e-mail

         16  address, as well as the network leaders, are on the

         17  Department's website.

         18                 I know that requires having a

         19  computer and we need to publicize it more widely.

         20  What I can tell you is this: Our commitment is to

         21  respond to every parent within 24 to 48 hours. It

         22  doesn't mean we can always resolve the problem to

         23  the parent's satisfaction, but if we can't within

         24  that time frame, no more than 48 hours, we will get

         25  back to that parent and explain why we can't resolve
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          2  it in a way they would have liked to have seen, or

          3  with the solution that we were able to come up with.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: You are not

          5  concerned with having schools that are on a SURR

          6  list or NCLB list or having a principal there one or

          7  two years who did not have previous AP experience,

          8  you're not concerned with putting them in the

          9  empowerment district?

         10                 MR. NADELSTERN: I'm not for the

         11  following reason: As I mentioned, 209 of the 332

         12  empowerment schools are led by principals who have

         13  been in that position for fewer than three years.

         14                 I, myself, started my own school in

         15  1985 and have lived through that experience and one

         16  I know, is that the opportunity to remain focused,

         17  not to be pulled away from your school on someone

         18  else's agenda, and to have additional resources with

         19  which to support your school is critical. Plus, the

         20  teams we've assigned to those schools to establish

         21  regular contact, they're in those schools on a

         22  weekly basis.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you. We're

         24  going to finish the call on Resolution Number 267-A.

         25  Please finish the roll.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member

          3  Martinez.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you,

          5  Mr. Chair. I vote aye.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Yassky.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Aye.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: The vote now stands at

          9  15 in the affirmative, zero in the negative and one

         10  abstention.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: We'll hear from

         12  Council Member Bill DeBlasio of Brooklyn, next

         13  questioner.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Thank you,

         15  Mr. Chair.

         16                 I want to follow on Council Member

         17  Vacca's question. But first I have to say, I thought

         18  the exchange of Council Member Liu was troubling in

         19  the sense that I think he asked for extremely

         20  straight-forward obvious data from you, the kind

         21  that anyone coming to an oversight hearing on such a

         22  narrow topic should bring, I believe. And I respect

         23  your professionalism, I respect what you've done for

         24  the school system, but I feel ultimately, I'm very

         25  frustrated by the reality that I have certain
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          2  disdain in the Tweed building towards elected

          3  officials and a certain sense that we say what's

          4  convenient and don't say some other things we should

          5  say. Well, I think there's almost a Wizard of Oz-

          6  like quality when I hear DOE testimony, because

          7  everything seems to be perfect and it's as much

          8  soundbites as any elected official ever hoped to be,

          9  but when we ask an obvious question like does your

         10  data perhaps say that these schools are already

         11  strong and therefore there hasn't been improvement

         12  because of a new model, you suddenly don't have the

         13  information from previous years that would show us

         14  what the truth is.

         15                 So, I would just have to say it's

         16  very frustrating when people come with incomplete

         17  information.

         18                 The quick question following on

         19  Council Member Vacca. I don't hear you saying what

         20  the role will be now of District Superintendents,

         21  and I don't think you're acknowledging the fact that

         22  there is something very inorganic, something very

         23  artificial about parents trying to relate to

         24  different people all the time.

         25                 Now, here is a network leader, and
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          2  here is someone at the Tweed Building, and here is

          3  someone they never heard of, and there is no sense

          4  of geography and localness to it. Even if you may

          5  give them the best answer in the world, it's

          6  absolutely artificial. They don't know who you are.

          7  It doesn't connect back to the communities.

          8                 My question is simple: Does this

          9  latest reform proposal mean that we're going to

         10  reassert the role of district superintendents in

         11  district offices so that physically a parent seeking

         12  answers beyond that which a principal could give,

         13  can go into a location in their community, talk to

         14  people based on their community who know their

         15  community and actually get answers, whether it's a

         16  network person or someone else? Are parents going to

         17  be able to do that now?

         18                 MR. NADELSTERN: The commitment is to

         19  ensure the continuation of a community

         20  superintendent position, to support that office, and

         21  to ensure that parents can in fact walk in and ask

         22  those questions, and to connect the community

         23  superintendents to an even greater extent, to the

         24  schools they serve and exist now. That is the

         25  commitment.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Thank you,

          3  Mr. Chair.

          4                 MR. NADELSTERN: I also, if I may?

          5  You're right in chastising me for not recalling the

          6  base graduation rate for the schools prior to

          7  becoming empowerment schools, what I can tell you is

          8  that I know that the increase was 11 percent on a

          9  year-to-year basis. What I don't recall is what the

         10  base was when they came in. I should have committed

         11  it to memory, I should have had it in writing. I

         12  have committed to providing the Counsel with that

         13  data at the earliest possible opportunity.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Mr. Nadelstern,

         15  I don't think that anyone expects you to have that

         16  in your mind, but we expect you to have, especially

         17  when it's a topic on oversight hearing on

         18  empowerment zone schools, to have your book with you

         19  so you can turn back to it, or one of your

         20  associates can turn back and give you that

         21  information.

         22                 MR. NADELSTERN: I understand.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Next we'll hear

         24  from Dan Garodnick from Manhattan and then Oliver

         25  Koppell of the Bronx.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Thank you,

          3  Mr. Chairman.

          4                 Mr. Nadelstern, I want to just

          5  address a concern that is out there, and you're

          6  hearing about it a lot today, and I'm sure you'll

          7  hear about it more, the issue about what is to come

          8  and what the new system is going to look like.

          9                 We are particularly sensitive to that

         10  here in the Education Committee because of the sheer

         11  absence of consultation with us, with parents, with

         12  administrators of schools, the speed of

         13  implementation as we understand it, principals are

         14  being asked to make decisions by the end of April

         15  with information for them to be able to make those

         16  decisions by the beginning of April, a current lack

         17  of information about the options that are out there,

         18  and a fear that what will happen will be autonomy in

         19  exchange for a lack of support, whether they choose

         20  an empowerment model or an LSO or a PSO, and from my

         21  personal perspective the argument has not clearly

         22  been made as to why the change is being made all

         23  together.

         24                 I heard the Mayor say in the State of

         25  the City Speech that the regions have outlived their
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          2  usefulness, their mission has been accomplished, and

          3  yet I was under the impression that this was the

          4  system that had been proposed to reform the school

          5  system and that was the system to stay. So, either

          6  the perspective has changed or something else is

          7  going on here, and I just believe my only question

          8  to you, since I'm only allowed one question, is if

          9  you can help me figure out, for the benefit of

         10  principals, what services will be available through

         11  the empowerment model that are distinct from the

         12  other two models that are being presented to

         13  parents, to principals?

         14                 MR. NADELSTERN: Sure.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: An example

         16  that is, you know, the Reader Recovery Program,

         17  which is something that helps bring first graders up

         18  to speed, we understand, I understand that may only

         19  be available in an LSO or a PSO model, but not

         20  necessarily in the empowerment model.

         21                 So, can you help us understand, and I

         22  know this is sort of a back-door way of getting this

         23  information, but frankly, principals do not know the

         24  answers to these very basic questions and they're

         25  flying blind here. So, I ask you, can you help us
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          2  draw those distinctions, what services will be

          3  available for principals under the empowerment as

          4  opposed to the other two models?

          5                 MR. NADELSTERN: First, they're not

          6  flying quite as blind as you might think. There are

          7  332 schools that have gone through half a year or

          8  more as empowerment schools. And we are now hosting

          9  open houses around the City, publicized in the

         10  Principals Weekly and all principals are invited to

         11  attend to hear from their colleagues what being an

         12  empowerment school principal actually meant. So, at

         13  least for that alternative we're --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: I do

         15  appreciate that, but just in fairness, we're talking

         16  about the reorganization of an entire school system,

         17  and we're asking principals to make decisions within

         18  a 30-day period without real adequate time for them

         19  to consult with their leadership teams, and without

         20  the ability to really carefully deliberate what

         21  they're doing.

         22                 So, I'm glad to hear that they're

         23  open houses at the 332, but, frankly, I don't think

         24  that that addresses the absence of information for

         25  the principals.
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          2                 MR. NADELSTERN: And I agree we've got

          3  to get more information out there.

          4                 In fact, I'm going to be leaving here

          5  a little early today because I'm going to be on a

          6  panel with Baruch College speaking about this with

          7  some of my colleagues who will be heading up

          8  learning support organizations.

          9                 Let me explain it this way, in terms

         10  of what we're attempting to accomplish. Remember the

         11  heart of this is to put more resources, more

         12  responsibility, more authority and more

         13  accountability at the school level. When we began

         14  the empowerment school initiative, half of every

         15  education dollar allocated in this City went to

         16  schools. Only half. 37 cents at the discretion of

         17  the principal in the school community.

         18                 For empowerment schools, because

         19  we've cut back on the out-of-schools structures and

         20  then translated those savings into direct budget

         21  increases for schools dollar-for-dollar, we've

         22  gotten that number up to two-thirds of every

         23  education dollar for empowerment schools, it's in

         24  the school with 50 cents at the discretion of the

         25  principal.
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          2                 Now, from my perspective, having

          3  spent half my career as a New York City Public High

          4  School Principal, that's not enough. We know our

          5  schools are under-resourced, given the depth of

          6  need. And we know there are places in this country,

          7  in Canada, in other countries around the world, that

          8  have been able to figure out how to run public

          9  education systems, where more of the resource is

         10  actually available at the school level where it's

         11  needed most, and that in essence is the goal.

         12                 As far as the support, we're there to

         13  support schools, the empowerment school team that we

         14  described, a five-member team - a network leader,

         15  two achievement coordinators, a business services

         16  manager, a special services coordinator - we're

         17  there to support principals whenever they call us

         18  and request assistance. It doesn't matter whether

         19  it's around budget or it's around staffing, or

         20  placement or special education or how best to serve

         21  English Language Learners. What we don't do is

         22  purchase professional development services on their

         23  behalf, but have instead put that resource in the

         24  school, and when the school contacts us and says,

         25  you know, I could really use some great professional
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          2  development or reading recovery or some program that

          3  we think will make a difference, or here is my need,

          4  could you suggest a program that you think will make

          5  a difference? We create that opportunity and give

          6  the schools a chance to purchase it.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I'm sorry, Mr.

          8  Nadelstern, did you answer his question?

          9                 MR. NADELSTERN: I'm trying to get to

         10  the answer.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I'm serious. Did

         12  you answer what specific programs?

         13                 MR. NADELSTERN: We don't force 332

         14  schools to adopt the same program.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: No. Maybe I

         16  wasn't clear.

         17                 Mr. Chairman, if you may allow me?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Yes. After you

         19  got finished after three or four minutes, I'm still

         20  like lost. Did he answer the question?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: I can

         22  assure you, it is not your fault.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. I thought

         24  it was only me, you know?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: No, it's
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          2  not only you. It may be mine, but I will try again.

          3                 I really want to understand, the

          4  services that will be available to principals, in

          5  the model that you are describing, the one that you

          6  are responsible, in contrast to the others, right?

          7                 MR. NADELSTERN: The others, right.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Now, in

          9  answer to the question, you said that you have been

         10  very successful by bringing more accountability to

         11  the school level, more of every dollar to each

         12  empowerment school, and that you are there to

         13  support principals in your 332, or how ever many it

         14  may end up being at the end of the day, and that the

         15  thing that you do not do is purchase professional

         16  development services.

         17                 I still do not have a clear

         18  understanding, or any understanding, frankly, of

         19  what sort of services that will be provided in the

         20  other models in contrast to yours, and I gave one

         21  example as the reader recovery program.

         22                 There are any number of those,

         23  anything from summer school issues, to purchasing

         24  issues, to disciplinary issues, or any issues at all

         25  that exist for principal --
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          2                 MR. NADELSTERN: Well, here's the

          3  distinction I'm making Councilman. What I'm saying

          4  is that the basic difference between the empowerment

          5  school model and the LSO, Learning Support

          6  Organization model, is the LSO model will come

          7  complete with a professional development package for

          8  school staff, teachers and others, as well as for

          9  the principal, around a belief set that emanates

         10  from different curricular, instructional and

         11  programmatic models that exist out in the real

         12  world, things like reading recovery, where schools

         13  will purchase, by selecting that model they in

         14  essence will purchase a full-service professional

         15  development package.

         16                 The difference, the main difference

         17  in service, is that we are not imposing professional

         18  development on schools. Giving them the resource to

         19  buy it ala carte, as you might describe, from a

         20  variety of different places, the Learning Support

         21  Organization will package those services around a

         22  particular learning philosophy or instructional

         23  methodology that schools will be able to buy.

         24                 They, themselves, will describe it in

         25  greater terms, all I can describe is what we offer,

                                                            57

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  and we offer support that does not impose a

          3  particular professional development model, but gives

          4  the school the resources, the dollars to purchase

          5  that from universities or elsewhere, and we provide

          6  assistance in identifying where they might find that

          7  service, should they choose to avail themselves.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Well, I'm

          9  not going to abuse my privilege here, but I just

         10  will, I will say that I am a little lost in the

         11  jargon, frankly, and I'm lost in the fact that we

         12  are a month away from schools being asked to make

         13  very, very difficult decisions and the distinction

         14  that I hear between empowerment and LSO, I didn't

         15  hear a distinction between that and the PSO, is that

         16  one comes as a full package and one comes where you

         17  sort of buy ala carte the issues of what the costs

         18  are to any given school or when exactly this

         19  information is coming - these are all open questions

         20  for everybody, all of us, and principals who are

         21  going to see these choices on their desks almost

         22  imminently.

         23                 So, I thank the Chairman for his

         24  indulgence here, and I am left with a lot of

         25  questions. So, thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

          3                 Oliver Koppell of the Bronx.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you,

          5  Mr. Chairman.

          6                 I come from this with a perspective

          7  of someone who was a Chair for three years of a

          8  local district school board, and we had a model that

          9  we had a large district, we had over 50 schools, and

         10  we, as the Board, had some responsibilities for what

         11  was happening in that school, and of course, our

         12  superintendent had the responsibility, and more of

         13  the direct executive function, and we evaluated our

         14  schools, we created an evaluation where we looked at

         15  all sorts of things, not only academic. We looked at

         16  scores, we looked at the number of kids that were

         17  level one, two, three and four. We also looked at

         18  things like attendance. We looked at things like

         19  cleanliness, on a periodic basis, we required

         20  reports from the principal, we looked at how many of

         21  the special ed kids or how many kids needed

         22  individual attention. I don't remember all the

         23  jargon anymore, but how many kids who needed

         24  individual attention were getting that individual

         25  attention. We had a whole number of indicia that we
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          2  put together, we studied the schools, and then where

          3  we saw they were lacking, we called the principal in

          4  or we asked the superintendent to report to us why

          5  those deficiencies existed. And we also were

          6  available for parents who came to us and said at

          7  this school, at PS 7, something is wrong, and we

          8  could then respond.

          9                 Now, if we eliminate now four years

         10  or so you created regions, so to some extent, as I

         11  understood it, and also as a public official now I

         12  interacted with the regions, the same kind of

         13  supervision or perhaps a little less intensively was

         14  applied by the regions. Now, in this new model, it

         15  seems to me that's all disappearing. So, how are we

         16  going to really measure accountability on a regular

         17  basis, not just every June when we look at

         18  graduation rates, but on a regular basis as we did

         19  as a school board, and how a parent -- and I

         20  follow-up Council Member Vacca's very good approach,

         21  how are parents going to interact? You can't tell me

         22  that giving us your telephone number -- there are

         23  more than a million kids, all those million parents

         24  can't all call you. There has to be some sort of

         25  structure there.
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          2                 And also, if I may say so, you, I'm

          3  sure you're tremendously talented, that's why you've

          4  gained the position you're at, but not everybody who

          5  becomes a principal is going to be able to start a

          6  school the way you did. Not everybody has your

          7  talent. And I'm not being facetious. There are many

          8  people who come into this system or become

          9  principals who need the kind of support and help and

         10  sometimes need to be removed. How is that

         11  accountability going to be achieved in a

         12  decentralized model?

         13                 MR. NADELSTERN: Councilman, first,

         14  thank you for those questions. You should know that

         15  I not only live in your district, but PS 95 is

         16  visible from my kitchen window. I attended schools

         17  in --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: PS 95, I

         19  didn't hear what you said.

         20                 MR. NADELSTERN: Is visible from my

         21  kitchen window.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Oh, it's

         23  visible from your kitchen.

         24                 MR. NADELSTERN: And it's where my

         25  daughter went to school.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: It needs some

          3  help, although it's better.

          4                 MR. NADELSTERN: And I am aware of the

          5  fine work that the school board did when you were

          6  there.

          7                 Let me say this, that first off, we

          8  don't wait to have the scores compiled at the end of

          9  the year.

         10                 Over the course of the last three

         11  years it's been necessary to remove principals from

         12  the Autonomy Zone, from under the Autonomy Zone and

         13  now under empowerment schools, because of legal

         14  issues, because of ethical issues. And sometimes

         15  because of just non-performance issues, and I assure

         16  you that we have not hesitated to do that.

         17                 In the case of K to 8 schools, it's

         18  been in consultation with Community School District

         19  Superintendents and of course to the high schools

         20  the Chancellor has that authority.

         21                 You should also know that the

         22  empowerment schools led the accountability

         23  initiative, but it will now be available to all of

         24  the schools in the system, and the Office of

         25  Accountability at the Department of Education,
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          2  beginning next year will issue a progress report to

          3  every school in the system. That progress report

          4  will look at all of the indicia and indicators that

          5  you mentioned and then some.

          6                 It is set up to assess not just

          7  absolute progress from year-to-year, but also how

          8  like populated schools compare to each other, so

          9  principals and parents and members of the community

         10  can see how their school compares to other schools

         11  with similar students with similar needs.

         12                 In addition to that, every

         13  empowerment school underwent a full three-day

         14  quality review, where a team of trained educators

         15  spent three days at the school looking at exactly

         16  the kinds of indicators and processes that school

         17  boards used to look at, and engaging the principal

         18  in dialogue. And I'm pleased to say that the

         19  principals I've spoken with felt that it was an

         20  honest assessment of their school, and one that they

         21  learned an enormous amount from in terms of

         22  improving the school in the future.

         23                 Next year all 1,400 schools will

         24  receive both a progress report and a quality review.

         25  Every school will receive a letter grade, A, B, C, D
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          2  or F, which will be the result of its own progress

          3  and comparison to other schools. I'm sure in this

          4  Committee and in others will debate the accuracy of

          5  those assessments, but they're intended to be

          6  completely transparent and clear to parents, unlike

          7  NCLB rhetoric around SINI and SURR and other

          8  acronyms that parents might not be familiar with.

          9  Parents understand the difference between an A

         10  school and a D school, they will want to send their

         11  kids to schools that achieve at the highest levels,

         12  and it's up to us to use that assessment as a way to

         13  drive continuous school improvement.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         15                 Council Member Gale Brewer. I'm going

         16  to ask that you try to limit your answer to the

         17  specific question, if you don't mind.

         18                 Council Member Brewer.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you very

         20  much.

         21                 First, you should know that some

         22  principals called me today, to make you feel better,

         23  Eric, and said that they liked empowerment schools,

         24  and they want to make sure that we keep them. And

         25  there are principals who are fabulous at this. It's
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          2  just so confusing to those of us who are trying to

          3  be supportive of them, of you, of the students and

          4  parents.

          5                 Let me give you an example. If you

          6  follow the money, which I think is important, I know

          7  you mentioned that are going back into these

          8  schools, but then we hear that Project Arts is, we

          9  don't know, we just know that it's in the papers,

         10  it's not existing anymore. We wonder if it's going

         11  to go into other enrichment programs which are

         12  important, but for those of us who believe, as

         13  certainly Domenic Recchia does, I think all my

         14  colleagues, very, very strongly in the arts, and

         15  he's put in CASA for the after school, I think you

         16  know the depth with which we go to support the arts

         17  because they support all the other improvements.

         18                 So, can you give us a breakdown as to

         19  how the empowerment zones are spending their money

         20  and if the arts coordinators will no longer be

         21  there, if Project Arts will no longer be there, how

         22  are you looking at this particular money for the

         23  Project Arts, and also a breakdown on how

         24  empowerment schools are spending their money in

         25  general?
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          2                 MR. NADELSTERN: Okay, so a breakdown

          3  around Project Arts.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: To start with.

          5                 MR. NADELSTERN: And arts education is

          6  a place to begin.

          7                 What we've discovered is that 85

          8  percent of the Project Arts money went to fund

          9  arts-related initiatives in the schools, in

         10  empowerment schools, 85 percent.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: In empowerment

         12  zones you said?

         13                 MR. NADELSTERN: In the empowerment

         14  schools.

         15                 But when we looked further what we

         16  saw was that empowerment schools spent $6 million

         17  more this year on the arts than they did last year,

         18  despite $700,000 less in Project Arts money that

         19  they spent on empowerment schools, they added their

         20  own tax levy money to add $4 million in new

         21  initiatives, and then 2 million of the $6 million

         22  gain can be ascribed to contractual increases.

         23                 So, we're confident that the arts are

         24  alive and well in empowerment schools, and in fact

         25  represent a really good example of if you free
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          2  people from all sorts of mandates, it creates more

          3  opportunity for schools to spend their additional

          4  resources on things like arts education, which many

          5  of us believe is a critical vehicle to propel many

          6  more kids toward academic success.

          7                 Now, in terms of how the other monies

          8  were spent, as I mentioned, 75 percent of those

          9  monies were spent hiring additional staff, 57

         10  percent on more teachers, and a remainder, up to 75

         11  percent on more staff. The next largest category was

         12  14 percent on supplies and materials, including

         13  instructional supplies, and the rest was around

         14  purchasing professional development services and the

         15  like.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I don't want

         17  to take more time, but then what happens to the ten

         18  arts coordinators in each district? Because arts is

         19  not like math or English. It's complicated, there

         20  are many groups, how you set up the classroom, et

         21  cetera. So, I guess it's back to Council Member

         22  Garodnick's question of we're really in the

         23  classrooms with these schools. We're really doing

         24  everything we can. And, yet, the information that

         25  comes to us is very, very limited. And we need this
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          2  kind of information to make our own best judgment.

          3  We don't have --

          4                 MR. NADELSTERN: Gale, I understand.

          5  When I was a principal I didn't need a district arts

          6  coordinator to tell me that I needed a full-time art

          7  teacher.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: You are an

          9  exception. I am sorry. I am sorry. I know every

         10  single one of my principals. I have their home

         11  number, they have mine. You are an exception. I'm

         12  just saying, you're an exception.

         13                 Ruth Lacey doesn't need anybody

         14  either. But I'm just saying, you're an exception.

         15                 MR. NADELSTERN: I appreciate the

         16  compliment.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I can go on

         18  and on.

         19                 MR. NADELSTERN: I'll take that as a

         20  compliment.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: It's a

         22  compliment, but then you can't rely on everyone

         23  being like you and Ruth Lacey.

         24                 MR. NADELSTERN: Which is exactly why

         25  we're going to offer principals eight or ten or more
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          2  choices, some of which will carry considerably more

          3  support at greater expense.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So, Gale the

          5  question, what about the coordinators? What's going

          6  to happen to those coordinators?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: They don't

          8  know. I talked to three of them this morning. What

          9  are they going to do?

         10                 MR. NADELSTERN: Some of the LSOs and

         11  PSOs may in fact hire arts personnel.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Do you know

         13  what's going to happen to them, or you don't know?

         14                 MR. NADELSTERN: I don't know where

         15  those ten will wind up. I suspect some of them will

         16  continue to be arts coordinators for learning

         17  support organizations.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Right now

         19  they're scheduled to be eliminated then; is that

         20  correct? Unless they're picked up by some other of

         21  those structures that are coming in place.

         22                 MR. NADELSTERN: Unless they're picked

         23  up by the structures, although many of those people

         24  have retention to other positions.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. Based on
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          2  the contractual rights, you mean?

          3                 MR. NADELSTERN: That's right.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. Who is

          5  next?

          6                 Council Member Peter Vallone, Jr.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you,

          8  Mr. Chair.

          9                 Let me thank the both of you and the

         10  principals sitting in the front row for the work you

         11  do every day. My daughters are in public school,

         12  they're having a great time doing a great job, and I

         13  know that's not the case everywhere, but it is the

         14  case in many places and you deserve credit for that.

         15                 You said on page two, in exchange for

         16  greater flexibility and control, principals sign

         17  performance agreements that establish expectations

         18  and potential consequences.

         19                 So, my question then is, what are the

         20  expectations? How are you judging the principals?

         21  And are there any criteria that are not test based?

         22  Clearly there is a place for standards, and I

         23  support that. But my concern is if there's too much

         24  emphasis on the test, and that's why I'm hearing

         25  from parents, from teachers, then two things happen:
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          2  Number one, we teach for the test. And my daughters

          3  learn nothing but math, which I don't want to see

          4  happen because I can't do their homework when it's

          5  just math. But I see that already because a math

          6  test is coming up next week, I believe, the

          7  Statewides, and that's all they're doing, and that's

          8  not right.

          9                 And the second thing is the homework.

         10  The teachers give homework pegged to these tests,

         11  and they give hours and hours a night and I hear

         12  this from parents, and I don't need to hear it

         13  because I know that I can't do things with my kids

         14  that you would normally be able to do. I couldn't

         15  get to the museum this weekend with them, because we

         16  had to do homework. So, again, the question then is,

         17  to explain that line, what are the criteria for

         18  judging principals? Are any of them not test based,

         19  and what are the consequences you mentioned?

         20                 MR. NADELSTERN: For the Autonomy

         21  Zone, in those performance agreements, prior to the

         22  current accountability construct that will apply to

         23  all schools next year. We looked at five indicators

         24  primarily. We looked at attendance, retention,

         25  course and exam pass rates. We looked at promotion
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          2  and graduation at the high school level. And then

          3  for the high school kids we looked at the college

          4  acceptance.

          5                 Now, to put that a different way, are

          6  the kids coming to school, staying in the school,

          7  making regular progress, getting promoted to the

          8  next level and succeeding at the next level.

          9                 In year one of the Autonomy Zone four

         10  schools did not meet their targets. I met with each

         11  of those principals personally, the conversation was

         12  around what they might do to improve their

         13  performance the following year. We made it clear

         14  we're not going to limit their autonomy, but at the

         15  end of the second year, if they did not meet their

         16  targets, we would have to consider removing them,

         17  because two years is a long time in the life of a

         18  student, particularly if it's your child.

         19                 I'm pleased to say that all four

         20  schools that didn't meet their targets in year one

         21  met their targets in year two.

         22                 Last year three schools, new schools

         23  to the Autonomy Zone did not meet their targets and

         24  I had a similar conversation with those principals.

         25  It's possible that you need more than one year to
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          2  meet your targets. You know, what are your plans,

          3  here are some things that you might think about.

          4  We're not going to limit your autonomy going

          5  forward, but know that at the end of the second

          6  year, if you don't meet your targets, if students

          7  don't perform as long as they need to, your job is

          8  in question as well, again, because two years is a

          9  long time in the life of the child.

         10                 It didn't stop 322 principals from

         11  signing a similar performance agreement. What most

         12  principals in this system say to me is they're

         13  prepared to be held accountable if we're prepared to

         14  treat them as professionals.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: That all

         16  sounds great. I just don't want them to be prepared

         17  to teach only two subjects and get five hours of

         18  homework a night to get to that level.

         19                 What you said is encouraging, what

         20  can you say to that specific concern?

         21                 MR. NADELSTERN: We've taken a much

         22  broader view of assessment than that. And you should

         23  know that along the way of my 35-year history, I

         24  have been a staunch advocate for broadening

         25  assessments so that they go beyond test. I've done
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          2  battle with the Commissioner of Education on this

          3  several times, and staunchly support looking at

          4  assessment beyond tests.

          5                 But here's what I understand. In

          6  2007, when teachers decide what they're going to do

          7  with kids in class tomorrow, all too often it's not

          8  based on the evidence of who the kids are, what they

          9  can do, what they're capable of and what they need

         10  to learn.

         11                 We've asked our schools to administer

         12  assessments, if not a standardized test that they

         13  purchased from -- not purchase but adopt from us to

         14  develop their own way of evaluating students so that

         15  the decisions teachers make about not only

         16  evaluating kids and what to grade them on, but what

         17  to do in class on a daily basis is based on real

         18  evidence that they and their school community has

         19  gathered by understanding the work that each kid is

         20  capable of doing, analyzing that work and figuring

         21  out what that student and what that class needs to

         22  do in order to reach their full potential.

         23                 We're committed to taking the

         24  broadest possible view, but also to look at tests as

         25  well, because they represent an important measure. I
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          2  don't want to exclude them, but you're right, it

          3  can't be the only measure.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: There will be

          6  many follow-ups, and I don't want to abuse my

          7  privilege, that's very encouraging what you said,

          8  and I'm glad you're battling for us, and I want to

          9  again thank you for the work you're doing.

         10                 MR. NADELSTERN: I appreciate it.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: Thank you,

         12  Mr. Chair.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         14                 Council Member Maria del Carmen

         15  Arroyo of the Bronx. Then Council Member Yassky of

         16  Brooklyn.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Thank you, Mr.

         18  Chair.

         19                 Peter, I am glad I don't have to deal

         20  with the stress of homework anymore. I can relate.

         21                 I'm not going to be so mean, I'm

         22  going to work from the half-full glass perspective.

         23  And just to share with Dan, that hopefully we won't

         24  need a shovel for the jargon that's coming out of

         25  this reform.
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          2                 2005/2006, 48 schools. 2006/2007, the

          3  number remains the same?

          4                 MR. NADELSTERN: No, this year it's

          5  332 schools.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Actively?

          7                 MR. NADELSTERN: Active in the

          8  empowerment schools.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Okay, that's

         10  not clear from your testimony.

         11                 MR. NADELSTERN: Okay. I do apologize.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: It says the

         13  Mayor invited 332 schools to join the empowerment

         14  school model, but it's not clear that that's --

         15  what's the total number that we have now?

         16                 MR. NADELSTERN: We invited 350 and

         17  332 schools.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Of the 48

         19  original, which remained?

         20                 MR. NADELSTERN: All of them.

         21                 And they had the option not to.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: So, from the

         23  perspective that they can be successful, have you

         24  been able to determine or spot a trend with regards

         25  to what schools are doing? And are we looking to
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          2  come out of this with a best practice model, so

          3  moving forward we can encourage schools to do one

          4  thing over the other, given that there is so much

          5  autonomy. But we do learn lessons about what works

          6  and what doesn't work.

          7                 MR. NADELSTERN: Right.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Is that

          9  something that you're planning to do in the future?

         10                 MR. NADELSTERN: Well, here's the

         11  perspective, that in a system of --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Yes or no?

         13                 MR. NADELSTERN: Yes and no.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Okay.

         15                 MR. NADELSTERN: In a system of 1,400

         16  some odd schools, 1.1 million kids, we don't have

         17  the solution to the challenge of what it takes to

         18  educate every single one of those kids, and don't

         19  believe that it will be the same solution in each

         20  school.

         21                 Now, by the same token, all of our

         22  discussions with principals are around identifying

         23  best practice and creating opportunities for that

         24  practice to generalize across schools.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: You don't have
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          2  1,400 schools participating --

          3                 MR. NADELSTERN: No, all of our

          4  conversation with the 332 schools, at the network

          5  level, at the level in which the principals interact

          6  with other principals on our team, are around what's

          7  working effectively, and ways that allow them to

          8  share it with each other so that principals who wish

          9  to adopt those strategies have the opportunity to.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Thank you, Mr.

         11  Chair.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you. Next

         13  we have David Yassky of Brooklyn.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you very

         15  much. Let me say I was very encouraged by the

         16  Chancellor's original announcement of the

         17  empowerment initiative, and I remain, I continue to

         18  believe that the concept behind it is a good one and

         19  will work and will bear fruit.

         20                 Here is what I want to say, though,

         21  about your presentation: it's not plausible to me

         22  that there have been major noticeable results in the

         23  performance of these schools, you know, in

         24  two-thirds of a year or whatever how much through

         25  the year we are. And so I think you actually kind of
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          2  erode confidence, in truth, to kind of present it

          3  that way.

          4                 You could say something meaningful I

          5  think about what you've seen about how practice has

          6  changed at the schools. And my sense, and I actually

          7  only have a couple of empowerment schools in the

          8  district I represent, but I've talked to several

          9  principals who are empowerment principals, who

         10  report not material change. They report that they

         11  have a little bit, they have some more spending

         12  flexibility, but they're mostly doing what they did

         13  the year before, as it turns out. Maybe that means

         14  they're not kind of rising to the challenge, or it

         15  takes awhile to sink in and appreciate what the

         16  choices are. So, my question is, what can you say

         17  about what you've seen as a change in the actual

         18  practice. Do you have anything to say systemwide

         19  about what these 332 schools are doing differently

         20  now than they were doing the year before?

         21                 MR. NADELSTERN: The data that I cited

         22  earlier was data gathered over two and a half years,

         23  not half a year.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Well, for the

         25  bulk of them, if I get it, it's since this year.
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          2                 MR. NADELSTERN: That's right. But the

          3  data of schools that improve relative to where they

          4  were earlier were for the 48 that participated in

          5  the Autonomy Zone. That's why we ran a pilot. It

          6  wasn't meant to say that with six months --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: You mean the

          8  improved graduation rate numbers?

          9                 We're simply the 440 (sic), the other

         10  ones haven't graduated.

         11                 MR. NADELSTERN: Simply the 48.

         12                 Okay, now, here's what we're

         13  beginning to see in the others: We're beginning to

         14  see principals who look within their schools and to

         15  their colleagues for support and solutions in more

         16  effective ways --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Concretely,

         18  and I really don't want to be disrespectful, I know

         19  we're supposed to be short, concretely, you said

         20  something, that you see them choosing to hire staff

         21  and that intrigued me. Can you make that detailed in

         22  some way?

         23                 MR. NADELSTERN: Yes, they hired 558

         24  more teachers this year, when we gave them greater

         25  resources than they a year earlier, from those
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          2  additional resources.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Are you saying

          4  of the 332 schools there are some, you know, an

          5  average of one and a half more teacher, more per

          6  school --

          7                 MR. NADELSTERN: That's right. The

          8  bulk of their resources were spent hiring more

          9  staff. When you hire more teachers you do things

         10  like reduce class size and reduce teacher load.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Is that

         12  unrelated to a number of students, or are there,

         13  have the teacher student ratios changed, or is it

         14  more students at those schools?

         15                 MR. NADELSTERN: No, it's with the

         16  additional resources we've given them for the

         17  students they serve. Three-quarters of the funding

         18  has gone to pay for additional staff, primarily

         19  teachers.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I'd love to

         21  see the back-up on that.

         22                 MR. NADELSTERN: Okay.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: How many

         24  teachers, how many students in those schools

         25  year-to-year, how many teachers year-to-year.
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          2                 MR. NADELSTERN: Sure.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: And another

          4  way you might measure performance would be, and this

          5  would be I guess really for the middle schools to

          6  this point, are you seeing more applications to

          7  those schools than you did the year before? I forget

          8  how many of the empowerment schools are middle

          9  schools, but now since we're in the middle of the

         10  choice process.

         11                 MR. NADELSTERN: We could look at

         12  that. We could look at the high school applications.

         13  That data has not been made available to us.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay, I can

         15  see that. And then my final question is, I share,

         16  and I know other people have gotten into this --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: There's only one

         18  question, Council Member Yassky.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: This is just

         20  part three. May I just very briefly? Because here is

         21  my question: how will teacher tenure be handled at

         22  empowerment schools?

         23                 And I guess this kind of gets to the

         24  crux of, are they empowerment, or what autonomy do

         25  you get? The Chancellor said we're going to change
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          2  systemwide the way we evaluate teachers for tenure;

          3  can an empowerment principal make that decision

          4  different from another principal, or no?

          5                 MR. NADELSTERN: No. The new tenure

          6  policies will apply to all schools.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you.

          8                 MR. NADELSTERN: Mr. Chair, if I may,

          9  to the benefit of some staff work around your data

         10  questions earlier, if you'd like the answers, we're

         11  prepared to report them.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Go ahead,

         13  please.

         14                 MR. NADELSTERN: Here you go.

         15                 MS. CONFORME: Okay, for attendance

         16  data, before joining the Autonomy Zone the

         17  attendance data was about 88 percent.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: For how many

         19  schools?

         20                 MS. CONFORME: For the 24 original --

         21                 MR. NADELSTERN: Twenty-nine original.

         22                 MS. CONFORME: Twenty-nine original.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Twenty-nine

         24  original. And you have a list of those 29? Not now.

         25                 MS. CONFORME: Not now. But we can get
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          2  that to you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay, go ahead.

          4                 MS. CONFORME: It increased when they

          5  were in the Autonomy Zone for one year to 89

          6  percent.

          7                 In the year two it increased to 90

          8  percent.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Attendance.

         10                 MS. CONFORME: Attendance.

         11                 Drop-out rate, before the Autonomy

         12  Zone in the Year 2003/2004, it was 1.9 percent in

         13  these schools.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: The drop-out

         15  rate, is that what you're saying?

         16                 MS. CONFORME: Yes. And then it

         17  decreased to 1.5 after the first year in the

         18  Autonomy Zone, in '04/'05, and in '05/'06 it dropped

         19  to 1.1.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Are these all

         21  high schools or are these intermediate schools or

         22  what?

         23                 MS. CONFORME: These were mostly high

         24  schools, yes, with the exception of one or two

         25  schools.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, I would

          3  love for you to put that all down in black and

          4  white.

          5                 MR. NADELSTERN: We're going to send

          6  that to you.

          7                 MS. CONFORME: Yes.

          8                 MR. NADELSTERN: Also, I should tell

          9  you that the graduation rate went from 65.8 percent

         10  before we began the Autonomy Zone experiment, to

         11  74.5 percent at the end of last year.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And I assume

         13  that you're going to give me the statistics as to

         14  how many students were in the school before it

         15  became Autonomy Zone and afterwards?

         16                 MR. NADELSTERN: We'll give you the

         17  full work-up that we have that we've put together

         18  around these.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So, you mean of

         20  all of those Autonomy Zone schools, you said the

         21  drop-out rate before was like 1.9?

         22                 MR. NADELSTERN: 1.9 and declined over

         23  two years to 1.1 percent.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         25                 And all of these schools before
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          2  becoming an Autonomy Zone school, were they

          3  high-performing schools?

          4                 MR. NADELSTERN: No.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: They were not?

          6                 MR. NADELSTERN: They ran the gamut.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Do any one of

          8  those schools have a graduation rate of 43 percent?

          9                 MR. NADELSTERN: I'd have to check

         10  back, but I believe they did.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I mean, we're

         12  talking about the average. I mean, graduation rate

         13  is 43 percent. Now I'm not going by DOE standards.

         14                 MR. NADELSTERN: I understand.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: When I'm talking

         16  about 43 percent, I'm talking about the way the

         17  State evaluates.

         18                 MR. NADELSTERN: The schools, if they

         19  started with a 65.8 percent graduation rate, then

         20  they were starting above the Citywide rate.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: That's way above

         22  the Citywide --

         23                 MR. NADELSTERN: Many of them were

         24  small schools.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Many of them
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          2  were.

          3                 MR. NADELSTERN: Many of them were in

          4  the pilot.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Small schools

          6  that just opened up recently, you mean?

          7                 MR. NADELSTERN: Some that opened up

          8  recently, others that have been around awhile.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I see. Okay.

         10                 So, in essence, we're not dealing

         11  with the typical high school that people would

         12  envision.

         13                 MR. NADELSTERN: We certainly are now.

         14  We've got the broad base of elementary, middle and

         15  high schools in the 322.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay, thank you.

         17                 Council Member Miguel Martinez of

         18  Manhattan.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you,

         20  Mr. Chair.

         21                 Sir, as a product of the bilingual

         22  education in the City of New York, I have a two-fold

         23  question having to do with entitlement, particularly

         24  in the funding formula and also taken advantage of

         25  there's only one question, also having to do with
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          2  the personnel hired.

          3                 You know, it was disturbing that the

          4  New York Immigration Coalition, the Advocate for

          5  Children, recently did a report in which found that

          6  many of the principals in the small schools were not

          7  hiring or making decisions and not hiring the

          8  personnel to service ELL, English Language Learners,

          9  and the same is true -- what formula do we have,

         10  funding formula to ensure that those students in

         11  those schools that generate those particular funding

         12  streams that they're entitled to, also receive these

         13  services and that these monies are dedicated and

         14  spent for that population? What do we have in place

         15  to ensure both the hiring, and two, the use of these

         16  dollars that these same populations generate by

         17  entitlement?

         18                 MR. NADELSTERN: Let me first assure

         19  you that I share your concern about this population.

         20  Earlier in my career, I chaired the Commissioner's

         21  Bilingual Advisory Council, and the school that I

         22  started in Queens, the International High School at

         23  LaGuardia Community College, served the population

         24  of students that were entirely recently arrived

         25  English Language Learners.
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          2                 I, myself, was trained as an English,

          3  as a second language teacher, and this is an area

          4  dear to my heart.

          5                 You should know that all empowerment

          6  schools are under the same State and federal

          7  mandates, around provision of services for English

          8  Language Learners, as other schools, and the

          9  integrated service center that we've provided to

         10  support them is a compliance unit that works with

         11  the schools to make sure that they comply with State

         12  and federal regulations around hiring and provision

         13  of service.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: But what

         15  measure do we have to make sure it's happening so we

         16  have compliance? What do we have tangible to make

         17  sure that it's happening, the hiring? Because if I'm

         18  a small school, I'm independent, I choose not to

         19  hire the percentage of bilingual --

         20                 MR. NADELSTERN: If you don't hire,

         21  then you won't be in compliance around provision of

         22  services.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: My kids

         24  don't have access to that school.

         25                 MR. NADELSTERN: Right. So, what we're
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          2  looking at is we're looking at --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: How do we

          4  prevent that?

          5                 MR. NADELSTERN: Well, we're doing a

          6  number of things. The Compliance Unit is the early

          7  warning sign around whether schools in fact have

          8  hired and are offering the services that they need

          9  to offer, that they're obligated to offer by State

         10  regulation. An empowerment school doesn't exempt

         11  schools from most State regulations.

         12                 Then beyond that, we're assessing

         13  progress of students, including subcategories of

         14  students, including the students that you and I are

         15  both concerned about, and evaluating schools on the

         16  basis of how well those subgroups are doing.

         17                 We also, we haven't had a chance in

         18  the testimony this afternoon, it's gone by too

         19  quickly, but the empowerment schools have something

         20  called an empowerment school intensive. It is a

         21  professional development effort that all empowerment

         22  school principals participate in, where we send

         23  folks into their schools, and principals and the

         24  school leaders identify groups of kids who are not

         25  as successful as they need to be in some cases,
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          2  English Language Learners, and we work with them

          3  intensively around the kinds of things they can do

          4  to make those populations more successful.

          5                 This body will have an opportunity to

          6  look at the outcomes and know whether our schools

          7  are out-performing or under-performing in this area.

          8  I'm confident we're going to out-perform the rest of

          9  the school system, and shine a light on some of

         10  these issues.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Have you

         12  seen the report of New York Immigration Coalition?

         13                 MR. NADELSTERN: I've worked very

         14  closely with the New York Immigration for a lot of

         15  years.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Are we

         17  addressing that?

         18                 MR. NADELSTERN: The Department is on

         19  a daily basis.

         20                 We've taken that report very

         21  seriously.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you,

         23  Mr. Chair.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         25                 Miguel Martinez opened a door,
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          2  because you know we had a hearing on small schools

          3  and the whole issue that was raised, especially by

          4  the Immigration Coalition about the fact that, you

          5  know, the students of ELL were not admitted to these

          6  small schools, or schools were exempt for the first

          7  two years, and some complained that even beyond two

          8  years. So, I'm curious now as to how many of those

          9  schools and the 29 schools that you made reference

         10  to are in that category. So, I mean, you're going to

         11  give me a list of all of those 29 schools.

         12                 MR. NADELSTERN: We'll give you all

         13  the schools. You should know that the collection of

         14  nine international high schools were part of the

         15  original group of 29 schools, and were in the 48 and

         16  continue in the empowerment schools. Those schools

         17  serve only English Language Learners and have done

         18  an effective job over a period of years at that

         19  population.

         20                 And the other schools that they

         21  network with are in a position to take advantage of

         22  the services they offer.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         24                 Council Member Lew Fidler of

         25  Brooklyn.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you, Mr.

          3  Chairman.

          4                 You know, for those of you who have

          5  been scoring the game at home, you probably noticed

          6  that I was one of the first Council members here,

          7  and it took me over an hour to raise my hand trying

          8  to even formulate a question, and a little of this

          9  conversation strikes me as trying to nail jello to

         10  the wall, and you know, the principals, Mr.

         11  Nadelstern, I want to believe, I can't begin to tell

         12  you how much I want to believe that all of this

         13  stuff works. And I told that to Chancellor Klein

         14  directly when we met last week, but I can't help but

         15  have some overriding concerns, and I don't know that

         16  they form a question, but kind of like a buckshot

         17  approach here, so I'm going to try it.

         18                 We seem to be trying to reinvent the

         19  way we deliver the goods. That seems to be the

         20  single, most overriding thing that DOE has done in

         21  the last five years. Created regions, we took away

         22  the regions, we have empowerment zones, we have

         23  networks; why aren't we working on the actual

         24  services themselves? If you're going to give

         25  $150,000 on average to a new school, and we can hire
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          2  558 more teachers, why aren't we doing it for every

          3  school? Why aren't we finding a way to reduce class

          4  size, something proven to work as opposed to

          5  experimenting with different systems to deliver the

          6  services. You know, and I know the answer about math

          7  and science teachers, why aren't we trying to find

          8  ways to get more qualified licensed math and science

          9  teachers. I mean, things like that are what we

         10  really should be concentrating our efforts on. So,

         11  if we have the money to do it for 332 schools, we

         12  have the money to do it for all the schools, why

         13  should these 332 be privileged just because the

         14  principal has agreed to take on a level of

         15  responsibility that I would think that every

         16  principal has?

         17                 You know, do you realize when you

         18  give a school a D under this new system you are

         19  killing the school, because no parent that's paying

         20  attention will ever want to send their child to a D

         21  school. Just as some of my high schools in my

         22  district, Tilden and South Shore, found out that no

         23  one is going to apply to a school that's put on a

         24  list of failing schools, and on top of which is on

         25  the list of unsafe schools.
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          2                 What parent who is paying attention

          3  will apply to a D school, or ask their child -- will

          4  not opt out under No Child Left Behind from a D

          5  school. And I guess the last thing I would kind of

          6  more directly ask you to respond to, is all these

          7  networks, and some of my colleagues referred to this

          8  earlier, that you know, the schools don't have to be

          9  in proximity; what ever happened to the idea of a

         10  community school? And to neighborhoods embracing and

         11  being part of a school. Does that count for nothing

         12  in the models that you have developed here? Why

         13  can't we have, you know, the neighborhood school

         14  again where parents know who to go to, what to say,

         15  who is accountable, every principal is responsible,

         16  and we can work on the actual services as opposed to

         17  the methodology for delivery of services.

         18                 MR. NADELSTERN: Okay, Councilman,

         19  firstoff you should know, and ought to be heartened

         20  by the fact, that most of our elementary schools do

         21  just that, they are community schools, that it's

         22  usually not until the high school level that parents

         23  have an opportunity to exercise choice among several

         24  middle schools, and then even more high schools. And

         25  what we've learned, at least at the secondary school
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          2  level, and maybe at the elementary school level as

          3  well, is that the more choice we can afford

          4  families, the better off they are and the better off

          5  the schools are.

          6                 I don't know the answer to your

          7  question. I don't know why we, as parents,

          8  politicians, educators, community members, have

          9  tolerated failed schools for as long as we have, I

         10  don't know the answer to that question. What I do

         11  know is that concealing the failure of schools is

         12  not the solution. We ought to let people know

         13  exactly how the schools are performing, and hope

         14  that over time more schools will be more successful

         15  with that kind of airing of performance than when we

         16  used to keep it a secret and parents didn't know

         17  that they were sending their children to unsafe

         18  schools or schools where they and other children

         19  were unlikely to graduate.

         20                 Relative to the networks, what the

         21  principals and school communities have told us is a

         22  belief set around kids learn best, is a more

         23  important reason to meet together and to learn from

         24  each other than simple proximity. And I think in a

         25  City like New York we're great enough to be able to
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          2  do both, to have schools that serve the community,

          3  but to give school leaders and teachers and others

          4  affiliated with the school, an opportunity to

          5  interact with other schools they feel they can learn

          6  from.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: If you are a

          8  true believer in the fact that different educational

          9  philosophies will work, some here for this group,

         10  Philosophy A, and Column B works for this group, and

         11  you need to set up networks of support, you need to

         12  understand that there is a trade off, and that that

         13  trade off is the absolute destruction at the middle

         14  school level at the notion of a neighborhood school.

         15                 I went to PS 208, we all know that we

         16  were going to Mile 11 Junior High School, we knew

         17  the kids from 244 were going there to, and that for

         18  Mile 11 we'd be joining the kids from Winthrope and

         19  Tilden. And it was a certain, you know, sense of

         20  community involvement and continuity to all that. I

         21  think it has a value, all right? And this network

         22  support system absolutely ignores that, and while

         23  you may be hearing from one side of the world that

         24  this system works better, I want you to hear from

         25  this side of the world that parents don't think so.
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          2  And I don't think teachers think so either, all

          3  right? So, it's a trade off.

          4                 And what happens in education is the

          5  pendulum swings and it never stops in the middle at

          6  a place that makes sense, and that's what's going to

          7  happen here again, we're going to go totally away

          8  from the neighborhood school, and then there's going

          9  to be a revolution and we're going to go all the way

         10  back, all right? And we're going to let everyone

         11  know where all the warts are, you've got a D, you've

         12  got a C minus, right, and all the way back.

         13                 We need to find something that

         14  actually works, and I think that the tinkering here

         15  has to acknowledge the fact that we are losing

         16  something in the system when you destroy the

         17  neighborhood concept of the school.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you,

         19  Council Member. Council Member Al Vann of Brooklyn.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Yes, thank you,

         21  Mr. Chairman. It's been a long evening. Let me be

         22  very brief.

         23                 I believe that probably the most

         24  significant institution that we have in society is

         25  probably the education institution, because it is
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          2  that institution that pretty much determines how a

          3  person will live, you know, if they will live and

          4  how they will live, either because of what happens

          5  in that institution or what happens in that

          6  institution that run people out, able to determine

          7  their life, their lifestyle and so forth. Education

          8  by far is the most significant process that we

          9  experience as human beings.

         10                 I have been very silent on all the

         11  changes in reform that have been proposed and

         12  enacted in this system over the last five years or

         13  so.

         14                 I was opposed to Mayoral control, had

         15  I been in the Legislature I would have voted against

         16  it. In the City Council I was opposed to it. But you

         17  have to give another person an opportunity to do

         18  their thing. Maybe they're right. Maybe they know

         19  something that we do not know.

         20                 What struck me this afternoon is the

         21  principle under which you have established

         22  empowerment schools is based on the principle that

         23  those closest to students in the classroom are in

         24  the best position to make important decisions about

         25  what students need to learn and how to best

                                                            99

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  accomplish that.

          3                 Well, that's what got me into it,

          4  this is community control. This concept says closest

          5  to the child is where the decisions need to be made.

          6  Mayoral control is on the other end of that. So,

          7  we've spent five years under Mayoral control to say

          8  the best system that worked is one where the

          9  decision-making ought to be back where the children

         10  are where the schools are.

         11                 I'm a little big confused. I think

         12  that you are engendering a lack of confidence among

         13  parents and the community at large. It's as if it's

         14  been an experiment, you know, like we've been trying

         15  different stuff to find what's going to work, and

         16  our children need not to be experimented with

         17  anymore.

         18                 We know what works, we know what the

         19  basic values are. We know what makes the successful

         20  school. So, I'm troubled right now, because though I

         21  have not been vocal, I've been active in my own

         22  community, we organize our parents, we work with

         23  parent coordinators, we have dialogue and stuff with

         24  our principals, because we realize whenever all

         25  these changes occur in the universe, it's what you
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          2  can control in your own community that's going to

          3  make a difference. The stuff is going to come and

          4  go, but something has to be constant, and that

          5  constance has to be that school in that neighborhood

          6  where the children go and so forth.

          7                 MR. NADELSTERN: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: So, I'm a little

          9  bit confused about Mayoral control and all these

         10  consultants we've been bringing in and all these

         11  other things we've been creating and so forth, then

         12  come out and say the best position or the best

         13  principal is one where closest to the child. That's

         14  where I came into this whole thing.

         15                 MR. NADELSTERN: Yes, Councilman, you

         16  and me both. But here is what I know having been in

         17  this system for 35 years: We never decentralized

         18  decision-making to the school level. I had mentioned

         19  earlier that earlier in my career I was a Deputy

         20  High School Superintendent, at a time we had

         21  community school districts, we were responsible for

         22  20 high schools, the district's expense around

         23  managing those schools was that we received $650,000

         24  per school, in which to manage them. Our staff had

         25  120 people on it in Bronx High School, serving only
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          2  20 high schools. 120 people. We had more money than

          3  we knew what to do with. It was nothing that we

          4  could think of that we couldn't afford.

          5                 In contrast, what we've done now

          6  around empowerment schools is we've thrown up a team

          7  of five, not 120, and we say that team of five

          8  probably supervised and focused can provide schools

          9  with the services they need, and that the monies

         10  saved are better spent in school budgets than spent

         11  around these other structures, even in the name of

         12  decentralization. Sometimes you need to recentralize

         13  in order to really decentralize, and what we're

         14  talking about is decentralized authority at the

         15  school level.

         16                 What we are modeling for principals

         17  is that the more authority you share with teachers

         18  and parents and certainly at the secondary school

         19  level with the kids themselves, the more influential

         20  you become.

         21                 I must confess that in six months we

         22  haven't transformed close to 1,500 schools, but

         23  we've made a good start, and I think over time

         24  you're going to find principals who are better

         25  collaborative leaders, who are more committed to
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          2  working with teachers than parents, and that the net

          3  result will be higher levels of student achievement,

          4  and that's what I want you to hold me accountable

          5  for.

          6                 Last year at this time I was offered

          7  the opportunity to be superintendent in a major

          8  American City, Clark County, Nevada, Las Vegas. It

          9  was a point in my career where it would have been

         10  assumed that that's the move you make, it would have

         11  been lucrative to make that move, and I determined

         12  this is the most important work going on in public

         13  education in America, and I would rather be no place

         14  else.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Let me conclude

         16  on this note: One thing that has been very clear

         17  that I have both observed and experienced, that the

         18  schools that have been successful in communities

         19  such as mine, and in communities primarily black

         20  and/or Latino, communities where there is a large

         21  concentration of poverty as well, schools where

         22  you're not expected to do well in the eyes of many,

         23  there have been successful schools where the

         24  principals, where the principals would often times

         25  disregard directives and policies coming from on
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          2  high, almost always had a strong relationship to the

          3  parental -- with the parents and the community at

          4  large, and focused on the talent, the values, the

          5  culture of the neighborhood that came into that

          6  school. That's what had to be cherished, and that's

          7  what has to be built upon.

          8                 MR. NADELSTERN: We're in absolute

          9  agreement, Councilman.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you,

         12  Council member.

         13                 Public Advocate Betsy Gotbaum.

         14                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: My very

         15  eloquent colleague Al Vann, who is the voice of

         16  history here, brought up that terrible word

         17  consultant. But I do have to ask you, Eric, a

         18  question, and that is we know the Department of

         19  Education stated that Alverez and Marcel, which

         20  gives us absolutely no confidence at all in this

         21  room, is sort of the reason, the success of the

         22  empowerment schools rest on their quick and

         23  effective work. I read that quote specifically. And

         24  I must say, having said that I'm very glad that you,

         25  as one of the great educators, is at the Department
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          2  running where you are, so that gives me sort of the

          3  balance of the lack of confidence I have with the

          4  consultants, I have it with you, and I've known you

          5  a long time.

          6                 I'm just very specific because one of

          7  the areas in my interest for a long time is in the

          8  work plan of the consultant Alvarez and Marcel, and

          9  it states the special ed processes, roles and

         10  accountability metrics of the empowerment schools

         11  will be designed, and I'm just very curious, have

         12  they been designed? Can we see a copy? Will we know

         13  exactly what this means for special ed? Again, it's

         14  a specialty that I have spent the last six years

         15  really looking at.

         16                 MR. NADELSTERN: I can tell you, much

         17  of their work to date has been around the financial

         18  modeling that allowed us to devolve the resources.

         19                 I think later over the course of the

         20  year, and hopefully within weeks and not longer, the

         21  Department will unveil a special ed plan to this new

         22  structure.

         23                 I am confident that Deputy Chancellor

         24  Andreas Alonzo had more to do with it, and you will

         25  see his imprint and the imprint of his staff and
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          2  Linda Wernikoff, the special ed folks at the

          3  Department, around charting the new course than you

          4  will the signature of consultants. It's been under

          5  his leadership that the work around special

          6  education has taken place.

          7                 PUBLIC ADVOCATE GOTBAUM: I certainly

          8  hope that he will talk to some of the special

          9  education groups and specifically the one that comes

         10  out of my office of parents who have been so

         11  involved in this issue and so concerned from all

         12  over this City. So, I'm looking forward to hearing

         13  from him about that. Thank you.

         14                 MR. NADELSTERN: Great. Thank you.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Just one last

         16  question, Eric.

         17                 MR. NADELSTERN: Sure.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: We have a

         19  statement from July 6th, 2006, which indicates the

         20  percentage of schools in the borough that opted into

         21  the empowerment school model. The Bronx led the way,

         22  33 percent of Bronx schools opted into the

         23  empowerment model for September 2006. On Staten

         24  Island, one school, zero percent, opted into the

         25  empowerment school model. My question is, why did so
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          2  many Bronx schools opt into the empowerment model as

          3  opposed to such a small percentage on Staten Island

          4  and 11 percentage opt into from Queens?

          5                 Why do you think 33 percent of Bronx

          6  schools opted into an empowerment model last

          7  September?

          8                 MR. NADELSTERN: Two thirds of the new

          9  schools that had opened over the last several years

         10  opted into empowerment schools, and overwhelming

         11  numbers of those schools were in Bronx, in the

         12  Bronx, Manhattan and Brooklyn.

         13                 As you know, we opened 78 new small

         14  schools in the Bronx alone, in the last five years,

         15  and the overwhelming numbers of them joined

         16  empowerment schools.

         17                 I will tell you that subsequent to

         18  the enrollment period, I've been traveling around

         19  town at the invitation of principals and have since

         20  addressed dozens of principals on Staten Island who

         21  are now giving it very serious consideration.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you,

         23  Council Member Vacca, who had a quick question,

         24  follow-up.

         25                 Let me ask you, what are the services
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          2  that empowerment schools have to now purchase that

          3  used to be provided by DOE? And how much does each

          4  of these services cost?

          5                 MR. NADELSTERN: We've provided the

          6  Council with copies of an internal services

          7  catalogue. What you will see is that most of those

          8  services --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Is that in this

         10  blue folder?

         11                 MR. NADELSTERN: Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         13                 MR. NADELSTERN: You will see that

         14  most of the services were around professional

         15  development, that the professional development

         16  resources that had flowed to regions and were

         17  retained at central were distributed to the schools,

         18  and so most of the services available to schools

         19  were professional development services.

         20                 I can tell you that over the course

         21  of this year, the 322 empowerment schools have

         22  purchased less than half a million dollars worth of

         23  services internal to the Department of Education.

         24  That included $315,000 worth of professional

         25  development for general and special ed, 92,000 for
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          2  additional arts, professional development and

          3  support, youth development totaled less than 3,000,

          4  operational support totaled only 30,000, new teacher

          5  mentoring slightly over 100,000, and then buying

          6  into the Satterwhite Prep Academy (phonetic), being

          7  able to send your kids to other schools, an

          8  additional 10,000.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Do you have that

         10  broken down by each school?

         11                 MR. NADELSTERN: It is broken down by

         12  service.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: By service.

         14                 MR. NADELSTERN: Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And does the

         16  service show which school purchased that service?

         17                 MR. NADELSTERN: We could let you know

         18  which schools.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Because it would

         20  be good, ideal, you know, if you wanted to go to

         21  this empowerment zone school to see what they

         22  purchased, you know, whatever they purchased, since

         23  everything is computerized, would be listed under

         24  that school. That would be I guess an ideal

         25  situation, so anyone can go to a particular school
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          2  and then also be, as you have it programatically by

          3  arts, so forth and so on.

          4                 Let me ask a final question before we

          5  move on. You're saying your documents at empowerment

          6  schools are exempt from certain Chancellor's

          7  regulations and reporting requirements; which ones

          8  are they exempt from? Is that listed in this folder

          9  also?

         10                 MR. NADELSTERN: Empowerment schools

         11  are not exempt from Chancellor's regulations. They

         12  do have the opportunity to apply for waivers. I can

         13  tell you that to date there have been no application

         14  for waivers to Chancellor's regs.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So, all of the

         16  Chancellor's regs apply to every empowerment zone --

         17                 MR. NADELSTERN: All the Chancellor's

         18  regs, implied empowerment schools. Should they

         19  choose to apply for a waiver in the future, they'll

         20  have the opportunity to, but thus far have not.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, let me

         22  thank you both for coming in and giving testimony.

         23  We appreciate this. This is an ongoing struggle to

         24  try to understand and to answer a lot of questions

         25  that have been asked to see how you are doing and
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          2  how effective it is and how ineffective it may be,

          3  and so we can evaluate and determine what's working

          4  and what's not working. So, thank you both for

          5  coming in.

          6                 MR. NADELSTERN: I very much

          7  appreciate your interest. I know we're scheduled to

          8  meet with Speaker Quinn's staff later in this week

          9  to go over much of the ground we've covered today.

         10                 What I would suggest of Council

         11  members is please feel free to address your

         12  questions to us. We'll be happy to take them, don't

         13  wait for another hearing.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you. Can

         15  you send us an organizational chart of an

         16  empowerment zone school structure?

         17                 MR. NADELSTERN: Sure.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you very

         19  much.

         20                 Next we'll hear from Ernest Logan,

         21  the President of CSA, the Council of Supervisors and

         22  Administrators.

         23                 Mr. Logan. Good afternoon, Mr. Logan.

         24  Welcome to the City Council's hearing, oversight

         25  hearing on Empowerment Schools: What Have We Learned
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          2  So Far? That's the topic of this oversight hearing.

          3                 We have a copy of your testimony. You

          4  may begin.

          5                 MR. LOGAN: Thank you, Chairman

          6  Jackson, members of the Council. Good afternoon. I

          7  thank you each for your continued advocacy for

          8  public education. I have testimony that I have

          9  presented. I am not going to read. I just want to

         10  highlight some points and then open up for some

         11  questions you may have.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         13                 MR. LOGAN: I was happy to see some of

         14  my colleagues and members here this afternoon.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Yes, they

         16  applauded when I mentioned your name.

         17                 MR. LOGAN: Thank you. That's good to

         18  know. I'm happy to see that they were able to get

         19  out to come and share in this, because this is a

         20  very important initiative, and we want to share what

         21  we were able to ascertain in this year's expansion

         22  of the empowerment initiative.

         23                 We have approximately 825 members in

         24  the 321 empowerment schools. Let me start out by

         25  saying that we believe and have always believed in
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          2  empowering school leaders. But let me also say that

          3  we support common-sense accountability initiatives.

          4  School leaders have always been accountable for

          5  their schools and the educational outcomes of their

          6  students, and as a union we were the first

          7  administrators union in the country to negotiate a

          8  process for holding school leaders accountable and

          9  we call that our "Principals Performance Review."

         10                 When this initiative was first

         11  introduced, we were optimistic but cautious. We have

         12  been pushing for empowering principals for many,

         13  many years. But we knew all too well that

         14  empowerment needed to be coupled with appropriate

         15  support and resources.

         16                 So, on CSA's part we hired two

         17  veteran principals, Juanita Bass and Ada Dultch

         18  (phonetic) to assist our members out in the field as

         19  they attempted to navigate the unchartered waters of

         20  our initiatives.

         21                 My members are decidely mixed about

         22  the empowerment initiative thus far. Some are

         23  pleased to be freed up from the micromanagement of

         24  the system, but some also report that they are not

         25  being supported or trained at a level where they can
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          2  operate in a truly empowered way.

          3                 So, we all share the goal of wanting

          4  our schools to succeed, and, so, in that spirit of

          5  cooperation and collaboration, it is important to

          6  look at the whole picture, both the good and the

          7  bad, and make adjustments as necessary.

          8                 Recently we started to ask our

          9  principals and assistant principals a few questions

         10  regarding the empowerment initiative. Nothing fancy,

         11  nothing scientific, but some questions like, do you

         12  believe it is advisable to increase the number of

         13  empowered schools in the fall? Or if you could

         14  change one thing about the empowerment initiative,

         15  what would it be and why?

         16                 Or do you have any suggestions that

         17  would ease the transition process for other

         18  principals and assistant principals who may opt for

         19  empowerment?

         20                 We've put some of those responses in

         21  that testimony that we have presented with you

         22  today.

         23                 Our school leaders work extremely

         24  hard and extremely long hours, and they deal with

         25  many untold issues and crises during the day and
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          2  during the year. No matter how empowered they are,

          3  or how long they have been in this system, they will

          4  always need a degree of support and professional

          5  development.

          6                 We are willing to make the hard

          7  decisions, but they need, and we need the resources

          8  to succeed.

          9                 As I said before, our members

         10  generally like being freed up from the

         11  micromanagement they have come to know over the

         12  first two years of Children First. And many tell us

         13  that they will continue the empowerment initiative

         14  in the fall. However, there are a good number who

         15  are uncertain about continuing, or who have made up

         16  their mind to opt out based on their dissatisfaction

         17  with some support services and isolation they feel

         18  from not having a network in close proximity.

         19                 Areas of particular concern are

         20  special education which was addressed here today,

         21  school safety, ELLs, extracurricular and enrichment

         22  programs and also, of course, the idea of shared

         23  space. Many of these schools are small schools,

         24  housed in large buildings with multiple other

         25  schools.
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          2                 One aspect of empowerment that has

          3  met a lot of resistance from our members is the fact

          4  that many essential services such as youth services,

          5  and professional development, which in the past were

          6  functions of the regional operation centers or the

          7  regional office, now have to be paid for from the

          8  principal's school budget.

          9                 This was something that many

         10  principals were not told at the beginning of the

         11  year, when they originally sat down to plan how to

         12  spend their allotted funds.

         13                 Department of Education cites

         14  substantially greater discretion over budgets, but

         15  having to pay for essential services has reduced

         16  that discretion.

         17                 For instance, we've had reports of

         18  people having to pay for attendant services. They

         19  used to be generated out of the central, or out of

         20  the regional budget.

         21                 We also question the amount of money

         22  that's available for principal discretion. I heard

         23  Eric today talk about very interesting numbers,

         24  almost to the point of 75 cents on every dollar is

         25  discretionary, or something to that effect, is going
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          2  into the schools or 50 cents is now discretionary

          3  for our members. We are not finding that.

          4                 Now, we also realize that money is

          5  based on the size of the school, so depending on the

          6  size of your school, you might have additional

          7  dollars based on that. We've not finding that across

          8  the board.

          9                 Many of our members say that they can

         10  use more supervisory help, especially in the areas

         11  of budget and administration, special education;

         12  but, yet, because of how the budget is, they cannot

         13  afford that.

         14                 They also want to be included in

         15  meetings and have the opportunity to collaborate

         16  with and share ideas with their colleagues and other

         17  schools. But because sometimes the networks are

         18  broad ranged over many, many boroughs, et cetera,

         19  there is not ample opportunity for people to share.

         20                 As I raised the issue of sharing

         21  space, it's a major problem. They are hard pressed

         22  to find anyone who is not struggling, to some extent

         23  with their arrangement for shared space. And whether

         24  it's being involved in a school council, or it is a

         25  head principal of the building, or there's an
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          2  operations person, doing shared space is a major,

          3  major problem.

          4                 Perhaps more than anything else, it's

          5  time to get down to work on fine-tuning the system.

          6                 One principal in the Bronx put it

          7  best: "I have always been for change, continual

          8  review and improvement. But it is time to stop all

          9  the big sweeping changes, and allow us time to

         10  focus."

         11                 So, thank you for this opportunity to

         12  testify before you today. I leave my testimony for

         13  you to read at your leisure, and I'm available to

         14  answer questions you may have.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you. Let

         16  me just say that under this empowerment zone system,

         17  the message has been loud and clear, at least from

         18  what I have read in the paper and I have heard from

         19  the Chancellor or the Mayor, that by moving into an

         20  empowerment zone, if the performance of the school

         21  doesn't increase at a certain level within two

         22  years, then the principal may be out the door.

         23                 I mean, has that been a fear in the

         24  principal's minds, or have they expressed that to

         25  you as the President of CSA?
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          2                 MR. LOGAN: Well, Chairman Jackson,

          3  that has always been the rule in the policy: either

          4  you produce or your perish. There is nothing new

          5  being in an empowerment initiative than what it

          6  would have been. Nothing has changed in how our

          7  evaluations are done. There has been nothing changed

          8  in the scope or our contract that does anything

          9  differently.

         10                 We always believed as principals that

         11  we were held accountable. The problem might have

         12  been that maybe people were not doing what they

         13  should have been doing above the principal's level.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, hopefully,

         15  as you indicated, you as the leader of CSA, if, in

         16  fact, your principals are reporting to you as a

         17  union leader, that they need more support and

         18  resources out there that the principals will get

         19  what they need in order to have a successful school

         20  so they meet their targets.

         21                 Do you know what the targets are?

         22                 MR. LOGAN: Well, targets are supposed

         23  to be based on individual schools. Some of our

         24  schools are just starting to get their targets for

         25  this year.
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          2                 I think that we will see right now,

          3  as Eric pointed out there are basically five aspects

          4  of it, attendance, retention of students, graduation

          5  rates, those types of things. But remember, we have

          6  always, as part of the principals performance

          7  review, looked at the entire picture of a school,

          8  and whether it was instructional focus, and

          9  achievement, student achievement, whether it was

         10  parental contact and parent support and cooperation,

         11  how you utilize that, professional development of

         12  your staff, those things have really not changed.

         13  So, it's too early to say what indeed will be

         14  different, so far we have not seen anything that's

         15  really different than what has happened in the past.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Let me turn to

         17  my colleagues. Council Member Lew Fidler of

         18  Brooklyn.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Good

         20  afternoon, Mr. Logan.

         21                 MR. LOGAN: Good afternoon.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I was looking

         23  at your appendix with some of the quotes of your

         24  principals, and certainly the one that you concluded

         25  your testimony with about it's time to stop for the

                                                            120

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  big sweeping changes, and, you know, time to focus I

          3  think kind of sums up my comments to the first

          4  witness.

          5                 And I also want to highlight the

          6  other quote that you lead your appendix with, "I

          7  will probably try to make the network groups more

          8  geographically aligned," because I think that's

          9  another point. I mean, I didn't even see the

         10  inefficiency of network groups that stretch across

         11  the City, but I think that's also apropos of the

         12  neighborhood school point.

         13                 The question I have for you, though,

         14  has got to do with one of the first quotes in your

         15  actual written testimony, which one of the

         16  principals said that the empowerment program has

         17  allowed them to make many, many decisions and

         18  choices that they would not have otherwise. And I

         19  guess my question is, is that more because they have

         20  greater flexibility? Or because they have been given

         21  the money to make those choices with?

         22                 MR. LOGAN: Well, I think it works for

         23  both ways.

         24                 I have been a principal also of a

         25  middle school, and I think Council Member Vann said
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          2  it somewhat best, those of us who tend to be

          3  successful skirted the edges somewhat of moving

          4  around from the micromanagement and the bureaucracy.

          5                 But one of the things I did not

          6  really have was access to the money, and I think

          7  what we're finding now is that, yes, there is

          8  additional money, but we also believe that many

          9  people are just walking that line, and so they're

         10  making some changes which leads me, as a union

         11  leader, to be somewhat troubled. Because I have seen

         12  more of my members having problems with the Auditor

         13  General and the Office of Special Investigations,

         14  Commission on Special Investigations, because they

         15  are indeed walking that line that doesn't quite

         16  exist without that support and oversight from a

         17  community superintendent or superintendent for that

         18  matter.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Would we not

         20  be best served by empowering all principals, giving

         21  them all the additional funding, and just running

         22  schools through the districts, instead of creating

         23  these amorphous networks?

         24                 MR. LOGAN: Well, I think I would be

         25  in agreement with you. We've always said, if
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          2  empowerment is so great, why not make 1,400 schools

          3  empowered.

          4                 But I'll tell you this. Unless we can

          5  have a support structure that will allow to have

          6  input from the community, where people will be

          7  involved and that people have a place to go for

          8  support and resources, whether you are a parent, a

          9  teacher or a school leader, it cannot be successful.

         10                 Right now the infrastructure of the

         11  present empowerment initiative is not strong enough

         12  to even support the schools that they have, from

         13  what we're hearing, to be able to expand it at a

         14  greater level.

         15                 I think you heard some of that from

         16  the questions and answers today.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Here here.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         19                 Council Member Jimmy Vacca of the

         20  Bronx.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Mr. President,

         22  thank you for your testimony.

         23                 I'm concerned about special ed also,

         24  and I did want to make a statement that when we had,

         25  before the old regional offices, many times the
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          2  number of special ed supervisors that were allocated

          3  to schools were based on the number of

          4  self-contained classes and resource rooms, but since

          5  the reorganization, we are finding, and I think you

          6  found, a lack of supervision in the special ed area

          7  in the school buildings. Many children, though,

          8  still in inclusion classes, in resource room, and in

          9  self-contained classes.

         10                 Now, one thing that you did mention I

         11  wanted to ask you about, it goes into my question,

         12  that is page five on the top, you mentioned about an

         13  Assistant Principal and a Bronx K to 8 school told

         14  us a key way to improve the empowerment initiative

         15  would be to reduce the amount of services schools

         16  have to pay for, which were free last year, for

         17  example, work with the Office of Youth Services.

         18                 My question is this, two fold: let's

         19  do this first. Is it your understanding that the

         20  empowerment money that schools were given last year

         21  as an inducement to join the empowerment model, were

         22  those one-year monies, or two-year monies? Were

         23  those monies allocated as an incentive and may not

         24  be there in September?

         25                 And my second question to you,
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          2  without putting you on the spot, is what grade do

          3  you give the empowerment school system after the

          4  first year? Or is the jury still out?

          5                 MR. LOGAN: Let me start with the

          6  first one. We are not sure exactly what the dollars

          7  will be for the new initiative, the expansion of the

          8  initiative.

          9                 We did raise the issue early on when

         10  we got reports from members that they were buying,

         11  they were paying for things that they thought that

         12  $150,000 could have been used to do something else,

         13  they found they had to buy things that they used to

         14  get.

         15                 We're hoping in our conversations now

         16  with the Chancellor's level, that it's a clear

         17  understanding of what's going to be available to

         18  principals who choose, if they do, to go into this

         19  initiative.

         20                 As with almost everything else that

         21  has been going on, there has been more questions

         22  than answers. And even listening today, I picked up

         23  some additional questions that I need to get answers

         24  to, because I heard some things today I was not sure

         25  about. I had never heard until I got here today.
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          2                 As for a grade, I see we all are into

          3  testing, everyone wants to assess everyone, I think

          4  the jury is still out. I've been a firm believer to

          5  see if something works in educating our children, we

          6  have to look at student achievement, and we have to

          7  look at student achievement across the board. We

          8  have to look at our sub groups, we have to look at

          9  all groups to see what we're really doing.

         10                 I am troubled that the data that was

         11  always put out is the data that comes from the

         12  Department, and you don't get the whole gist of it,

         13  because the story is not how many students have

         14  graduated, graduation rates, I think you also have

         15  to tell people how many students applied to the

         16  school and were accepted, started in day one, what

         17  grade, and how many finished at the end of it.

         18  Because then I think you will get a true picture of

         19  how effective a school is.

         20                 Now, you might be able to say, okay,

         21  students move, you have a very heavy transient

         22  population, but I would like to know sometimes how

         23  many students are no longer there.

         24                 When someone says to me I have a 95

         25  percent graduation rate, my next question is, is

                                                            126

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  that from the students who entered your building or

          3  the ones who are there now?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

          5  Council Member Gale Brewer, and then we're going to

          6  move toward the next panel.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay, I have

          8  four quick questions.

          9                 The first is on the space. When you

         10  have a situation where you have some principals in

         11  the empowerment zone and some not, I was just

         12  wondering, do you find that, I think you sort of

         13  hinted that that is a challenge, and how is that

         14  supposed to be worked out?

         15                 Second, and I think in the most

         16  recent round, the local superintendent was chosen by

         17  your principals. It seemed that way, because I know

         18  one superintendent didn't get selected and another

         19  did and she said the principals didn't select her,

         20  and now with all the jockeying there's going to be a

         21  lot of people looking to move into some of those

         22  superintendent positions.

         23                 So, I just didn't know if that's the

         24  case. And I hope it is because I hope your

         25  principals should have some say, as should parents.
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          2                 Third, this business model. I have a

          3  lot of principals calling me to ask me about Xerox

          4  machines, and I really don't know anything about

          5  Xerox machines. So, my question is, the Department

          6  of Education mentioned that they have some kind of

          7  business center. I just don't know if that works.

          8  The whole issue of business model when you're an

          9  educator, you do need a lot more support.

         10                 And then finally the arts, which I

         11  know Domenic Recchia cares about, we all care about;

         12  have you heard any discussion about your principals,

         13  you know, feeling comfortable? Obviously we all need

         14  the funding. I also think with the arts in

         15  particular, we just need some help knowing what

         16  dance company, what art company, what is the best.

         17                 So, this notion of Project Arts going

         18  the way principals having discretion is good on one

         19  hand, but I'm just wondering if your principals feel

         20  they need some assistance with a professional?

         21                 MR. LOGAN: Okay, I'm going to try. I

         22  took down some notes.

         23                 Empowerment/non-empowerment schools

         24  sharing space. Some of the issues the union has had

         25  to negotiate because it appears that especially on
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          2  the high school level, let me try to clarify this,

          3  on the high school level there is really no

          4  superintendent, there is no shared superintendent.

          5  If you were in the empowerment initiative, then

          6  you're rating officer or your line of supervision is

          7  Eric Nadelstern, the Chief Executive. If you are not

          8  in the initiative, it is you regional office, your

          9  regional superintendent, which may be your LIS.

         10                 We've had situations where

         11  empowerment schools and non-empowerment schools have

         12  had building issues, sometimes the union has had to

         13  come in and alleviate the dispute, and try to get a

         14  council together.

         15                 We have found, though, that when

         16  members get together and share ideas and best

         17  practices on how to share buildings, that they tend

         18  to work out better off. We usually recommend, that

         19  either someone is designated either whether it's

         20  floating each year, or has a term as the building

         21  principal, or that they hire an intermediate

         22  supervisor who becomes the building coordinator, who

         23  is in charge of dealing with the space.

         24                 The biggest issues that need to be

         25  addressed many times is timing of classes, some
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          2  people want to start early, some people want to

          3  start late, the use of the cafeteria, the use of the

          4  gymnasium, the use of the auditorium, we think that

          5  we have effectively worked on using school safety

          6  effectively. But every once in awhile that becomes a

          7  major problem, where one school has one set of

          8  rules, another school has another set of rules and

          9  the rules clash, because then you have School Safety

         10  Agents who say, well, I like this school, because at

         11  least they have some rules, and this school doesn't

         12  have rules. So, we wind up working with our

         13  counterparts and school safety to try to clear that

         14  up.

         15                 Whether on a network leader being

         16  chosen by principals, they were not superintendents,

         17  they are network leaders. They are not their rating

         18  officers. Principals were allowed to choose a

         19  network leader. You'll see in the testimony that

         20  some people said, I would rather have a real choice

         21  instead of just assign someone. It was like a quick

         22  dating service. There was a room set up, everybody

         23  went from room-to-room.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: It was like a

         25  what?
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          2                 MR. LOGAN: A quick dating service.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: A quick dating

          4  service.

          5                 MR. LOGAN: Have you heard of speed

          6  dating?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I haven't dated

          8  in like 35 years.

          9                 MR. LOGAN: Neither have I. Speed

         10  dating, as they call it. You went from room-to-room

         11  to meet your network leader, and then you decided to

         12  join someone's network. Some people were not able to

         13  get the choice they wanted, so they were put into

         14  places that they did not truly want. Those people

         15  are supposed to be support to the principal. They

         16  are not their rating officers.

         17                 We have effectively had litigation

         18  and stipulations from the Krueger Sanders (phonetic)

         19  lawsuit that says there is a community

         20  superintendent, there has always been a community

         21  superintendent. There has always been a community

         22  superintendent under Mayoral control.

         23                 And our community school district

         24  schools, that person is not selected by the

         25  principal, that person is chosen by the Chancellor
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          2  with input from the parent community.

          3                 That is the community --

          4                 (Audience outburst).

          5                 MR. LOGAN: All I can do is report

          6  what the law says.

          7                 That is supposed to happen where the

          8  community superintendent is selected by the

          9  Chancellor with input from the parents in the

         10  community.

         11                 On the business center model, I think

         12  one of the problems that we've had as members of

         13  empowerment initiative has been the fact that

         14  principals tell me they spend a lot more time doing

         15  other things except instruction. They're spending a

         16  lot more time dealing with issues that used to be

         17  taking place at the regional office or regional

         18  operations center. It has now all fallen on them.

         19                 So, one of the things that they would

         20  like to have is some relief from some of that,

         21  whether it's the copy machine getting it fixed, or

         22  getting a contract for a copy machine. Or dealing

         23  with the telephone people, or dealing with just the

         24  things that happened in the school.

         25                 For instance, one instance where

                                                            132

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  members said there was an issue with the cafeteria

          3  and before I used to be able to call the regional

          4  office and say send somebody over here to deal with

          5  this craziness, they had to go down and deal with it

          6  themselves.

          7                 So, we're moving the regional

          8  structure without putting something viable in place.

          9  Not building it as it's going but having it in place

         10  caused some of the confusion.

         11                 As for the arts, we are just as

         12  concerned as Domenic Recchia with the arts. This new

         13  reorganization, and we raised this many times, we're

         14  still trying to get answers to questions we have

         15  about how it affects the support that schools have,

         16  whether it's art, whether it's ELL, whether it's

         17  special education, when you start to dismantle the

         18  support mechanisms for the schools, and you don't

         19  have a model in place that we're all aware of now,

         20  we feel that there's going to be a major problem,

         21  and that's what we're looking at now.

         22                 But let me just say one last piece

         23  for you, Council Member Brewer. We have found that

         24  our members who were successful because they knew

         25  what they were doing are successful now.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: They're fine.

          3                 MR. LOGAN: Some of the people who are

          4  brand new are floundering, are having major

          5  problems, major issues, so we're trying to support

          6  them as a union because they're not getting the

          7  support that they thought they would get out of the

          8  network. But we also believe that when you have 49

          9  percent of your principals with less than two or

         10  three years of service, you are setting yourself up

         11  for failure down the road, because we must have a

         12  way to support good, quality school people, and I'm

         13  saying that these young people who have come into

         14  this can do this job, but they also need to have a

         15  support mechanism to make them successful, if not,

         16  we have a danger of burning them out and then we'll

         17  go through trying to recruit new people to come in.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: That makes me

         19  ask one question. If 49 or 50 percent are relatively

         20  new with two or three years of experience, do they

         21  have to spend money out of the money they receive

         22  for development and training for themselves, as new

         23  leaders?

         24                 MR. LOGAN: Well, I think you heard

         25  that today from Eric, professional development is
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          2  going to be --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: No, but that's

          4  professional development for your teachers and other

          5  people.

          6                 MR. LOGAN: No, also from yourselves.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Wait a minute.

          8                 MR. LOGAN: The only thing that

          9  principals get one year, first year teachers get

         10  support out of the Leadership Academy, many times

         11  second-year principals, if they're not part of a

         12  cohort group that's going through to support, will

         13  have to pay for professional development to come in

         14  and get that, mentors, et cetera.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, I know

         16  that the Principals' Union, your union, you have a,

         17  don't you have a network of developments?

         18                 MR. LOGAN: Yes. We have the Executive

         19  Leadership Institute, but our arrangement with the

         20  Department of Education is that we cannot do any

         21  professional development for principals, only for

         22  assistant principals.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Wait a minute.

         24  You can do it for Assistant Principals but not

         25  Principals. That doesn't really make sense. That
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          2  doesn't make common sense, considering that 50

          3  percent of your principals are relatively new.

          4                 MR. LOGAN: That's correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I'm talking

          6  common sense. Does that make sense to you?

          7                 MR. LOGAN: No, it does not make

          8  sense.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         10                 MR. LOGAN: But that is indeed the

         11  position that the Department of Education has

         12  insisted that all principal professional development

         13  must come out of the leadership academy or from what

         14  will happen now, probably whatever they're providing

         15  now that you can buy a fee for service. So, not from

         16  within CSA.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Wow. It leaves a

         18  lot to be desired. But let me ask a final question

         19  to you. I understand that you are the relatively new

         20  President of CSA, the Council of Supervisors and

         21  Administrators, and let me congratulate you on your

         22  ascension to the presidency. But I knew that a

         23  couple of months ago, the CSA, the School

         24  Supervisors and Administrators were without a

         25  contract for about four years. Do you currently have
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          2  a contract between the members that you represent

          3  and the Department of Education, since now we're

          4  moving towards 1,400 principals and schools deciding

          5  which direction they're going?

          6                 MR. LOGAN: No, we have not been able

          7  to negotiate a successor agreement to the one we

          8  presently are working under.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So, currently

         10  you're still working under the --

         11                 MR. LOGAN: The old agreement.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Which expired

         13  when?

         14                 MR. LOGAN: 2003.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: 2003.

         16                 MR. LOGAN: June.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: June. And this

         18  is March 5th, 2007.

         19                 MR. LOGAN: Correct. We are in the

         20  process of trying to move that along.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, I wish you

         22  all of the best of luck. But I want to thank you for

         23  coming in and sharing from the perspective of

         24  principals, supervisors and administrators your

         25  thoughts and opinions on this very, very important
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          2  subject matter. Thank you, Mr. Logan.

          3                 MR. LOGAN: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Next we're going

          5  to hear from Janella Hinds, Special Representative

          6  from UFT, United Federation of Teachers, along with

          7  Kim Tai, a teacher from UFT, ACCION Academy. And

          8  from Kerri Dowling, a Teacher from the Beacon School

          9  from West 61st Street, and Carol Griffin a teacher

         10  at PS 71, all representing UFT, United Federation of

         11  Teachers.

         12                 So, Ms. Hinds, you may begin.

         13                 MS. HINDS: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Just pull up

         15  your mic, I'm a little hard of hearing.

         16                 MS. HINDS: Okay. All right.

         17                 Good afternoon, everyone.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Good afternoon.

         19                 MS. HINDS: My name is Janella Hinds,

         20  and I am Special Representative for the United

         21  Federation of Teachers, and on behalf of UFT

         22  President Randi Weingarten, I want to thank Chairman

         23  Robert Jackson and the Committee for the opportunity

         24  to testify on the successes and failures of

         25  empowerment schools.
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          2                 In the time I have, I will lay out an

          3  analysis of the program's strengths and weaknesses.

          4  I will then be followed by classroom teachers who

          5  will share their experiences in these schools.

          6                 In your written testimony you have a

          7  letter that was written anonymously by a teacher in

          8  an empowerment school. I won't read it for you, but

          9  you should just note that that documentation is

         10  there and that teacher did not feel comfortable

         11  sitting before you and testifying this afternoon.

         12                 You don't have the written testimony,

         13  okay.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:

         15  Sergeant-at-Arms, can I get a copy of your written

         16  testimony, please.

         17                 Okay, go ahead, I'm sorry. Continue.

         18                 MS. HINDS: Our feelings about

         19  empowerment schools, as you know, one in every four

         20  City schools is now empowerment, are mixed. We did

         21  support the Autonomy Schools that were successful in

         22  the pilot program for the 48 schools that

         23  participated, but in the expansion of the

         24  empowerment, we haven't seen widespread success.

         25                 The UFT knows that schools work when
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          2  teachers have a voice. In those empowerment schools

          3  where collaboration between teachers, parents and

          4  administrators takes place, students are thriving,

          5  yet it is still a work in progress, a Beta version,

          6  if you will, complete with promising aspects and

          7  annoying bugs. Here are the positive aspects of

          8  empowerment:

          9                 - Schools have greater flexibility to

         10  design their own education plans. This affords those

         11  directly accountable to student achievement, the

         12  ability to develop educational programs tailored to

         13  the academic needs of other students, rather than

         14  applying to the cookie-cutter approach to each

         15  school.

         16                 - Principals have additional funding

         17  and more discretion on the budget and hiring and a

         18  collaborative school community to make financial

         19  decisions that reflect the needs of the students at

         20  that school; and

         21                 - These schools function under the

         22  UFT contract, which remains in full force. Teachers

         23  are protected by the same system of union

         24  representation that they always had. Each principal

         25  may have what is called "bounded autonomy," but such

                                                            140

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  autonomy does not mean that the principal is

          3  empowered to violate the contract or state or city

          4  statutes.

          5                 So, there are certainly successes in

          6  empowerment schools, but there continue, however, to

          7  be several striking concerns. The requirement that

          8  principals consult their school communities before

          9  signing the performance agreement was not uniformly

         10  obeyed. Administrators of numerous empowerment

         11  schools also continue to share information with the

         12  entire school community.

         13                 The lack of consultation and refusal

         14  to share information has left teachers, parents and

         15  students in many schools in the dark about impending

         16  changes, and unprepared for meaningful conversations

         17  about school policy.

         18                 The series of assessments required in

         19  each empowerment school is meant to increase

         20  data-driven instruction. It doesn't. Instead, it

         21  multiplies pressures on educators to privileged

         22  preparation, and limits student's attention to

         23  actual content. Results of the assessments, the

         24  majority of which are provided by contracts with

         25  Princeton Review and/or Kaplan come in too late and
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          2  a number of schools to serve as guide posts for how

          3  well students are learning.

          4                 In addition, administering the tests

          5  in six-week increments is overkill.

          6                 Many students required to receive

          7  mandated services are not getting them.

          8                 The union is investigating reports

          9  that the mandates listed on individualized education

         10  plans, or IEPs, for special education students, and

         11  the needs of English Language Learners are not being

         12  met. Particularly that small, self-contained classes

         13  are giving way to team teaching and inclusion

         14  classes.

         15                 We have also received allegations

         16  that principals are asking teachers and

         17  psychologists to change IEPs in order to stretch

         18  school dollars.

         19                 The integrated service center

         20  intended to merge the services of the Regional

         21  Operation Center and the Regional Learning Center

         22  has undergone three disruptive changes in leadership

         23  since September, making it difficult to get such

         24  matters as suspensions, leaves of absence and

         25  sabbaticals resolved in a timely manner.
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          2                 The change toward the network

          3  structure has resulted in fewer resources available

          4  on the superintendents' level to support

          5  instruction, as you just heard from Mr. Logan. New

          6  teacher induction and mentoring are absent in many

          7  empowerment schools, leaving school personnel

          8  isolated, unsupported and disengaged.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Wait a minute.

         10  You're making a statement, this is you, as a special

         11  representative from UFT based on what you're hearing

         12  from the teachers --

         13                 MS. HINDS: Absolutely.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: -- In the

         15  empowerment zone schools?

         16                 MS. HINDS: That's correct. I go to

         17  schools four days a week, I'm in schools all over

         18  the City speaking with Chapter leaders and other

         19  teachers at the schools to ask them what's going on

         20  with empowerment, and they are telling me, teachers,

         21  secretaries, guidance counselors, are telling me

         22  that they feel isolated and disengaged.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. So, this

         24  is based on all of the information that you're

         25  getting from your members out in the field?
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          2                 MS. HINDS: Absolutely.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay, great.

          4                 MS. HINDS: The shift to networks has

          5  also resulted in the creation of self selected

          6  groups that often do not convene meetings or

          7  workshops that allow for the opportunity to engage

          8  with fellow teachers, paraprofessionals, secretaries

          9  and other school-related personnel, a practice that

         10  was common under the regional structure.

         11                 The term empowerment has led some

         12  administrators with the impression that they are

         13  free to make unilateral decisions. Some

         14  administrators have made comments to that effect,

         15  resulting in an increase and tension between

         16  administrators and teachers, as well as the

         17  implementation of practices that have violated the

         18  contract and longstanding positive relationships.

         19                 The Department of Education has

         20  proclaimed this program a success. But that is

         21  premature. There is no evidence that empowerment

         22  works for enough of the students attending the 322

         23  schools in question.

         24                 The DOE must devote the time and

         25  effort necessary to improve empowerment before
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          2  expanding it. That means fully developing plans

          3  through consultation prior to implementation. It

          4  means listening to teachers and other educators and

          5  parents, in order to compile the information needed

          6  to really work the kinks out.

          7                 The UFT supports school reform.

          8  Empowerment does offer opportunities for positive

          9  reform that improves student achievement. By

         10  including teachers and other stakeholders in

         11  decision-making processes, empowerment can do that.

         12                 Now you will hear from our teachers

         13  and another teacher has joined us. They will tell

         14  you firsthand why some empowerment schools work

         15  well, and why others need additional support.

         16                 Thank you very much for the

         17  opportunity to testify.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         19                 Next.

         20                 MS. TAI: Good afternoon. My name is

         21  Kimberly Tai, and I am a teacher at the ACCION

         22  Academy and I teach science and physical education.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And is that the

         24  empowerment zone school?

         25                 MS. TAI: Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And how long has

          3  it been an empowerment zone?

          4                 MS. TAI: This is our first year.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: First year.

          6  Because it's only been the first year of operation.

          7                 MS. TAI: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: How long have

          9  you been at that school?

         10                 MS. TAI: This is my third year.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Go ahead.

         12  Continue, please.

         13                 MS. TAI: I'm also the UFT Chapter

         14  Leader. We are a new small middle school serving

         15  students from sixth to eighth grade in the Bronx,

         16  and September saw us in a new school building.

         17                 Our school's philosophy is explained

         18  in our name acronym, ACCION, which stands for

         19  Achievement Community Consciousness Integrity and

         20  Opportunity Now.

         21                 When the empowerment idea was first

         22  floated we were excited about how much more

         23  flexibility we could have as a school to meet our

         24  students' needs with better students' resources.

         25                 We also thought we could build a
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          2  strong relationship between our schools and its

          3  surroundings. Unfortunately, we were moved into an

          4  elementary school building where the physical space

          5  is inappropriate for our students.

          6                 We have a separate main entrance, one

          7  that was used originally for garbage disposal for

          8  the lunch room. We do not have a School Safety

          9  Agent, and instead we replace it with a school aid,

         10  so we are missing a staff every day.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Intermediate?

         12                 MS. TAI: Yes, up in the Bronx on

         13  Prospect Avenue.

         14                 Our gymnasium is actually two small

         15  elementary school classrooms combined and it is

         16  shaped in a rectangle shape. But with the

         17  empowerment on our side, we thought we might be able

         18  to find a better place for our students where we can

         19  call home, however, it's not.

         20                 We feel like our concerns are not

         21  being heard and that's a situation that's no

         22  different from how things used to be before we were

         23  empowerment.

         24                 We were even told that our budget was

         25  getting cut and we were faced with excessing (sic) a
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          2  teacher in November. Mentors are still not in our

          3  buildings to support our new teachers.

          4                 We have an arts program located on a

          5  cart and our social studies teacher run from

          6  classroom to classroom.

          7                 Our network leader rarely comes to

          8  the school, and when she does show up she only

          9  speaks to our principal and never asked teachers how

         10  we were doing.

         11                 We need more support and empowerment

         12  isn't helping us get that support. Our first-year

         13  teachers get no support from empowerment and are

         14  afraid to even speak up. Not a good situation for

         15  retaining new teachers. Nor is the amount of

         16  collaboration noteworthy.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: "Our principal

         18  has been involved..."

         19                 MS. TAI: Oh, I'm sorry.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Do you have it?

         21                 MS. TAI: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: That's why I

         23  number all of my pages. I don't want to have that,

         24  what do you call that slip, the 42nd?

         25                 MS. TAI: Where is page three?

                                                            148

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay, sorry.

          3                 MS. TAI: Our principal has been in my

          4  classroom for just three times this whole year. Our

          5  schedule does not even allow the LA teams meeting or

          6  the sixth grade meetings. In a small school of just

          7  200 kids, it should be easy to collaborate. It's not

          8  happening and we still have loads of paperwork to

          9  document requirements, and we still do without the

         10  support we need.

         11                 I even work closely with my principal

         12  in trying to figure out what to do to make sure that

         13  we don't rattle our students' success, as well as

         14  their faith in public education.

         15                 We thought we could rely on

         16  empowerments philosophy, however, the philosophy of

         17  empowerment also say you're on your own.

         18                 The bottom line, if you have a leader

         19  who truly empowers teachers, students and parents,

         20  to build and foster a culture of success, then

         21  empowerment works. If not, you've got the same old

         22  system, why further empower bad leaders?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Next.

         24                 MS. DOWLING: Hi. My name is Kerry

         25  Dowling. I'm also the UFT Chapter Leader and Special
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          2  Ed Resource Room Teacher at Beacon High School in

          3  Manhattan.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And how long

          5  have you been there?

          6                 MS. DOWLING: At Beacon this is my

          7  12th year, and it's my 17th with the Department.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay, and

          9  Beacon, again, like everybody else, is in the first

         10  year of empowerment?

         11                 MS. DOWLING: No, this is actually,

         12  well, it's first year of empowerment, it used to be

         13  autonomy, this is a third year in the new plan. It's

         14  the first year, each year it changes a little from

         15  autonomy, empowerment, et cetera.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay, good.

         17  Thank you. Go ahead.

         18                 MS. DOWLING: So, anyway, I can speak

         19  from my experience in working in District 1979,

         20  Region 10 and the Empowerment Schools. Beacon was in

         21  three of those over the years.

         22                 The benefit of being in the

         23  empowerment schools and our staff, in collaboration

         24  with the Administration, has had a chance to really

         25  work together, to set goals, plan curriculum and
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          2  design assessments.

          3                 We've designed our own professional

          4  development based on the needs of the students and

          5  we have four areas of focus for professional

          6  development, one is advisory, the different grade

          7  levels, curriculum and assessment.

          8                 Being in the zone has given our

          9  school freedom to do what's really best for our

         10  students as we see it. When I say "we" I really am

         11  talking about the majority of the teachers with the

         12  support of the Administration.

         13                 But in the school, it's especially

         14  true with special education, we used to have people

         15  coming from Region 10 to tell us what students

         16  should be decertified, and what should it say on the

         17  IEPs, and they had never met these students, so --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Isn't that

         19  illegal, for somebody to tell you what to change on

         20  the IEP when they're not part of the assessment

         21  team?

         22                 MS. DOWLING: I think it is.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         24                 MS. DOWLING: But they would encourage

         25  us to convene meetings to change classification --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You mean they

          3  were like sort of like in layman's terms twist your

          4  arm and almost try to break it?

          5                 MS. DOWLING: Well, they tried but --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: No, I'm just

          7  putting it in my terms, that's layperson's, they

          8  would twist your arm.

          9                 MS. DOWLING: Yes. No, they would come

         10  and say so and so should be decertified, and I would

         11  say, have you met the student? How can you say this.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         13                 MS. DOWLING: Anyway, their

         14  intervention on that level seemed to be more

         15  motivated by their bugetary concerns and by trendy

         16  ideas, than by what our students needed or by what

         17  the staff knew to be in the best interest of the

         18  students.

         19                 Right now the only problem we seem to

         20  have is finding speech teachers. That's something

         21  that used to be sent by the Board, but now that

         22  we're empowerment we have to find our own.

         23                 In the school we do our own

         24  assessments. We don't do Princeton review, or the

         25  Citywide mandates, and we've always done that and it
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          2  works. The biggest concern that we have now is a

          3  threat that would come from assessments that would

          4  be forced on us every six weeks, as in some other

          5  high schools.

          6                 If that formula was imposed, it would

          7  change for the worst, for the way teaching and

          8  learning is done at the school, and that teaching

          9  and learning has been very successful over the

         10  years.

         11                 If we are indeed empowered, the

         12  principals have the autonomy to make decisions, that

         13  autonomy becomes meaningless if we have to be fit

         14  into a cookie cutter schedule of assessments.

         15                 I think that expanding the number of

         16  empowerment schools should not be done without first

         17  taking a close look at what each school is doing

         18  right. I also think, and this may be key, that

         19  empowerment schools work when administrators, such

         20  as we have two administrators at the school who have

         21  collectively about 35 or 40 years of classroom

         22  experience, they were teachers for 20 years and 15

         23  years and then, you know, worked up to become

         24  principals.

         25                 So when they're experienced educators
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          2  with years of classroom practice, that's good, but

          3  if empowerment is gained by some people who aren't

          4  experienced, it could be disastrous, being that they

          5  have to do all these budgetary things without

          6  knowing how a school works and how a classroom

          7  works, and without somebody actually telling them

          8  how to spend money.

          9                 That's pretty much it.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, thank you

         11  for coming in and sharing as a UFT representative

         12  about Beacon High School. Thank you.

         13                 Next, please. Pull that mic all the

         14  way over to you. Just take it like it belongs to

         15  you.

         16                 MS. GRIFFIN: Okay.

         17                 I'm Carol Griffin. I teach second

         18  grade at PS 71, a pre-k to 7 school in the Bronx. I

         19  am also the UFT Chapter leader. I have taught at the

         20  school since 1969, and can state with certainty that

         21  PS 71 is, and has always been, a high-functioning

         22  school with strong commitments from staff, parents,

         23  local business leaders and community activists.

         24                 In fact, I'm very proud to say that

         25  one of your colleagues, our distinguished Councilman
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          2  James Vacca, is a graduate of PS 71. We are proud of

          3  you, Jimmy. And it wasn't empowerment, though.

          4                 Today PS 71 is culturally and

          5  economically diverse, serving some 1,500 students in

          6  Northeast Bronx. One of our key strengths remains

          7  having parents and the community actively involved

          8  in all aspects of school live. It is also

          9  significant that many staff members, including a

         10  number of our 112 UFT members, and one assistant

         11  principal, reside in the community. I am one of

         12  those.

         13                 My view of the success of the

         14  empowerment experiment at PS 71 is mixed. Some of

         15  the school community, including members of the

         16  Administration, the UFT and parents, were initially

         17  reluctant to embrace empowerment or fully support

         18  the principal's decision to apply for empowerment

         19  zone status. But with at least half of our school's

         20  families existing at the poverty level, a sizeable

         21  portion that is still too low to qualify for Title 1

         22  funding. The opportunity to receive additional

         23  funding persuaded us to give the empowerment program

         24  a chance.

         25                 The added funding was particularly
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          2  important because we are in the second year of

          3  expanding to eighth grade. Also persuasive was the

          4  principal's argument that autonomy would mean

          5  greater flexibility in decision making, regarding

          6  scheduling, program selections and certain

          7  curriculum mandates. Just one example.

          8                 At the principal's request, our UFT

          9  members approved a school-based option that shifted

         10  a professional development day originally scheduled

         11  for June to October.

         12                 This shift allowed the staff to

         13  receive a full day of instruction for implementation

         14  of a new math program at a more appropriate time,

         15  the beginning of the school year.

         16                 As with every new experience, there

         17  have been a few differences of opinion. For example,

         18  the scheduling initiated by the principal caused

         19  some concern among some concern among parents and

         20  teachers.

         21                 The official schedule for sixth and

         22  seventh graders runs from 9:00 a.m. to 3:50 p.m.

         23  There is no formal lunch period. The children have a

         24  30-minute break to eat lunch in the classrooms. That

         25  issue has been discussed but has not yet been fully
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          2  resolved.

          3                 A suggestion for improvement: both

          4  the principal and the union agree that we would

          5  benefit for more support from the empowerment

          6  network leaders. My principal did not get to choose

          7  his own network or leader. And perhaps some revision

          8  on how the network style of organization is

          9  structured.

         10                 While we realize that this system is

         11  in transition, we believe that such external support

         12  between the network staff and all community

         13  constituents, including the UFT, would enable us to

         14  better embrace the opportunities offered by the

         15  empowerment philosophy and vision. And I thank you

         16  for the opportunity to testify. It is just this

         17  short of meaningful collaboration among City

         18  officials, the UFT, administrators and parents that

         19  will lead to the educational excellence that our

         20  children deserve.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, thank you

         22  for coming in.

         23                 Next.

         24                 MR. OTTO: Good afternoon, or early

         25  evening, I should say at this point. My name is Mark
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          2  Otto. I am a Special Education teacher at The Facing

          3  History School, which is on the west side. We've

          4  been open for a year and a half, and this is our

          5  first year in the empowerment zone. This is my

          6  second year at this particular school.

          7                 We are a great example of success,

          8  and that success is due in large measure to the

          9  leadership of our principal Gillian Smith. Not only

         10  our teachers and staff consulted when decisions in

         11  the school are made, but we are active participants

         12  with our principal on the committees that make the

         13  decisions that best serve the needs of our students

         14  and staff.

         15                 I have worked both in suburban New

         16  Jersey schools and inner-city Los Angeles, and I

         17  have never been treated with such professional

         18  respect as I am now under Gillian Smith's

         19  leadership. And I say this because I believe that

         20  the success of empowerment schools is largely

         21  depending on the character and vision of the

         22  principal in each school.

         23                 Between the principal's leadership

         24  and the freedom that comes with being an empowerment

         25  school, the staff is enabled to design and
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          2  effectively implement rigorous, innovative,

          3  interdisciplinary and culturally relevant curriculum

          4  than engaged all of our students.

          5                 Our core courses require students to

          6  complete projects that show their mastery of skills

          7  and content. For example, students in forensics must

          8  evaluate an elaborately arranged crime scene while

          9  math students use math skills to design floor plans

         10  and bridges and our Social Studies curriculum

         11  compares human rights in various countries and

         12  engage in debates about the current crisis in

         13  Darfur. There are many other examples I can give,

         14  too, that explain why the staff appreciates both

         15  flexibility and the guidance offered to us in

         16  designing curriculum. Being an empowerment school

         17  has allowed us to create the exact curriculum to

         18  meet the needs of our students, rather than

         19  implement a district or region-wide initiative with

         20  little or no relevance for them.

         21                 We also benefit from the freedom to

         22  integrate more resources from outside organizations.

         23  Beginning with our lead partner, Facing History and

         24  Ourselves, the school maintains a number of

         25  partnerships with organizations that provide
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          2  additional resources to the school. A partnership

          3  with Working Playground provides art studio classes

          4  to students, as well as an arts integration program

          5  that pairs teaching artists with core subject

          6  teachers, allowing students to express the new

          7  knowledge they have gained through visual art,

          8  poetry and video.

          9                 We work with educators for social

         10  responsibility on an advisory curriculum that

         11  involves students in the difficult work of becoming

         12  a community of learners that is responsible to each

         13  other.

         14                 Facing History and Ourselves provides

         15  curricular support, volunteers who help students

         16  one-on-one with reading, writing and math skills,

         17  and an incredible speaker series that has brought

         18  outstanding leaders to the school.

         19                 And we have the freedom to create a

         20  schedule that enables us to incorporate all of the

         21  necessary classes in time slots that we feel are

         22  most effective.

         23                 We have many small classes and we use

         24  collaborative team teaching, as well as tutors and

         25  volunteers to give all students, not just those with
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          2  learning differences, additional support.

          3                 Teachers have office hours at lunch

          4  and after school to meet the students individually.

          5  Each student has an advisor and advisory meets four

          6  times a week. Advisors make regular contact with

          7  students' families. Our principal understands that

          8  teachers need time during the school day to meet

          9  with their departments in order to plan lessons

         10  together.

         11                 Without the ability to create a

         12  schedule that allows for this teacher time, we would

         13  be forced, like many other teachers around the City,

         14  to use our own time outside of school hours which

         15  puts undue stress on teachers.

         16                 We are thankful to have a leader who

         17  understands us and respects our time as educators.

         18                 In closing, let me restate my belief

         19  that empowerment schools can only work if they have

         20  a leader with a vision for something new, something

         21  better and the courage to make changes against

         22  insurmountable odds. The most important change my

         23  principal made was allowing staff to have a voice in

         24  the process. No longer are the decisions made in a

         25  top-down manner. We are lucky to have a leader who
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          2  celebrates our strengths and inspires us on a daily

          3  basis to be better than we are.

          4                 I thank you for this opportunity to

          5  share my story, and I leave an open invitation for

          6  you to visit The Facing History School.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you. How

          8  many students in your school?

          9                 MR. OTTO: We have 215 students.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Is it high

         11  school, intermediate?

         12                 MR. OTTO: High school. It's only our

         13  second year open.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Are you

         15  basically waivered to take in the ELL students?

         16                 MR. OTTO: We do have ELL students,

         17  yes, from first year on, and we have special

         18  education students.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: This is your

         20  first year?

         21                 MR. OTTO: This is our second year,

         22  but we had ELL students from the first year.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: First year.

         24                 MR. OTTO: And special ed students,

         25  and we volunteered to take self-contained students
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          2  in year two.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: How long has

          4  your principal been a principal?

          5                 MR. OTTO: She's been the head

          6  principal only for one year, but she was an AP prior

          7  to this school opening.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

          9                 MR. OTTO: She opened this school.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay, thank you.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: If I can ask

         12  quickly, where on the west side are you?

         13                 MR. OTTO: We're at West 50th and

         14  Tenth Avenue.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: West 50th and

         16  Tenth. Are you in a former high school or something?

         17                 MR. OTTO: We're in what used to be

         18  Park West High School.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Park West High

         20  School, okay.

         21                 MR. OTTO: That building.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay, thank you.

         23                 Next, please.

         24                 MR. QUESTER: Good afternoon. My name

         25  is Steve Quester, and I'm a second grade teacher and
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          2  a UFT Chapter leader at The Children's School in

          3  Brooklyn. We're a collaborative team teaching

          4  elementary school which integrates children with

          5  special needs and typically developing children. Our

          6  school is in its 15th year, and we're in our first

          7  year as an empowerment school.

          8                 I've been a New York City public

          9  school teacher since 1990, and a staff member with

         10  The Children's School since 1994.

         11                 I think the empowerment model works

         12  at our school, but then so did the previous systems

         13  of government. For us it hasn't made a huge

         14  difference, and here is why: I'm going to start with

         15  a syllogism: good schools work well. Our school,

         16  since its founding in 1992, has had a strong

         17  partnership between the administration and the

         18  faculty. That's why empowerment has worked well in

         19  our school, and why regional administration, and

         20  before that district administration, also worked

         21  well at our school. Student outcomes, staff

         22  retention and family satisfaction have been

         23  exemplary under all three structures.

         24                 Yes, there are some aspects of

         25  empowerment that are an improvement over regional
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          2  administration. We teachers now choose the

          3  professional development that is aligned to our

          4  needs as learners, rather than being ordered by

          5  regional staff to show up at workshops we do not

          6  want or need.

          7                 We've worked with the other schools

          8  in our network and with the Teachers College Reading

          9  and Writing Project to design rigorous interim

         10  assessments precisely aligned to balanced literacy

         11  as it is practiced in New York City, rather than

         12  having to administer commercially produced

         13  assessments that wasted our students' time and our

         14  own. And having a bit more in discretionary funds

         15  has allowed us to hire additional staff to implement

         16  an even richer program in academics, technology and

         17  the arts.

         18                 By and large, we're the same school

         19  we were under regional and district administration.

         20  We have a principal and assistant principals who

         21  trust and respect teachers, paras and related

         22  service providers. They also hold us to high

         23  standards. The result is that teachers, paras and

         24  related services providers in our school trust and

         25  respect children, and hold them to high standards.
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          2                 That's why I said it's not ultimately

          3  about which management structure the Department of

          4  Education picks. It's about having a Chancellor and

          5  a staff at Tweed who respect our skills and our

          6  input and treat educators the way our principal

          7  treats his faculty. Without that, schools cannot

          8  succeed. Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, let me

         10  thank you all for coming in and sharing with us your

         11  specific school's situations and opinions about

         12  empowerment zone schools. We really appreciate it

         13  and we thank you for coming in.

         14                 Unfortunately, I have to move the

         15  panel, so I'm not going to ask any questions, but

         16  clearly you had positive opinions and some negatives

         17  and some washes, and I guess that's the way it

         18  really is. And, so, we're trying to understand it in

         19  order to move forward from a positive point of view

         20  and try to work collaboratively with whoever, you

         21  know, knowing that sometimes you agree and sometimes

         22  you disagree, and hopefully we'll all move forward.

         23  Thank you very much.

         24                 MS. HINDS: Chairman Jackson, can I

         25  just mention that there is another written testimony
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          2  submitted --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Yes, an

          4  anonymous one.

          5                 MS. HINDS: From Valerie Dudley.

          6  Valerie Dudley was supposed to appear, but she had a

          7  faculty conference this afternoon.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

          9                 MS. HINDS: And she's discussing

         10  safety issues.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         12                 MS. HINDS: And professional

         13  development, and the need for both safer school

         14  system and professional development at Kappa II up

         15  in Harlem.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Kappa II in

         17  Harlem.

         18                 MS. HINDS: Kappa II in Harlem.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you very

         20  much.

         21                 MS. HINDS: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And next we're

         23  going to hear from David Bloomfield, President of

         24  the Citywide Council on High Schools, and Corinna

         25  Lindenberg, CPAC, President Council District 1.
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          2  Earth School. And from Muba Yarofulani, CPAC

          3  President Council District 18, and Monica Ayuso, PS

          4  8, Queens, Jamaica New York MS 8 Empowerment School.

          5                 Please come forward. And you may

          6  begin, David Bloomfield. Sorry we're running late.

          7                 MR. BLOOMFIELD: Good afternoon.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Pull that mike

          9  up a little bit, David. I'm a little hard of

         10  hearing. Not really, but I mean --

         11                 MR. BLOOMFIELD: Okay. Thank you,

         12  Chairman Jackson. My name is David Bloomfield, and

         13  I'm proud to be what the Chancellor derisively calls

         14  "a lifelong educator." I am also the parent of an

         15  empowerment school student and President of the

         16  Citywide Council on High Schools, an elected parent

         17  body mandated to advise the Chancellor whether he

         18  wants it or not.

         19                 I'll skip my resume, you know it

         20  well, but I do want to speak about the time that I

         21  served as Executive Director of the Partnership for

         22  Effective Education Management at the New York City

         23  Partnership. It was over ten years ago, and in that

         24  role I staffed a partnership task force in school

         25  governance, and in 1996, I wrote a report called "A
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          2  System of Schools," appended to the testimony, which

          3  I think merits close reading.

          4                 Over ten years ago A System of

          5  Schools called for transforming school governance

          6  and management in New York for high achievement.

          7  Permit me to read from the first paragraph.

          8                 "... To accomplish this, we need to

          9  increase accountability and decrease bureaucracy."

         10  We've heard that before I guess. "This can be

         11  accomplished through a governance structure that

         12  empowers parents and locates responsibility at the

         13  school level. The details of this reform plan are

         14  negotiable, but our sense of urgency is not." Ten

         15  years ago we wrote: "By September 1st, 2000, we

         16  should have moved to a system of largely autonomous

         17  schools with oversight provided by a dramatically

         18  thinned central administration with limited powers."

         19                 I guess I should be careful what I

         20  wished for. Though seven years overdue by the

         21  reports count, we are now entering the empowerment

         22  era. Based on the reports recommendations and

         23  current views, what is good and what is wrong with

         24  today's efforts?

         25                 You may have noticed that the means

                                                            169

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  first enunciated by the report was to create, "a

          3  governance structure that empowers parents," and

          4  only then "locates responsibility at the school

          5  level." Our Executive Summary thus called for

          6  "greater parental participation in educational

          7  matters promoted through establishment of School

          8  Governance Councils with real authority."

          9                 The single greatest flaw in the plan

         10  to expand empowerment is the absence of parents from

         11  the equation. Go to any empowerment school's website

         12  and parents will be noticeably absent. Maybe my name

         13  will be there if it's a high school, but there is no

         14  explanation of its presence. The name and phone

         15  number of the Network Support Leader will be there,

         16  but there is hardly a parent in New York who knows

         17  that the team leader is the go to person for

         18  complaints beyond the school level. Parent after

         19  parent after parent after parent has complained that

         20  empowerment schools lack functional school

         21  leadership teams. That is not real authority in the

         22  report's words. That is nothing.

         23                 As a result, parents in empowerment

         24  schools are largely at the mercy of school

         25  principals, and the greatest number of complaints
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          2  that I get about empowerments are the seemingly

          3  arbitrary actions of principals who have no internal

          4  check on their authority.

          5                 For example, at my own child's

          6  school, last semester's new interim schedule caused

          7  chaos, and we anticipate a similar situation when

          8  parent conferences for over 2,500 students are

          9  reduced to a single two-and-a-half hour period on a

         10  Thursday evening.

         11                 In an especially bizarre exercise of

         12  discretion, the school nurse, with the approval of

         13  the Assistant Principal for organization removed all

         14  beds from her office to prevent students from

         15  supposed "malingering." To her credit, once parents

         16  brought this to the principal's attention, one bed

         17  was replaced but a stronger parent role in

         18  governance might have prevented all of these

         19  occurrences.

         20                 In another school, and I would add

         21  it's The Facing History School that was so

         22  positively reviewed about a minute ago, my

         23  intervention was required to help transfer a student

         24  where the inexperienced principal clearly targeted

         25  the pupil for excessive punishment. What that means
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          2  is, you can hear good things about a school, you can

          3  have bad things about a school, but if we don't know

          4  what's going on in the school and under the new

          5  system we won't, anything can be going on.

          6                 That brings me to my second major

          7  point, and I think this may be the Achilles Heel in

          8  the empowerment scheme. This may be the right reform

          9  at the wrong time. I should be clear now, I am a big

         10  supporter of the empowerment concept and many of its

         11  practical details, however, when a system of schools

         12  was written in the mid-nineties, you had a

         13  relatively stable experienced group of principals in

         14  approximately 1,000 schools.

         15                 But today, approximately half of our

         16  principals in 1,400 schools have under three years

         17  experience, and they often lack extended

         18  apprenticeship as assistant principals. If they were

         19  assistant principals at all, they probably served

         20  under an inexperienced principal, adding to the

         21  current gap in leadership knowledge.

         22                 I should know, I run a leadership

         23  program. But what I can do is by definition to

         24  prepare novices. It is like a law school preparing

         25  first year associates. They're not ready to manage
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          2  the firm any more than my grads are immediately

          3  ready to run a school.

          4                 Here we are poised to empower the

          5  novices. And what's the Chancellor's answer? Hire

          6  retired principals through privatization, that

          7  includes the leadership academy, as well as the

          8  PSOs, PLOs, I don't know what they are, to hold the

          9  novices' hands.

         10                 So, instead of negotiating a contract

         11  to retain experienced principals, the Chancellor

         12  will pay them a pension, then allow them to double

         13  dip as private support providers. It's crazy.

         14                 Thank you for your time this

         15  afternoon. The empowerment initiative is a worth

         16  while effort marred by the same issues I've explored

         17  in my recent testimony, in restructuring and small

         18  schools. In their zeal to ring quick rewards for

         19  worthwhile reforms, the Mayor and Chancellor do

         20  themselves, their initiatives and students great

         21  harm. To prevent organized opposition, they shut out

         22  parents and the larger community. They derive

         23  cautionary advice from educators as incrementalism.

         24  They do everything in their power to evade checks

         25  and balances, whether it is sole source contracting,
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          2  or telling this very body that it has no power to

          3  legislate on education.

          4                 I assure you that such temerity was

          5  not our aim in drafting a system of schools. I hope

          6  the Mayor and Chancellor follow the lead of the

          7  report in believing the details of reform need to be

          8  negotiable.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you,

         11  David.

         12                 Next.

         13                 MS. LINDENBERG: Hi. My name is

         14  Corinna Lindenberg, and I am from an empowerment

         15  school in the East Village, and I am from the

         16  Presidents Council in District 1 and an executive

         17  member of CPAC, the Chancellor's Parent Advisory

         18  Council.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And the

         20  empowerment zone school is a high school, an

         21  intermediate school?

         22                 MS. LINDENBERG: It's an elementary

         23  school.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Elementary

         25  school. Okay.
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          2                 MS. LINDENBERG: As a quick reaction

          3  to Mr. Nadelstern, I would like to say that he was

          4  talking about the network structure has five

          5  officers, I just want to mention there is no parent

          6  officer out of these five officers.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: They have no

          8  parent officer out of the five officers?

          9                 MS. LINDENBERG: No.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         11                 MS. LINDENBERG: A few of the networks

         12  were told that they can call the management person

         13  from these officers if there is a parent concern.

         14  But, you know, I'm wondering, how good could it be?

         15                 And also that he talked about a three

         16  days quality review, and my schools in District 1,

         17  they have been one and a half days, all of them. So,

         18  that's just not correct. And I wonder how much you

         19  can really see in one and a half days.

         20                 Okay, so thank you very much for this

         21  opportunity to testify. I feel obligated to testify

         22  on this issue of empowerment zone schools,

         23  especially since the Chancellor doesn't leave out

         24  any opportunity to use me as a poster parent for

         25  empowerment zone schools. He followed my invitation
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          2  to visit my school and liked what he saw. So, here I

          3  am.

          4                 Empowerment zone schools challenged

          5  me personally, and I will try now to represent my

          6  school's perspective as a parent, and I will also

          7  try to give you a little view of my principal's

          8  perspective, since she cannot testify here today.

          9                 In addition to that, I have to

         10  represent my district, District 1, as the Presidents

         11  Council President with a little different view on

         12  this issue, and as an executive member of CPAC, I

         13  have to give you an overview of our parental

         14  experiences Citywide, as will my colleagues here

         15  that will follow me up.

         16                 I will start on the local level of my

         17  school, the Earth School. We became empowered this

         18  year, and are part of the bunch of schools that were

         19  selected. The effect immediately was a larger

         20  budget, a one-time shot though, and less oversight

         21  by district school officials who can be very

         22  interrupting if you are unlucky and have one of

         23  those.

         24                 We are a progressive school.

         25  Progressive defined as not teaching to the test;
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          2  teaching to make children become life-long learners

          3  in all subjects. Specifically because of that we

          4  appreciate less administration and more

          5  instructional time for all educators in the school.

          6                 Our school became part of a network,

          7  a conscious decision, that decided to Do Your Own,

          8  DYO, assessment. That's what they're called. This is

          9  a little complicated. Every network has to stick

         10  together in this decision and can either use a

         11  vendor, the vendor is Princeton Review, or the DYO,

         12  for the six-week assessments that they have to do

         13  now.

         14                 In the DYO process, each school in

         15  the network participates in the Committee of

         16  Teachers Plus Principal that develop their own

         17  assessment for the whole network.

         18                 So, these assessments are the

         19  six-week, six times a year assessment, which DYO

         20  wants to measure the progress of our children's

         21  learning. Our schools are doing fantastic work here

         22  and we get a preview of the work during our SLT

         23  meetings, because we have functioning SLTs on this

         24  network.

         25                 These networks might be in jeopardy
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          2  because of the restructuring this year. There will

          3  be many more schools that choose empowerment and

          4  even if the networks, we're told, that can remain

          5  the same, the destabilizing fact of the redo after

          6  one year for these schools make them feel it will

          7  not remain the same. And all the work in DYO, Do

          8  Your Own assessment, might be cancelled if partners

          9  fall out of the network, because that's part of the

         10  contract that they had to agree to.

         11                 I always stress to the Chancellor and

         12  the DEO (sic) officials that my school was great

         13  before the E school introduction and remains great

         14  until now, but we still haven't seen the end of it.

         15                 The letter grade will be hard on us.

         16  We got a D. Which is unbelievable in such a rich and

         17  satisfying learning environment, and therefore the

         18  grading system all together has already proved wrong

         19  for me.

         20                 I'm sorry, can I finish up for this?

         21                 This is because the letter grade is

         22  based for 85 percent of the high stakes test

         23  results, and as I told you, we don't teach to the

         24  test. If they stick to that plan that a school with

         25  two years having a letter grade D will need a new
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          2  principal, then our school will be closed.

          3                 As I told you, the Chancellor liked

          4  what he saw and even said "if all my 1,456 schools

          5  would look like yours, I would be out of my job."

          6  That's what he said when they looked at my school in

          7  December. So, this makes no sense to me, and nobody

          8  can explain why it would.

          9                 Our school is also small. The certain

         10  measures they put in the grading system, like

         11  special benefits for ELL, special ed and so on,

         12  which we have, don't count for our school because

         13  you also have to show at least a number of 20

         14  children in order for it to apply to us.

         15                 We just have a school of 314

         16  children, so we never have special ed kids that are

         17  over a number of 20 children. It's impossible. So

         18  these numbers don't apply to us. We don't get the

         19  benefit in our letter grade.

         20                 So, we have great success with groups

         21  of children but they don't count for us. When they

         22  start to attach the funding to this structure, it

         23  will get really dirty.

         24                 Why would a principal work with those

         25  groups in little schools, if there's nothing he/she
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          2  gets out of it than a bad grade? My principal is not

          3  like that, and God bless her for that, but others

          4  might be. This is a discriminating factor of this

          5  whole thing.

          6                 I need like half a minute I think.

          7                 But the thought occurs to me that our

          8  small, then punished and maybe closed schools will

          9  then be the perfect place for Charter schools to

         10  take over our space, our children with their ideas

         11  and directors where parent involvement is not at all

         12  usual or common.

         13                 The data the system is based on is

         14  also wrong and my District 1 CEC or me will be happy

         15  to provide you with the wrong data that is

         16  essentially comparing schools in order to get this

         17  letter grade.

         18                 This leads, very quickly, just to my

         19  Citywide experience. We are very afraid on the

         20  Citywide level that the schools that are not

         21  functioning will be worse and that we have a school

         22  decision only made by the principal in all the

         23  schools where there is no SLT working and not even

         24  installed, and we have to fix this first before we

         25  can put the power into the schools. And also the
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          2  change already that there's less oversight, but the

          3  district is changed, the district and superintendent

          4  will rate its principals. That's a new change

          5  already within this first year of empowerment zones.

          6                 Thank you very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

          8                 Next, please.

          9                 MR. YAROFULANI: Thank you very much.

         10  My name is Muba Yarofulani, and sometimes it's

         11  easier to spell than pronounce. I am a parent

         12  leader. I have a passion for what I do. I've been

         13  doing this for many years, and I am here to address

         14  parental involvement, parent empowerment.

         15                 I am very concerned. I'm of District

         16  89, I'm President of President Council. I meet with

         17  18 presidents on a monthly basis. Some of our

         18  schools are not empowered and some are.

         19                 As a parent leader and a president of

         20  the Council, even if my school itself is not

         21  empowered, I have to meet with presidents whose

         22  schools are empowered. There is no formal training

         23  given to President Council members. We are here for

         24  every president, and according to the Chancellor's

         25  regulation, empowerment schools has the same
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          2  guideline as a regular school on Parent

          3  Associations, President Councils, Parent Advisory

          4  Councils; however, we have no direct training as to

          5  address our parents when they call us, knowing that

          6  President Council is a source of parents getting

          7  information, parents who have grievance to be filed,

          8  that we address these grievances, we don't know who

          9  to turn to, we have to call the district office and

         10  even sometimes the parent support officers don't

         11  know who we should turn to when an empowerment

         12  school parent has a concern.

         13                 I recently had a major problem where

         14  a parent was highly disrespected and banned from one

         15  of the empowerment schools in my district. This

         16  parent had done all sort of outreach, even to the

         17  Chancellor's Office.

         18                 In the long run, I have the letter

         19  where it states from the Chancellor's Office. After

         20  I said to that parent, listen, you know what? Call

         21  3-1-1. Because we are not getting any answer from

         22  anyone.

         23                 When the parent called 3-1-1, the

         24  answer came back to them stating go back to your

         25  principal, the same principal who encouraged the
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          2  disrespect to take place. We had nowhere to turn to.

          3                 I am really very, very frustrated

          4  because each time we have something in place, within

          5  a year, two years, we have to begin all over again.

          6  The parents are not informed. Every school that is

          7  empowered should have the names of these network

          8  leaders that parents could do an outreach to, and

          9  that they know that they can trust.

         10                 We are very much struggling as it is,

         11  before empowerment, so please we have an equal say

         12  and should have an equal say to what is happening in

         13  our schools, we should be trained and trained at the

         14  level as everyone else. So, this is my cry out to

         15  the Department of Ed, we need to be treated with

         16  respect, we need to be treated equal because they

         17  have always spoken about partnership, and that is

         18  partnership, being treated equally. Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, thank you.

         20                 Next, please.

         21                 MS. AYUSO: Good evening. My name is

         22  Monica Ayuso, and I am, in addition to a PTA

         23  President of an empowerment school, I'm also a CPAC

         24  representative for District 28.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Monica, could
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          2  you pull your mic up a little closer, or can you

          3  speak a little louder? I'm hard of hearing.

          4                 MS. AYUSO: Okay. Is this better?

          5                 As a parent of middle school students

          6  currently attending an empowerment school in South

          7  Jamaica, Queens, I am extremely disappointed and

          8  discouraged by the current status of my empowerment

          9  school, SINI, School In Need of Improvement, first

         10  year. Years of being identified as a school in good

         11  standing gone. Our change in status derived from the

         12  drastic change and leadership. The newly appointed

         13  principal for 2005/'06 school year, acted autonomous

         14  of the Chancellor's regulations, regional and

         15  district superintendent, our school leadership team

         16  and other stakeholders in our school community.

         17  Becoming part of the empowerment school model was

         18  right up his alley. On or about June 6th, 2006, in a

         19  post script of an e-mail from the principal wherein

         20  he informed the parent leaders that he submitted an

         21  application to become part of the empowerment school

         22  model, this notification came one day after a

         23  restructuring plan was imposed by the parents on the

         24  grounds that he failed to comply with numerous

         25  Chancellor's regulations and failed to consult with
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          2  the SLT. I provided you an exhibit with what he sent

          3  out, what his plan included.

          4                 Despite documented knowledge that our

          5  principal was not, not a collaborative leader, our

          6  middle school was accepted to participate in an

          7  empowerment school model. In July 2006, our School

          8  Leadership Team reconvened for the purpose of

          9  incorporating his new plan, academy plan, into the

         10  2006/'07 comprehensive educational plan. I need to

         11  point out, we gave up our summer to come back and

         12  incorporate his plans that he presented to us in

         13  late June as a plan for how he wanted to run the

         14  school in September, at which time we were informed

         15  that empowerment was here to stay, specifically the

         16  DOE will protect their clients, their principal - I

         17  thought the clients were the students.

         18                 What I have learned so far is that

         19  the premise that the principal will lose their job

         20  in two years based on meeting academic performance

         21  targets has added a fear amongst principals and

         22  destroyed the fundamental values of SLT as a school

         23  decision-making body.

         24                 In October 2006, while attending a

         25  School Leadership Team training workshop, a
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          2  principal stated, and I quote, "I have the final say

          3  because I am the one who will lose my job." In my

          4  middle school, that fear has not been realized. It

          5  has not. Our principal is more concerned with his

          6  image, thereby resulting in the purchasing of new

          7  office furniture for his office and secretarial

          8  staff, including carpeting, while our library one

          9  flight up remained bare, without any books, and our

         10  Science Department lacks a lab for the eighth

         11  graders who are required to take a state exam.

         12                 Students identified with disabilities

         13  are unwelcomed in that school. In July 2007, our

         14  principal -- 2006, our principal kicked out the

         15  District 75 special needs program from the school.

         16  Thus we have inherited more classrooms, which have

         17  not resulted in small class size, an average class

         18  is 29 or 30 students, with an exception of two CTT

         19  classes, Collaborative Team Teaching, which has 24

         20  to 25 students and our mandated 12:1 and 12:1:1

         21  classes, I believe we have five.

         22                 This classroom new space has been

         23  transformed into conference rooms and staff offices,

         24  not classrooms with children in it.

         25                 Interim, Alternative, Educational
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          2  Setting, IAES hearings are conducted to remove

          3  special needs students from this middle school, in

          4  lieu of providing additional support services. Their

          5  efforts were unsuccessful.

          6                 Principal and superintendent

          7  suspensions are on the rise amongst the school,

          8  including students identified as ED, emotional

          9  disturbance; however, there lacks consistency in the

         10  consequences or official reporting of suspension.

         11                 Our principals sets the schedule, at

         12  the start of the school year all students receiving

         13  pull-out services for the Special Education Teacher

         14  Support Services, were changed to push-in, blatantly

         15  disregarding the students' agreed-upon

         16  recommendation on their IEP. This change took effect

         17  without the participation of parents. After parents

         18  started to inquire, then changes were made back to

         19  what their IEPs originally stated.

         20                 In December 2006, the principal

         21  informed parents that Academic Intervention Services

         22  target students on the bubble, high-level two's and

         23  low-level three's. Low-level two's are not the

         24  focus.

         25                 The 37.5 minutes is provided to level

                                                            187

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  1's during lunchtime, which means they eat lunch

          3  first and are picked up from the cafeteria by their

          4  teachers to receive instruction. It is clear that

          5  they are not receiving 37 and a half minutes.

          6                 Our principal's plans for restrictive

          7  movement has resulted in safety concerns. Teachers

          8  pass from class-to-class instead of students. Lack

          9  of student supervision during the time teachers are

         10  traveling from class-to-class have resulted in a

         11  rise in classroom incidents.

         12                 Most of the strategies implemented in

         13  the classroom focusing on academic improvement fails

         14  to take into consideration the different learning

         15  styles of the students.

         16                 Auditory, visual and technical

         17  skills, students that require those skills are never

         18  focused on.

         19                 Specifically special need students

         20  must conform to the product they're using and not

         21  what their needs are. So, they are left behind.

         22                 Many of our teachers lack control of

         23  the classroom as their seating charts are

         24  micromanaged by the Administration, and they must

         25  submit changes to the Administration before changing
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          2  a child's seat. They are powerless. The first period

          3  of each day is dedicated to uniformed enforcement,

          4  which means making boys stand up and tuck their

          5  shirts in. They take off their sweaters if they're

          6  not the appropriate color. So, if your child has a

          7  sweater that is not the color of the Administration

          8  wants, the child will be walking around without a

          9  sweater for that day, irregardless of the climate in

         10  the school.

         11                 The principal created smaller

         12  learning academies which are not working. Students

         13  are not interested in a theme, there's instability,

         14  classes are collapsed each marking period. We just

         15  started the third marking period and classes were

         16  collapsed again, resulting in children having to

         17  readjust their schedules and teachers to be

         18  reassigned to different programs.

         19                 Teacher turnover or exit is on the

         20  rise. Students transfers out of the school are on

         21  the rise. The principal continues in the pattern of

         22  behavior demonstrated since last year, since last

         23  school year, and that he fails to attend SLT

         24  meetings. Without his participation, no one can

         25  explain how the budget aligns to the CEP.
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          2                 He fails to provide accurate

          3  information. His information is often misleading to

          4  parents.

          5                 For instance, our principals provided

          6  parents with a performance target for another

          7  school. It was an elementary school and not a middle

          8  school. It had a different population than hours. We

          9  had to seek assistance from the CEO who redirected

         10  our request to the network leader, who redirected

         11  our request to someone else inside the network.

         12                 What I have learned so far is that

         13  the current structure of the empowerment schools

         14  lack appropriate accountability.

         15                 Each school selects a network leader

         16  detaching the school from its immediate region and

         17  district offices. What, if anything, can a network

         18  leader do?

         19                 Network leaders are not the

         20  principal's boss, and are evaluated for the service

         21  they provide to the principal. However, Eric

         22  Nadelstern consistently refers parent concerns to

         23  network leaders and/or the lawyers in the Legal

         24  Department of the DOE for response.

         25                 Parents' 3-1-1 complaints are
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          2  forwarded to their former district, then rerouted to

          3  the network leader for a response. Who is running

          4  empowerment schools? Who are principals accountable

          5  to?

          6                 What I have learned so far is that

          7  empowerment schools are not for every community,

          8  every teacher, student or parent, and to be

          9  successful, I would recommend that this Committee

         10  review the best practices to focus on a principal's

         11  style of leadership, which sets the tone for the

         12  school's failure or success.

         13                 Factitious accountability needs to be

         14  eliminated, and replaced with a real balance and

         15  checks, similar to our previous district structure

         16  of a true superintendent, not CEO.

         17                 Eligibility requirements which need

         18  to be established before principals are allowed to

         19  operate autonomous of the DOE, including the ability

         20  to comply with the Chancellor's regulations, State

         21  and Federal laws.

         22                 An outside agency needs to monitor

         23  the implementation of the special education services

         24  throughout the empowerment network, to assure that

         25  students identified with disability are not
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          2  discriminated against.

          3                 Lastly, zoning prevents parents from

          4  selecting a school. Therefore, zoned schools must,

          5  and I emphasize must, participate in a school

          6  decision-making procedure through the SLT.

          7                 I appreciate the opportunity to

          8  testify, and I hope that my voice is heard.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, let me

         10  thank you all for coming in. Assuming that this is

         11  all true, and I don't doubt it, this is an

         12  indictment on the principal. So, I'm going to make

         13  sure that the Department of Education

         14  representatives, I'm going to make sure they have

         15  this to pass this on to the Chancellor, just in case

         16  he is not aware of this, because --

         17                 MS. AYUSO: He's aware.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You said the

         19  Chancellor is aware of this?

         20                 MS. AYUSO: The Chancellor is aware.

         21  We sent the Chancellor e-mails begging him to hear

         22  our pleas. We told him that this principal

         23  demoralized our community, called our children

         24  "jackasses," threw the parents out of the school.

         25  We told him this.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: The principal

          3  called the parents "jackasses?"

          4                 MS. AYUSO: He called the children,

          5  the students"jackasses." And we've been everywhere.

          6  We told Nadelstern. I told Veronica. We told

          7  everybody. Conforme. Everybody knows. We've told

          8  them. We've told them. I have e-mails from the

          9  superintendent at that time that said the principal

         10  admitted to calling the kids "jackasses," but it was

         11  taken out of context. It's not taken out of context.

         12  I'm a parent of a"jackass," I knew that since last

         13  year.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And you have an

         15  e-mail from the superintendent acknowledging that

         16  the principal called a student a"jackass?"

         17                 MS. AYUSO: He held a motivational

         18  speech.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: A motivational

         20  speech where he called a student --

         21                 MS. AYUSO: "Jackasses."

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: What was the

         23  context of the motivational --

         24                 MS. AYUSO: It was around this time

         25  last year when we were preparing for the math exam,
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          2  and the children were put on restrictive movement,

          3  which is the current structure of this school.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You mean they

          5  were on "lockdown." The prison term, lockdown.

          6  Restrictive movement is lockdown.

          7                 MS. AYUSO: Yes, that's what we called

          8  it last year.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: What does that

         10  mean, restrictive movement in your school, what does

         11  that mean?

         12                 MS. AYUSO: It means that the children

         13  are not allowed to pass from class-to-class at the

         14  middle school. The teachers pass from

         15  class-to-class. The children are maintained in one

         16  classroom throughout the whole day.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: In a prison

         18  system that would mean that the inmates are on

         19  lockdown. They can't leave their cells. Is that

         20  correct?

         21                 MS. AYUSO: Yes, it is. That is true.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Now, you may

         23  ask, somebody may say why are you putting this in

         24  terms of prison?

         25                 MS. AYUSO: I'm not asking, because
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          2  I've said it many times.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You said what?

          4                 MS. AYUSO: That my school is like a

          5  prison. Even the way our children are dressed, in

          6  their uniform, it looks to us prison-like.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Really? Is that

          8  what some of the parents have said?

          9                 MS. AYUSO: The parents have said

         10  that's the vision they get when they come to school,

         11  the gray slacks that they wear with the light blue

         12  shirts look like inside some of the prisons Upstate,

         13  the Correctional Facilities Upstate. Our children's

         14  academic scores, three out of four students are

         15  failing inside of that school. What's their hope. A

         16  lot of students have been arrested, special needs

         17  children, instead of being provided with

         18  intervention measures are arrested. They know this.

         19  This is not news to them. They have just tried to

         20  keep me quiet, and from appearing at these levels.

         21  But I have said it at CPAC meetings, I have said it,

         22  I have said it across the State. I said it, I went

         23  to Washington D.C. and I said it there, and I'm not

         24  afraid to say it again because my children have been

         25  victimized by it. I'm saying it because 994 other
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          2  students inside of my community depend on me to tell

          3  it to you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, I want to

          5  thank you all for coming in. Make sure that -- I

          6  want your e-mail, your phone number and all of that.

          7  Give that to our Policy Analyst Jan Atwell. I'll be

          8  in touch with you. Thank you very much.

          9                 This is a sad commentary on the

         10  system and that individual principal. Let me just

         11  say that.

         12                 I'm sorry, what is the next panel?

         13  Sorry. Melinda Maldonado from Marble Hill School for

         14  International Studies; Maria Cardona from Public

         15  School 64 in Manhattan; Beverly Ffolkes-Bryant,

         16  Empowerment School 315. I believe that's in

         17  Brooklyn, right?

         18                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And Lori Mayo,

         20  of Queens High School of Teaching. Please come

         21  forward.

         22                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: The other panel

         23  members had to leave, but we have statements for

         24  them.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Sorry we're

                                                            196

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  running so late. So, please begin. You may begin.

          3                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: And even though

          4  tomorrow is the Citywide test for my school, I

          5  needed to stay for clarification.

          6                 I am an empowerment school principal.

          7  I am not a newby.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You're a

          9  principal?

         10                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: Yes. I opened my

         11  school in 1998, so I am not one of the 50 percent

         12  that's new.

         13                 This is my first year of empowerment

         14  school. I am an elementary school.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: What grade

         16  level, please?

         17                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: K to 5.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: K through 5.

         19                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: 142 percent OB

         20  utilized and 819 children. We are a zoned District

         21  22 elementary school, and I'm sorry that Council

         22  Member Fidler isn't here, we do feed into the middle

         23  school.

         24                 Some clarifying questions because a

         25  lot of things popped up and everybody is gone. Mr.
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          2  Martinez's question about ELL.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Yes.

          4                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: All right, we

          5  have an ELL population. Title 3 funding, I have to

          6  conform to -- I do not turn away any of my ELL

          7  students that are zoned --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Are you a small

          9  school?

         10                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: 819. I am not.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         12                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: I'm one of the

         13  large elementary schools, all right?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay. Because

         15  the ELL situation came up with respect to really

         16  under the small school hearings.

         17                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: Well, the answer,

         18  Council Member Martinez's question?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Yes.

         20                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: There are

         21  compliance issues and it's being overrun by either

         22  our ROC or the ISE through our budget, and if I do

         23  not comply to mandates for ELL, I could get booted.

         24  So, I do have to comply to that.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.
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          2                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: As far as the

          3  Councilman with the reading recovery question --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Dan Garodnick.

          5                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: Thank you very

          6  much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

          8                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: One of the

          9  reasons why it became empowered is because of the

         10  fact that, as you remember, when we became a region

         11  we were mandated to do a core curriculum, all right?

         12  Everybody had to do every day math, and everybody

         13  had to do balanced literacy.

         14                 That was the core curriculum. By

         15  being empowered I'm able to choose what curriculum

         16  fits my school. I'm one of seven noted elementary

         17  schools of the performing arts, which will get to

         18  Ms. Brewer's, Councilwoman Brewer's question, and to

         19  answer this question about reading recovery, if I

         20  want to have a reading recovery program in my school

         21  now, I could because of the funding that I was able

         22  to get through empowerment sources. It's

         23  approximately 50- to 60,000 dollars per teacher,

         24  according to your average teacher salary, so if I

         25  chose to use my $150,000 to get two reading recovery
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          2  teachers, I could have done so through empowerment.

          3                 What I did do through empowerment

          4  with my money was, I was able to get another science

          5  teacher, even though we are a school of performing

          6  arts and five out of my eight cluster teachers are

          7  art teachers, we knew collectively as a school that

          8  we needed more help in science.

          9                 I also freed up my empowerment

         10  funding for my teachers to plan after school, and

         11  they are paid either per session or teacher training

         12  fee.

         13                 Go ahead, continue.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Go ahead,

         15  continue.

         16                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: That's all right,

         17  I'll wait.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: No, continue.

         19                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: Also, as far as

         20  the Project Arts, I, too, am worried about the

         21  48,000 that I usually get for Project Arts, but

         22  using my empowerment funding this year, I was able

         23  to do a major dance initiative where every one of my

         24  children in each grade has a special dance program

         25  through the artists and residency programs. My
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          2  original Project Arts funding, the $48,000, goes for

          3  artists and residencies program. We have about 13

          4  different arts organizations in my school.

          5                 I'm trying to figure out all the

          6  other questions that were popping up. There was one

          7  for you. I did not know ahead of time, as far as the

          8  budgeting that I had to pay for my professional

          9  development this year, but once I got the menu of

         10  the services, I get to see my teachers more. Because

         11  when we were a region, I had to have my science

         12  teacher go to meetings that were mandated. I had my

         13  ESL teacher go to meetings that were mandated. I

         14  would miss my gifted teachers.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: So you had no

         16  choice.

         17                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: I had no choice.

         18  And now I have a menu. There are other menu of

         19  professional development choices that my teachers

         20  can choose. They do not have to go to gifted

         21  education 101, if you were a gifted teacher for the

         22  past 15 years. Maybe now I can send them to Columbia

         23  for a gifted conference that would suit their needs.

         24                 My parent coordinator was mandated to

         25  go to regional parent coordinators meetings. She's
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          2  been my parent coordinator for the past four years,

          3  now under empowerment she can choose the meetings

          4  that can enhance the school, she does not need to go

          5  to parent coordination 101, she can go to a meeting

          6  that will help our parent organization.

          7                 I may be part of the minority. I may

          8  be one of those principals that Councilman Vann

          9  talked about that talked about the fact that I was a

         10  good leader during Community School District 22, I

         11  was a good leader during -- and I see the 58 seconds

         12  -- during region 6 and now I'm a good leader during

         13  the empowerment zone. I chose my network leader

         14  because of the fact I want someone that had

         15  instructional knowledge. Because for us to go

         16  further in 315, I wanted somebody with the expertise

         17  that would allow us to seek other curriculum areas

         18  that would propel us forward to the 21st century. I

         19  don't need anybody to help me with the budget.

         20  Don't. Because when I was a principal in District

         21  22, I was taught the budget, so I managed my money

         22  well. I still have about, don't listen, about

         23  $20,000 left of my empowerment funding source that I

         24  put aside, just in case, for registers and

         25  everything else, which I can use now to buy maps and
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          2  globes, what we need, because you know that the face

          3  of the world has changed, and I want to make sure

          4  that my children know this as well.

          5                 I didn't make copies. So, I feel now

          6  as being an empowered principal, I am trusted, I am

          7  more valued for my opinions, and I'm really more

          8  relaxed, and my staff now, like it or not, gets to

          9  see me in my building more often. Because I don't

         10  have to go to the mandated regional meetings that I

         11  had to go, where I had to stay for six hours and 20

         12  minutes, and hear things that I heard already.

         13                 I have been in District 22 since

         14  1979, I'm one of the rare people that I was the

         15  teacher there. I was the Assistant Principal there,

         16  and when he broke the school in half, I opened up

         17  the school.

         18                 And I guess that's it. Wait, I got

         19  the ELL question.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: What about

         21  parents?

         22                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: Special ed.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: You didn't

         24  mention anything about parents.

         25                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: I told you about
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          2  my parent coordinator.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: No, no, not the

          4  coordinator. I'm talking about parents.

          5                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: I'm sorry. I'm

          6  sorry.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And SLT.

          8                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: We have a

          9  functioning at SLT, when we decided to become

         10  empowered, and I'm one of very -- I had a dinner

         11  through my own money, and I had a dinner for my

         12  parents and we really talked about it. They were

         13  more worried at the fact that I would be on a tight

         14  rope without a net, and they were worried about the

         15  fact that I had been there, that I had may get a C

         16  plus or a D as a grade, and I hate to tell you that

         17  we're one of the few A schools that got the report

         18  card. And it wasn't because we had 80 and 90 percent

         19  levels 3 and 4, our school has had a culture that

         20  whether you're black, white, special ed, ELL, a

         21  level 1 is a level 1. So, we really target all of

         22  our children, and we did get the bonus points

         23  because of the fact that we did target our special

         24  ed population, we do target our ELL population, we

         25  do target our poverty, so our level 1's are like .7
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          2  percent in our standardized testing.

          3                 Oh, yes, standardized testing. His

          4  question, the Councilman that was at the very end

          5  about --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Peter Vallone,

          7  Jr.

          8                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: Yes, the one

          9  about doing the math homework every day now.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Yes, all of the

         11  homework.

         12                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: Unless you go to

         13  New York State, all right? And unless you go to New

         14  York State and the State Education Department, or

         15  your President to let us know that we're not

         16  accountable to the grade four reading, math and

         17  science tests, which makes us, whether we're on

         18  target, we're meeting our AYP targets, we can't

         19  address that, and we do do other things as well.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: But you don't

         21  have to teach to the test though.

         22                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: Oh, we don't

         23  teach to the test.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Oh, yes, a lot

         25  of people do teach to the test.
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          2                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: Well, Councilman

          3  Jackson, at this particular time where there is

          4  about 26 hours, 27 hours before the tests of tests

          5  --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Right.

          7                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: Of course you

          8  would have a little homework packet in math coming

          9  home over the weekend.

         10                 Do we do this all the time at 3:15?

         11  No, we do not. We teach science and we teach social

         12  studies as well.

         13                 What you also have to understand, the

         14  passionate parent that talked about being a school

         15  under review, a SINI school, is as a result of those

         16  eighth grade tests that were mandated by the State

         17  of New York, which were mandated by our President.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: What President

         19  is that? President of New York State?

         20                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: NCLB.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Oh, you mean

         22  President Bush.

         23                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: Yeah, yeah, yeah,

         24  yeah, okay?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I was just
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          2  wondering what President you were referring to.

          3  Local or State or --

          4                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: As far as his

          5  thing about the tests, we do not teach to the test,

          6  all right?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

          8                 Can I ask a couple of questions, if

          9  you don't mind?

         10                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: Yes, you can.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I appreciate

         12  your enthusiasm and your honesty and your

         13  forthrightness and you appear to be an excellent

         14  educator.

         15                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: I tried.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And you said you

         17  had 889 students --

         18                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: 819.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         20                 And what's the diversity of your

         21  population?

         22                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: I used to stay 99

         23  and 44 100 percent African-American, but we're not

         24  anymore. Let's work from the smallest one: Four

         25  percent Caucasian, which is European; 22 percent
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          2  Latina. I usually do Hispanics and my husband says

          3  it's wrong. We now have a burgeoning population, ten

          4  percent of the Irdu population, and then the rest is

          5  African-American. Split Caribbean and Southern

          6  African-American.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And how many are

          8  eligible for free lunch, percentage of your

          9  population?

         10                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: Eighty-nine

         11  percent.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And what is your

         13  school, as far as level one, two and three overall?

         14  Overall, if you can?

         15                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: Overall, we're

         16  overall 60 percent math, 58 percent.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Reading at or

         18  above grade level, math level?

         19                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: Right. No, 62

         20  percent math. And about 59.9 in reading.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And how long

         22  have you been the principal at the school?

         23                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: I opened the

         24  school in 1998.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: 1998, okay.
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          2                 And what about your, you said your

          3  average salary is about what, of your teachers?

          4                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: Sixty thousand.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: And that will

          6  bring to your average, you have there teacher, I

          7  guess average is about what, five, six years,

          8  something like that?

          9                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: Right. They don't

         10  want to leave.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Yes, but with

         12  the salary that's about the average?

         13                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: Yes, about five

         14  or six years.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         16                 Well, let me say, it appears as

         17  though you're doing a great job. I would love to

         18  hear about what the parents have to say about your

         19  school, but it appears as though you're doing a

         20  great job.

         21                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: Well, the

         22  parents, they didn't let us know, I would have had

         23  my parents association here.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I appreciate

         25  your staying.
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          2                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: And you can

          3  always come to 2310 Glenwood Road.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I may come and

          5  visit your school.

          6                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: Come on over.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: It appears as

          8  though from your presentation it's something that's

          9  working, as opposed to what you heard that parent

         10  testifying.

         11                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: I understand. I

         12  really understand that, and when I was listening, I

         13  guess Councilman Vann said it best.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Yes, go ahead.

         15                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: If a principal,

         16  if a leader is good, they're going to be good

         17  throughout whatever changes happen.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Right.

         19                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: But I needed to

         20  have the clarifying questions when the ELL and the

         21  special ed and the math all the time and who chose

         22  the network leader.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you very

         24  much.

         25                 MS. FFOLKES-BRYANT: Thank you very

                                                            210

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  much.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Next, David

          4  Weiner, Principal of PS 503 School for Discovery and

          5  Exploration; Nina Demos from PS 503, and principal

          6  Dina Erstejn and Vicky Spinelli from School

          7  Community.

          8                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: He'll be right

          9  back. He just had to make a very quick phone call.

         10  You can go ahead.

         11                 MR. WEINER: All right. My name is

         12  David Weiner. I'm the Principal at PS 503, and I'm

         13  here with one of the teachers from our school, and

         14  our parent coordinator was actually going to come as

         15  well, though her child got sick, so...

         16                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Can you pull

         17  your mike in a little bit.

         18                 MR. WEINER: What's that?

         19                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Just pull your

         20  mike towards you a little bit.

         21                 Okay, thank you.

         22                 MR. WEINER: But we're here to speak

         23  on behalf of the empowerment schools and the

         24  positive experience that we've had for our schools.

         25  But really the original move to become an
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          2  empowerment school is just a wonderful community

          3  building process for an entire school. The

          4  Chancellor had meetings at Tweed in which we brought

          5  teachers, parents, myself to go and listen to what

          6  this new initiative was going to bring. We asked

          7  questions, we found out about it, we had discussions

          8  with the staff, with parents, and we really decided

          9  to make it a community effort to determine whether

         10  this was going to be a move for our school to make

         11  or not, and it was, after having listened and had

         12  some very rich conversations about moving toward to

         13  become an empowerment zone, we actually voted and we

         14  actually had a unanimous vote of our school to

         15  become an empowerment school. We felt like it really

         16  offered us a great opportunity to move the school

         17  forward. So, that was very positive for us. And we

         18  found that being an empowerment school had been just

         19  a wonderful growing opportunity for our school and

         20  for actually our entire school community.

         21                 When we identified problems, we

         22  actually were able to come up with solutions to fix

         23  them there on the spot. I find that instead of

         24  spending a lot of time reading reports or responding

         25  to e-mails or responding to regional or district
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          2  issues, we actually are able to find time to fix

          3  problems.

          4                 As the previous principal just

          5  mentioned, I find there is a lot more time for me

          6  actually getting to classrooms and to spend more

          7  time with teachers and students, so really to be an

          8  instructional leader in the school, as opposed to

          9  kind of just responding to regional requests. So,

         10  it's been a very positive experience for us.

         11                 It's actually only my second year

         12  being a principal in New York City; however, I was a

         13  principal in San Francisco prior to that, and I had

         14  found that I haven't really lost any support. So, I

         15  know that there was some questions from Committee

         16  members about a loss of support and professional

         17  development support, especially for principals.

         18  Well, it's only my second year, and I haven't found

         19  any loss of support at all. In fact, I've actually

         20  found, rather than being forced to attend

         21  professional development sessions that have no

         22  bearing on me or my school community, as a group of

         23  network schools we're able to come together and

         24  decide what kind of professional development we want

         25  for our school, and be able to support one another
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          2  to put that kind of stuff in place. So, that's

          3  actually been a very positive experience for us.

          4                 Finally, one thing that I think one

          5  of the Committee members mentioned is that a

          6  wonderful byproduct of the empowerment school and

          7  kind of a creation of our network has been kind of a

          8  cross-city collaboration.

          9                 So, previously we were kind of

         10  clustered together with schools that were all within

         11  a geographical location, District 20 actually, and

         12  it was a supportive environment, however, we found

         13  that by getting a cross-city collaboration,

         14  literally in my network we have schools from every

         15  borough, except for Staten Island, that we've been

         16  able to see kind of best practices that are going on

         17  in all of the different schools.

         18                 In District 20, our school has 99

         19  percent free and reduced lunch, there is over 90

         20  percent Hispanic students, and so none of the other

         21  schools in District 20 have anywhere near that type

         22  of population, we actually have the largest number

         23  of ELL students in the entire City. We actually

         24  partnered up with our network schools of different

         25  schools that had very similar demographic
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          2  populations to us and we were able to work with

          3  them, both our teachers and myself as a principal,

          4  to actually figure out some best practices and

          5  answers to some of the questions we've been

          6  struggling with.

          7                 When we were with District 20 we

          8  found it was a very insular environment, and we

          9  weren't able to kind of see Citywide what progress

         10  looked like for our school. So, overall I think it's

         11  been a very positive experience.

         12                 In the future, I think that I was

         13  asked to speak a little bit about that, I think the

         14  biggest thing we want to do is really to maintain

         15  the integrity of the empowerment schools, the basis

         16  of the empowerment school, as one of the counselors

         17  mentioned, and superintendent Nadelstern mentioned

         18  as well, was the concept that principals and

         19  teachers and parents are closest to the students and

         20  they're the ones that should be making decisions

         21  about their student population. And that kind of

         22  theoretical basis is something we want to make sure

         23  stays in place.

         24                 I know there are probably a lot of

         25  stakeholders out there that are trying to drive away
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          2  from that, have more oversight and regional support

          3  and those types of things. But we found that that

          4  type of supportive environment is not really what's

          5  best for the students at our school, but rather that

          6  a group of parents, teachers, and community members

          7  coming together can often find the best answers for

          8  our students.

          9                 So, I appreciate you giving me the

         10  time to talk.

         11                 MS. DEMOS: Hi. My name is Nina Demos:

         12  I'm a second grade teacher at PS 503, and I am also

         13  a resident in the community where our school is, and

         14  I just wanted to make it very clear that in my

         15  experience being an empowerment school is not in any

         16  way opposed to being a neighborhood school. Quite to

         17  the contrary. Because we're an empowerment school,

         18  and because we have an opportunity to really welcome

         19  the community through activities like bimonthly

         20  family fun nights where parents and teachers and

         21  students work together, our school is more of a

         22  community school than it's ever been in the past.

         23                 I've worked there for five years and

         24  this is the first year as an empowerment school. And

         25  I see that flexibility in academics, as well. So,
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          2  you know, it was often very frustrating to, in the

          3  past, to express student needs to someone, to an

          4  administrator, and then that had that administrator

          5  turn around and express then to the region and by

          6  the time any kind of solution would get back to me

          7  as a teacher, you know, the inertia of it, there

          8  would be such a lapse, but the student needs would

          9  have changed by the time that there was a solution.

         10                 And, you know, as a teacher, I'm

         11  expected to assess my student needs and fix those

         12  problems on a daily basis, and I would assume that a

         13  model that required principals to do that in their

         14  schools, you know, would be acceptable and so

         15  desired.

         16                 And it's just been a really positive

         17  experience for me to work in an empowerment school,

         18  I see a lot getting done, I see that teachers feel

         19  empowered and work together to be solution-oriented,

         20  as opposed to focus on problems. I hope it

         21  continues. Thank you.

         22                 MS. ERSTEJN: Hi. My name is Dina

         23  Erstejn, and I'm a principal. This is my fifth year

         24  as a principal and my first year as an empowerment

         25  principal. And I really don't think it's just the
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          2  principal who gets empowered, it's the whole

          3  community in the school, the children, the teachers

          4  and the parents.

          5                 From my personal point of view, I

          6  will tell you that my experience with the region is

          7  very frustrating, and before, even though I grew and

          8  professionally in my district, because I taught in

          9  my district for many years, I've been in education

         10  for about 23 years, I do love my district, but there

         11  were certain things that I found that were not

         12  right, and I wanted to improve upon them, and

         13  sometimes there were road blocks that would impede

         14  that progress. In the region it was immediate

         15  roadblock, like invoices would not get paid right

         16  away, because I was probably not one of the favorite

         17  principals. There was some kind of favoritism, some

         18  principals got more money, like the Chancellor says,

         19  he's right, and in the other instances, my staff, if

         20  they went to a conference, they would not get

         21  reimbursed until six, eight months later. Now they

         22  get reimbursed within two weeks because the

         23  integration services centers, they approve what we

         24  send, we send faxes and everything, proof that the

         25  expenses were done and getting me the response.
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          2                 I used to put in my office every

          3  single day at least 12, 14 hours. I used to stay

          4  until 8:00, 9:00 at night before the empowerment.

          5  Now with empowerment I spend less time in my office,

          6  I spend more time in the classrooms, and I'm also

          7  less time in the school. Like I have the luxury to

          8  go home at 5:30, 6:30 some times. That has made an

          9  enormous improvement in my personal life. You can

         10  see my hair is all done.

         11                 What else can I tell you about

         12  empowerment? It's the best thing that could have

         13  happened to my parents. My parents, as a matter of

         14  fact, four years ago they wanted to become a charter

         15  school. They voted. I have all the signatures on

         16  file, but what prevented us from going that way was

         17  because they were going to be like union issues, you

         18  know, UFT, CSA. We do like to stay with the union,

         19  and empowerment has not roadblocked anything

         20  regarding the union or anything, everything goes

         21  according to the law, according to the Chancellor

         22  regulations, everything is the same except that we

         23  have more freedom to do what we want to do at the

         24  school level, together with the parents and the

         25  teachers. By the way, the decision to become an
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          2  empowered school was made at the school level with

          3  the parents, the teachers, and the Chancellor was

          4  going to send surveys to parents and teachers to see

          5  how the school is doing across the City, and I think

          6  that that will give him a good feedback as to how

          7  everybody feels.

          8                 The person sitting next to me is a

          9  colleague of mine, who started at the same time five

         10  years ago. When I was a principal she was teaching

         11  CPT class and special education class, and we sort

         12  of grew together professionally in our building, and

         13  I will let her say more about we feel about

         14  empowerment school.

         15                 Also, in the back I have two teachers

         16  sitting. One is ESL teacher, and classroom teacher,

         17  and I also have the lead teacher for reading and

         18  writing. Ms. Kushist (phonetic) and Ms. Kelly

         19  Butler. They are both very valued members, you know,

         20  reliable members of the empowerment team. And they

         21  have been able to sort of like enforce a lot more,

         22  the learning community that we had in the school,

         23  and with empowerment, they're very happy with

         24  empowerment also.

         25                 I'm going to give you Ms. Victoria
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          2  Spinelli.

          3                 MS. SPINELLA: Hello. My name is

          4  Victoria Spinelli, and as Dr. Erstejn stated, I was

          5  a teacher in the building, currently I'm the Dean of

          6  Students and Administrative Assistant. I work very

          7  closely with the students, the teachers and

          8  administration, and I can speak on the school as a

          9  whole and that includes all staff members and our

         10  parents, that we are very happy with empowerment. It

         11  was first brought up at the School Leadership Team,

         12  and our parents, you know, last year researched,

         13  they signed on that they wanted to do it, it was

         14  then brought up at the next PA meeting, it was

         15  brought up at our faculty conference for the

         16  teachers and rest of the staff members and everyone

         17  was in agreement that this is what we were all going

         18  to sign up on.

         19                 We are happy because this has allowed

         20  all staff members, and we include parents when we

         21  say that in our building. We are all empowered. And

         22  now the students, who is our main focus, are

         23  receiving more resources and they are getting what

         24  they need. We don't have to go to professional

         25  development that is mandated. We get to choose the
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          2  professional development that we feel is needed in

          3  our building, whether professionally, or for the

          4  students in our class. And it takes good leaders,

          5  and that's across the board, from administration to

          6  teachers to your school aids, to the parents, and

          7  we're very happy with empowerment and it's

          8  unfortunate that some people are having negative

          9  feedback from empowerment, but I don't feel that is

         10  from the basis of empowerment, you know, it's either

         11  for bad leaders, and that needs to be addressed and

         12  changed. But the idea of empowerment is that the

         13  entire school community is empowered. Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, let me

         15  thank you all for coming in. Quite frankly, I

         16  appreciate it. Unfortunately, I have to cut this

         17  hearing short, so I am going to move these panels.

         18  And I apologize for that but I have to move forward.

         19                 MS. ERSTEJN: Just one?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Sure. Quickly,

         21  please.

         22                 MS. ERSTEJN: The School Leadership

         23  Team, it has always been functioning in my school

         24  and it will continue to function. As a matter of

         25  fact, we take feedback from the parents as to what
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          2  they want in the schools.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Well, that's the

          4  way it's supposed to be. Thank you very much.

          5                 And next we're going to hear from

          6  Jolain Bowen, from the parent of first and third

          7  grade at PS 183. Who is this? Melah Gindi,

          8  empowerment school, Humanities Prep. Rosemary

          9  Ganpot, parent, and Sandra Williams, PS 8Q, okay?

         10  Please come forward.

         11                 Patricia Joseph, CEC 17, and Rebecca

         12  Daniels, CEC District 2. Please come forward. I'm

         13  going to limit your testimony. Please do not read

         14  it. And I'm going to limit your testimony to two

         15  minutes. I apologize for cutting you short. But if

         16  you have your testimony, it will be entered into the

         17  record. Please begin. Just identify yourself for the

         18  record. I apologize to you for trying to move so

         19  quickly.

         20                 MS. GINDI: My name is Melah Gindi.

         21  I'm a --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Pull that mike

         23  up a little closer to you.

         24                 MS. GINDI: Melah Gindi, a parent of a

         25  child at Manhattan Hunter Science High School in
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          2  District 3, and the SLT Chair at Humanities Prep

          3  Academy in District 2.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Go ahead,

          5  please.

          6                 MS. GINDI: When I first heard about

          7  the empowerment schools last spring, I was very

          8  excited about it. The idea of giving schools more

          9  autonomy and funding so they could shape their

         10  programs to the needs of their own unique student

         11  body just made tremendous sense. From my point of

         12  view as a parent with two children with learning

         13  differences, one with an IEP, this has been played

         14  out in a truly remarkable way. My son's teachers

         15  have been able to tailor a program specifically

         16  designed for him to take advantage of his particular

         17  strengths while providing focused remediation with

         18  the special ed teacher in his areas of weakness. For

         19  my daughter, smaller class sizes have translated

         20  into a more personalized learning experience on a

         21  level she was familiar with in her previous school.

         22                 The flexibility inherent in these

         23  approaches have enabled my children to experience

         24  successes and sustain these successes in a way they

         25  would not otherwise have.
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          2                 I think this is what a top-notch

          3  education is all about, recognizing that each child

          4  is different and meeting each child where they

          5  really are, not where we might like them to be.

          6                 The implementation of empowerment

          7  schools has given schools and educators the

          8  opportunity to do just this.

          9                 However, I do recognize that the

         10  success of the schools is dependent upon the

         11  principal. Finding a principal that's knowledgeable,

         12  experienced, innovative and visionary is really

         13  important. Without that, the principal will not be

         14  able to succeed within this autonomous zone.

         15                 The principal must enjoy the

         16  flexibility and understand the flexibility of

         17  working outside a centralized bureaucracy. Without

         18  that, they will fail.

         19                 And many of our schools do not have

         20  this opportunity. I am very fortunate that both of

         21  my principals are exemplary and have really taken

         22  the parents, the student and the community to heart.

         23  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you very

         25  much. Next, please. Pull the mike up and you may
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          2  begin right away.

          3                 MS. WILLIAMS: My name is Sandra

          4  Williams. I have five sons, ranging from 16 to eight

          5  in four New York City public schools, in District 28

          6  Region 3. My middle school is an empowerment school,

          7  and I will not read it, because Ms. Ayuso and I are

          8  testifying on the same school.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you. And

         10  I'm going to hold everybody strictly to the two

         11  minutes, so please don't read your testimony,

         12  because I'm going to cut you off.

         13                 MS. WILLIAMS: Okay. I already

         14  presented this to you. But what Ms. Ayuso failed to

         15  say is the fact that because of her going around and

         16  speaking out loud about what's happening in her

         17  school, that she is banned from attending the

         18  school. We don't have any PTAs right now, we don't

         19  have a parent coordinator, and the principal is

         20  actually opening our mail, running our parent

         21  involvement. That part of it she left out, including

         22  her son who has been out of school like since

         23  September with superintendent suspension and

         24  everything just for doing a little dance some time

         25  in the school. So, it's a lot more for what she said
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          2  and if you read it you'll see most of it.

          3                 The teacher misinformed the school.

          4  We had like 30 something teachers already that turn

          5  over from the school, like today my son had his

          6  fourth social study teacher --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: His fourth in

          8  one year?

          9                 MS. WILLIAMS: His fourth social study

         10  teacher in the school, and this teacher sent home a

         11  class rule, nothing about the introduction about who

         12  he is. We have uncertified teacher teaching

         13  subjects. We have uncertified teacher teaching

         14  grades and it's really a school that need to be

         15  revamped.

         16                 I just what to say what I've learned

         17  about empowerment school. Empowerment school

         18  undermine the spirit of our community. It eliminates

         19  community involvement, eliminates parent

         20  involvement. Empowerment violates the principle of

         21  balance of power by expanding the power of the

         22  instructional leader with no accountability.

         23                 Empowerment allows the instructional

         24  leader to spend money at will, without aligning to

         25  the needs of the school. Empowerment is making and
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          2  breaking its own rules. Empowerment is destroying

          3  our students, giving them two years to fail before

          4  drastic changes are made. Empowerment is destroying

          5  my community.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

          7                 Next, please. Just identify yourself

          8  and you may begin. Pull up that mic. Don't be

          9  afraid.

         10                 MS. JOSEPH: Good evening, Mr.

         11  Chairman, and other guests. My name is Patricia

         12  Joseph, and I'm a parent of a student of an

         13  empowerment school, Medgar Evers Preparatory School,

         14  and also a Board member of CEC 17, School District

         15  17.

         16                 Now, I would like to say a school is

         17  only as good as its leader. Without a good leader, a

         18  school would not function effectively. And I must

         19  say that for a school to become empowered, it should

         20  have a principal with initiative and integrity.

         21                 Why I say integrity? Because some

         22  schools, some school principals, as you know, don't

         23  comply with rules and regulations. Some of them need

         24  monitoring when it comes to financial matters, the

         25  budget, also some would need monitoring when it
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          2  comes to providing adequate curriculum and services

          3  for our students. So, that is one of my concerns.

          4  Once you have a good leader, it would be a good

          5  school.

          6                 My son's school, Medgar Evers, is an

          7  excellent school, excellent principal, so therefore

          8  their school would work effectively as an

          9  empowerment school, you don't have to worry about

         10  it. I'm not saying -- there may be little loopholes,

         11  but the students are functioning well academically,

         12  socially and otherwise. Good discipline and so on.

         13                 Also, as a member of the CEC Board, I

         14  would like to see schools that are empowered and

         15  schools that are not also receiving and having

         16  adequate core curricular activities. When I say core

         17  curricular, I mean things like photography, art,

         18  music, dance, shop classes, you know, et cetera,

         19  they can develop the whole child, where when they

         20  graduate from school, they can get jobs with the

         21  skills that they had done at school.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you. I'm

         23  sorry.

         24                 MS. JOSEPH: That's okay.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I'm so sorry.
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          2                 MS. JOSEPH: That's okay.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I don't like to

          4  cut people off but I have to move forward.

          5                 MS. JOSEPH: Sure.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you very

          7  much.

          8                 MS. JOSEPH: You're welcome.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Next, please.

         10                 MS. DANIELS: I don't have anything

         11  written down.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: That's okay.

         13  Just tell me your name.

         14                 MS. DANIELS: Rebecca Daniels. I'm

         15  with the CEC for District 2.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Okay.

         17                 MS. DANIELS: I've been very involved

         18  for years on the PTA, SLT, child in high school,

         19  SOF, child at lab, 41 and so forth.

         20                 One of my colleagues is here tonight

         21  also, and we're here because what we find is the

         22  biggest issue, and why we thank you so much,

         23  Chairman, and the educational council, is an

         24  opportunity to give us an ear, such as the cell

         25  phones, any issue that has come up, you all have
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          2  been a strength and an opportunity to speak. And I

          3  think right now in these times of trial so-to-speak,

          4  it is imperative that we have your Council, and the

          5  ability to have someone enable us to speak further

          6  and to give a voice to parents. Not just a voice to

          7  parents, but an ear that parents can have listen,

          8  which I think we are feeling right now is not the

          9  case. We are feeling that we, over and over again,

         10  these concepts and policies are implemented when

         11  they easily could have been discussed with the

         12  CPACs, the CECs, the SLTs, the Presidents Council,

         13  all these innumerable groups that are so-called

         14  parent advisory, and how much we hear how the

         15  parents are empowered to be involved. Not entitled,

         16  and not empowered, really, because without knowledge

         17  we have no way of having any strength, and our

         18  strength brings us to working with each group within

         19  ourselves, such CPAC reaching out to CECs, CECs

         20  reaching out to other CECs, bringing SLTs right now

         21  into the CECs, sort of where educated we can try to

         22  extend this deadline, which the other night was

         23  extended to just District 2, and my colleague asked

         24  that it was extended even further. We've still been

         25  waiting to find out, and it' very, very important
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          2  right now that we find out what this whole process

          3  means, how will the SLTs be brought up to speed, how

          4  these principals that don't have their budgets can

          5  possibly make these decisions and then collaborate

          6  with SLTs - this is where we need to talk to each

          7  other. This is where we need some formula. And I

          8  just can't say enough. This is where it has to stop.

          9  There is nothing more important right now than the

         10  future of the education.

         11                 As I said to one of the major parent

         12  meetings, he said, well, it takes a few years to

         13  unfold, and what I could only say was a fifth grader

         14  in a few years is going to a middle school, and a

         15  sixth grader is going to college. We can't afford to

         16  make these mistakes.

         17                 So, we thank you. We need you and we

         18  want your advice.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Thank you.

         20                 Let me apologize to everyone, I am

         21  not going to take any more testimony. And I'm so

         22  sorry that I cannot, and I know that some of you may

         23  be upset about that, but I apologize. I must leave.

         24  And I'm just so sorry that I did not have the

         25  opportunity to hear the rest of the testimony. But
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          2  if you have testimony to submit, I will take it. And

          3  if we need to hear what you have to say, if you have

          4  not submitted it, we will provide the opportunity at

          5  a later date and time. You can reach out to the

          6  Committee staff. I apologize, I must end this

          7  hearing. I'm just so sorry, I must leave.

          8                 So, I want to thank you. I apologize

          9  again. I cannot apologize even more so, to let you

         10  know that I wanted to hear everyone, but I must

         11  leave. And I'm so sorry that I cut you all short to

         12  two minutes, and I normally don't do that. I want to

         13  hear what you all have to say fully on this very,

         14  this is a very, very important matter, this is about

         15  the future of our children, all 1.1 million, but

         16  unfortunately, I'm sorry, I have to leave.

         17                 So, thank you very much. You can come

         18  up, talk to the staff, the Counsel, concerning any

         19  testimony or if you need to speak to us at a later

         20  time.

         21                 Thank you very much. And with that

         22  I'm going to adjourn this meeting.

         23                 (The following written testimony was

         24  read into the record.)

         25
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          2  WRITTEN TESTIMONY OF:

          3  CECILIA BLEWER

          4  March 5, 2007

          5

          6  Re: Mother of a Child In An Empowerment Zone School

          7

          8                 During the second week of school this

          9  year, I came home one afternoon to find my daughter

         10  in 8th grade crying on the couch. Usually September

         11  is still the honeymoon period of the school year

         12  when kids are elated to be back with their friends

         13  after the summer.

         14                 When I sat with her to find out why

         15  she was crying she told me it was because she wasn't

         16  allowed to use her "authentic voice" in writing her

         17  history paper, a one page "document based question".

         18                 Instead, as she explained to me, she

         19  had to write her response to three pieces of

         20  information concerning the origins of the American

         21  Civil War according to a set formula:

         22  One. Introductory paragraph; Two. Explication of

         23  first piece of data; Three. Explication of second

         24  piece of data; Four. Explication of third piece of

         25  data; Five. Concluding paragraph.
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          2                 What she was not allowed to do was to

          3  write that one piece of information, in this case,

          4  the exponential rise of the cotton industry in the

          5  generation before the Civil War, was the fundamental

          6  cause of the other two pieces of information, the

          7  failure of the Missouri Compromise and the reasons

          8  stated for South Carolina's succession from the

          9  union.

         10                 In other words, Catherine was not

         11  allowed to think like an historian.  She had to

         12  follow a formula.

         13                 As a person who did her graduate work

         14  in history, I was very alarmed at this apparent de-

         15  naturing of the discipline. I spoke with her history

         16  teacher to ask why Catherine felt she couldn't do

         17  the interpretative work of the historian's task.

         18  The teacher told me that he had to prepare the kids

         19  for the 8th grade social studies test.  He appeared

         20  to know that the discipline of history is not

         21  adequately contained in this statewide test, in DBQs

         22  and the five paragraph essays.

         23                 Later, I had a similar conversation

         24  with the two principals of the school.  They, too,

         25  acknowledged that the school was under pressure to
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          2  perform well in the 8th grade social studies test.

          3  My response to them was that if teachers took a

          4  Socratic Oath the faculty would be in violation of

          5  it by teaching history to the test and not

          6  encouraging students to engage in the full

          7  interpretative task of the discipline.  Up to this

          8  point eighth grade has been an opportunity to teach

          9  and to learn without the pressure of the 7th grade

         10  tests whose scores sort the kids into high schools.

         11                 It is worth noting the DBQs and the

         12  five- paragraph essay are taught in elementary

         13  school in the fourth grade. Teaching to the New York

         14  State social studies tests means no development of

         15  learning from the 4th to the 8th grades.

         16                 Welcome to the empowerment zone

         17  schools.  This school, a well regarded middle school

         18  on the Upper West Side called Mott Hall II, was in

         19  the autonomy zone last year.

         20                 This year I have belatedly discovered

         21  an even more egregious failure of instruction.

         22  Belated, because my daughter scored in the top 2

         23  percent of the City's 7th graders in her ELA test

         24  last year with a 730 and has received good grades in

         25  the subject so I wasn't aware of the crisis.
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          2  However, this year she and other kids in her class

          3  took the SSAT and similar tests in order to apply to

          4  private and parochial schools.  Interestingly, when

          5  my son was in the 8th grade there three years

          6  earlier this was not a trend.  Now parents are

          7  looking elsewhere for high school.

          8                 My daughter's grades on the SSAT were

          9  mediocre at best: She was in the 43rd percentile on

         10  the verbal score which tests vocabulary through

         11  analogies, and the 48th percentile on reading.  When

         12  her scores came back the first time I signed her up

         13  for a second attempt and sat with her one day while

         14  she prepped for the test.

         15                 To my amazement, I found Catherine

         16  had a very weak vocabulary, even though she has two

         17  parents with graduate degrees. On the second test

         18  she scored even lower in the vocabulary section,

         19  landing in the 25th percentile.   In speaking with

         20  the boarding school which I attended and which

         21  subsequently rejected her, the admissions officer

         22  told me that her language skills, vocabulary and

         23  grammar, were just too weak.

         24                 What are they doing in English

         25  classes if not building the students' knowledge of
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          2  vocabulary and grammar? Reading responses.  These

          3  are, apparently, "grammar optional" on the statewide

          4  tests.  Catherine's 8th grade English teacher told

          5  me that she is trying to teach the kids grammar out

          6  of a 5th grade grammar book.  The kids don't know a

          7  noun from a verb.  This affects not only their

          8  success in writing and analyzing English but also in

          9  learning Spanish.

         10                 Sadly, for kids taught to the test in

         11  8th grade with no enrichment of vocabulary, spelling

         12  and grammar, the day of reckoning is only a few

         13  years away.  Those kids still in school in 11th

         14  grade will be expected to know how to correct

         15  grammar mistakes and think about word usage in order

         16  to do well on the college boards and go on to

         17  college.

         18                 A rich vocabulary, a command of

         19  grammar and composition, and a capacity for

         20  interpreting fiction and historical evidence are all

         21  related.  These are foundations of higher order

         22  thinking skills, which middle and high schoolers

         23  need to appreciate and develop.  In the empowerment

         24  zone system of perverse incentives, the students

         25  will be denied this dimension of education so that
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          2  the principal can keep her job by raising test

          3  scores.

          4                 What has my daughter's school done

          5  with its $150,000 in extra money?  Has it reduced

          6  class sizes?  Enriched the curriculum?  Taken the

          7  kids on field trips?  Funded an afterschool?

          8                 No.  It has beefed up its

          9  administration.  It now has an Attendance Dean so it

         10  can get its high attendance rates higher.  It has

         11  added an Assistant Principal.  It already had an

         12  Academic Dean.  That's a lot of administration for a

         13  school of 320 kids.

         14                 Here are my suggestions for further

         15  inquiry:

         16                 One. Determine how the extra $150

         17  thousand is being used by schools;

         18                 Two. Fund an educational audit of

         19  empowerment and equivalent non empowerment zone

         20  schools, possibly by means of established tests like

         21  the SSAT and the college boards to determine what is

         22  not being taught in the interests of test prep;

         23                 Three. Clarify what happens to a

         24  school when a principal who pushed the school into

         25  the empowerment zone leaves the school.  May it

                                                            239

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  leave the empowerment zone with its new principal or

          3  is it stuck?

          4                 Four. Track the retention/retirement

          5  of empowerment versus non empowerment zone

          6  principals and teachers;

          7                 Five. Track the relationship between

          8  schools entering the empowerment zone and the name

          9  of the prior supervisor of the principal to

         10  determine if the empowerment zone is a form of

         11  escape from incompetent supervisors or for

         12  incompetent principals;

         13                 Six. Ascertain the kinds of "good

         14  absences" and "good tardiness'" that students take

         15  (auditions, high school tours, college trips, doctor

         16  appointments, even funerals, et cetera), and whether

         17  children's best interests are being compromised by

         18  pressure on the school to raise attendance rates.

         19                 Seven.  Clarify the legal process by

         20  which a school enters and stays in the empowerment

         21  zone in terms of SLT participation in these and

         22  other decisions.

         23                 Eight.  Inquire of the mayor and

         24  chancellor how placing so much institutional

         25  pressure on raising test scores and attendance rates
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          2  will fulfill the New York City school system's human

          3  rights obligations to the City's schoolchildren,

          4  that is, "an education aimed at the full development

          5  of the human personality".

          6                 Finally, I urge the Education

          7  Committee to undertake a review and White Paper of

          8  the effects of mayoral control as ICOPE has

          9  requested.  The "empowerment zone" is a symptom of a

         10  systemic problem whose primary victims are the

         11  school children.

         12                 Mayor Bloomberg's children attended a

         13  school whose motto is: Non Scholae Sed Vitae

         14  Discimus - "Not for School but for Life We Learn".

         15  The children in the empowerment zone, on the other

         16  hand, are working so the principal gets to keep her

         17  job.  It's an inferior and exploitative end of

         18  education.

         19                 Thank you.

         20

         21  WRITTEN TESTIMONY OF:

         22  ROSEMARY GANPOT

         23

         24                 The idea of empowerment schools can

         25  be a rewarding one if it is put in the hands of a
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          2  creative educator with children's interests at

          3  heart.  However, in many instances this is not the

          4  case.  Perceived to be the ultimate control

          5  mechanism by some principals, this empowerment

          6  schools initiative has become a dangerous tool to

          7  manipulate teachers and shut out parent involvement.

          8    Hereunder are some of the problems encountered by

          9  parents to date:

         10                 One. Parents were not involved or

         11  informed about the schools decision to become the

         12  empowerment zone.

         13                 Two. Most parents still haven't been

         14  informed about the structure of this new initiative

         15  and are confused.

         16                 Three. There seems to be no profound

         17  parent support personnel.

         18                 Four.  School Leadership Teams are no

         19  longer parent friendly. Parents are being shut out

         20  from this shared decision making process, which is

         21  signed into law.

         22                 Five. Parents are given the ultimatum

         23  of transferring their children out of the

         24   "principal's school" if they do not agree with

         25  their decisions.
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          2                 Six. In the elementary schools,

          3  resources are directed mainly to the grades that

          4  reflect the City-wide test, while the lower grades

          5  suffer at their cost.

          6                 Seven. There is no training available

          7  for new S.L.T. Parents regarding their roles and

          8  responsibilities.

          9                 Eight. Network leaders have schools

         10  in all five boroughs, making it difficult to

         11  effectively provide support.

         12                 Other recommendation to the D.O.E.

         13  Is:

         14                 One. Please strengthen this fragile

         15  foundation before adding more structure to it.

         16                 Two. To lessen the misconstrued idea

         17  of ultimate power to the principals, please involve

         18  all stakeholders in the application process, (mainly

         19  U.F.T., P.T.A., and C.S.A. With each one given the

         20  responsibility to obtain and provide written

         21  feedback from their respective constituencies.

         22                 Three. Assign network leaders to

         23  clusters within a realistic geographic location,

         24  thus enabling them to be more effective in providing

         25  both technical and parental support.
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          2                 Four. Provide parents with training

          3  opportunities geared towards understanding their

          4  roles.  Not only parent leaders.

          5

          6  WRITTEN TESTIMONY OF:

          7  DEYCY AVITIA

          8  EDUCATION POLICY ASSOCIATE

          9  NEW YORK IMMIGRATION COALITION

         10

         11  March 5, 2007

         12

         13                 Good afternoon.  Chairman Jackson and

         14  distinguished members of the City Council Education

         15  Committee, thank you for convening this Hearing.  My

         16  name is Deycy Avitia and I am the Education Policy

         17  Associate for the New York Immigration Coalition, an

         18  umbrella policy and advocacy organization for over

         19  200 member groups throughout New York State that

         20  fight for justice and opportunity for our newest New

         21  Yorkers.

         22                 I am here to speak on behalf of the

         23  more than 141,000 New York City school students who

         24  do not speak or understand English and are

         25  classified as English Language Learners (ELLs); a
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          2  group of students that will be profoundly impacted

          3  by the expansion of the Chancellor's Empowerment

          4  Initiative.

          5                 We all know that ESL and bilingual

          6  education students have among the highest dropout

          7  rate in the City with over 50.5 percent of them

          8  dropping out of high school over the course of seven

          9  years, as compared to 31.7 percent for non-ELL

         10  students.  We also know that by giving ELLs the

         11  opportunity to learn English and master other

         12  subjects, we have the power to turn their graduation

         13  rate from less than half to over 75 percent, the

         14  7-year graduation rate for former ELLs who have

         15  learned English.

         16                 The Department is currently

         17  undertaking dramatic reforms aimed at improving

         18  student outcomes; however, the reforms have

         19  immigrant communities worried over the lack of

         20  public input on what is needed to achieve

         21  educational equity for all students.

         22                 While we applaud the Department of

         23  Education for recognizing that ELLs have higher

         24  needs, their proposed Fair Funding weightings of .06

         25  and .20 are vastly inadequate to meet the unique
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          2  needs of our students.  We recommend a 1.0 weighting

          3  from City tax- levy dollars that is tied to strong

          4  accountability mechanisms on how the funds are

          5  spent.

          6                 We support efforts to strengthen

          7  accountability measures to ensure academic results,

          8  particularly for populations who traditionally have

          9  been overlooked and underserved.  However, despite

         10  the proposed increased flexibility given to

         11  principals, the Department of Education has not put

         12  forth a plan on how it will ensure that new funds

         13  going to schools are spent on providing quality

         14  instructional and support services for the neediest

         15  students.

         16                 We believe accountability begins with

         17  knowing where our tax dollars are going and what our

         18  children are getting in return.  Despite the

         19  existence of State and City regulations and guidance

         20  on the use of Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Aid

         21  by schools, the NYIC, along with several partner

         22  organizations, has investigated New York City high

         23  schools and learned that as many as one- in- three

         24  are not providing legally mandated, quality ELL

         25  instructional services, even while most are
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          2  receiving State LEP Aid.

          3                 We are also concerned that with the

          4  elimination of the regional offices, which currently

          5  house trained ELL instructional Specialists

          6  (ELLISs), principals will not have the training and

          7  support necessary on the unique budgetary and

          8  instructional needs of English Language Learners.

          9  As a result, schools will not implement programs

         10  proven to work for ELLs, such as those outlined in

         11  our Immigrant ELL Success Agenda.

         12                 For example, while research has

         13  validated that former ELLs who have completed a

         14  bilingual program outperform non ELLs, we have

         15  already seen major decreases in the number of

         16  bilingual programs available in our schools.

         17                 Recommendations:  We recommend that

         18  funding targeted for each ELL student, as part of

         19  the fair funding formula, follow each ELL to the

         20  school level in the form of a school- level ELL

         21  spending plan that demonstrates how these funds

         22  provide the unique instructional and support

         23  services they require.  We urge the City to enact

         24  the following recommendations to strengthen

         25  accountability and improve ELL instructional
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          2  services and outcomes.

          3                 Establish a comprehensive,

          4  transparent monitoring and oversight system at the

          5  school and City level to ensure ELLs are identified,

          6  assessed, placed and instructed according to State

          7  regulations and best practices from proven,

          8  successful programs and schools, and that comply

          9  with ELL Parent Choice regulations. Establish an

         10  Office of ELL Program Accountability with enough

         11  trained staff to review schools' Comprehensive

         12  Education and spending Plan and to monitor the

         13  provision of ELL services and use of Federal, State,

         14  and City ELL funding;

         15                 Ensure schools use ELL- targeted

         16  funds appropriately, including proper financial

         17  management and expenditures, as well as provide

         18  required ELL instructional programs and support

         19  services by increasing public review and oversight

         20  of local education budgets (including Part 154 and

         21  Title III applications) and establishing independent

         22  monitoring and audits of the use of funds;

         23                 Hold schools accountable for spending

         24  ELL- targeted funds properly, providing quality ELL

         25  instruction and support services, and improving
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          2  attendance, test scores and graduation rates.

          3  Formalize a complaint process, and intervene when

          4  schools misuse funds and do not provide required

          5  instructional services for students.  Accountability

          6  measures should not solely be punitive, as

          7  intervention and increased support also improves

          8  student and school performance.

          9                 Require school improvement plans to

         10  capture their strategy for improving ELL student

         11  outcomes.  Collect, analyze and disseminate best

         12  practices of school ELL spending.  Maintain accurate

         13  demographic and achievement data disaggregated by

         14  ELLs and former ELLS at the school and City level.

         15  Create valid and reliable assessments of students'

         16  progress (longitudinal growth) in English

         17  acquisition and in meeting the State standards,

         18  including value- added measures that take into

         19  account a student's language background, prior

         20  schooling, and level of English proficiency.

         21                 Parents, students, community groups,

         22  and advocates are alarmed that without centralized

         23  accountability and sharing of best practices, we

         24  will now have to monitor over 1,400 schools to

         25  ensure that schools are doing the right thing for

                                                            249

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  our children.  We look forward to working with the

          3  Department of Education, Principals, and the City

          4  Council to ensure that ELL students receive the

          5  legally- mandated, quality ELL instructional

          6  services they need to succeed.

          7                 (Hearing concluded at 6:05 p.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter, do hereby certify that the

         11  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         12  within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 5th day of March 2007.
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